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DEFINITIONS

& B Term Definition

5T o3 Board The board of the Directors

Vi N/NE]! BRBEEEREEAR QA Company Fullsun International Holdings Group Co.,
Limited

F RARIES Director(s) The directors of the Company

REE AArEREMB AR Group The Company and its subsidiaries

'k BB RITTERE Hong Kong The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

BT BIT HKS$/HKD Hong Kong dollars

ERAl B prE 5 L AR Al Listing Rules The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange

Rl B TAZESETESFRIN Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by

ZAESF A Directors of Listed Issuers

FE/ 202051 A1 HE 2020612 A31H Year/ 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

FA During the Year

e, FEARENE @ ptAsREME - PRC/Mainland China  The People’s Republic of China, excluding

A A i TEEERE  RFFHITHE Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative

a& Region and Taiwan for the purpose of this

report

BEFE 20191 A1HZE2019F12A31H Previous Year 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

AR ARETT RMB Renminbi Yuan

BHR FH R BB SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance

EAE {6

15 RRRIERR Share(s) Ordinary shares of the Company

B 22 P BRBEZSHFABR AR Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ETT ETT usDb United States dollars

*? *Note:
EAREP BRIESBHA 9\\ ER MK AT For the purpose of this report and unless otherwise specified, the English translation of

RXpHEBERBS A

the name of the companies incorporated in the PRC are used for identification purpose

only.
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STATEMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the Year, the Coronavirus Disease-19 (COVID-19) has spread
around the world. With full cooperation of regional governments,
enterprises and citizens, the epidemic situation has been relieved in
the Mainland China. However, the global epidemic shows no signs of
stable decline, which brings uncertainties to the economy. Such impact
affects especially the commercial property market, as a result of the
macroeconomic situation and the weak demand for leasing, and it is
facing a severe test. To cooperate with the anti-epidemic measures,
certain regions were locked-down at the beginning of the Year, and the
progress of sales and projects thus has slightly been delayed. Projects
of the Group have been fully resumed since the first half of the Year,
and the Group has launched promotional activities and offer discounts
in response to the market conditions. In addition, increase in operating
costs and financing costs have negatively affected the profit margin in the
current period.

In view of the macro economy, China faced severe and complicated
domestic and international environment, especially the COVID-19
epidemic, the real estate market in the City Cluster of the middle reaches
of the Yangtze River Region including Changsha Region has also been
hit by the coronavirus pneumonia. The Central Government coordinated
the epidemic prevention and control, economic development and
social development, the economy was stabilised and restored. The
employment and the livelihood of people was sustained. The economic
and social development was better than expected. The National Bureau
of Statistics announced that China’s GDP exceeded RMB100 trillion for the
first time, expanded 2.3% year-on-year in 2020, and expanded 6.5% in the
fourth quarter of 2020.
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PROSPECTS

Looks forward to 2021, with the effective control of the epidemic situation
and the support of government policies, it is expected that the macro-
economy of the Mainland China and the City Cluster of the middle
reaches of the Yangtze River Region will be generally restored, the
confidence of the real estate market will also be boosted and the demand
will gradually increase. However, it will take time for the comprehensive
economic recovery and the upward range of demand will be relatively
gentle.

For project development, the Group will continue to adopt flexible
sales strategy to balance the liquidity and profitability. The Group will
continuously review the development of the existing projects, consider to
adjust the existing project portfolio from time to time including consider
to dispose of investment properties or any project without outstanding
performance. We will refinance mature debts and seek to reduce the
finance costs level of the Group. As the market recovers, the Group
will seek for development opportunities and consider to participate in
projects in high quality locations in order to improves the profitability of
the Group.

Looking ahead, we will continue to follow closely the government
policies as to explore business opportunities in the Mainland China
and Hong Kong property sectors for broadening income streams of the
Group. The Group will concentrate resources and focus on developing
the core business, we will direct resources towards raising the quality of
our products so as to bolster the Group’s reputation in the industry and
drive overall business development, seize business opportunities that
arise with the aim of delivering better returns to our shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders and employees for supporting the
Group.

Pan Haoran
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 9 July 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Breakdown of the projects held for development/sales of the Group as at

FR4RLNT 31 December 2020 was as follows:
AEEER"Y BiragEER" HERY
ER g (FRK) & (FRK)  (HaE) RIARRER
Total GFA™
attributable to
Total GFA™ the shareholding  Type of project Expected
Project Location (sq.m.) Interest (sq.m.) (Note) completion year
HEERYT
Changsha City, Hunan Province
BESRH AOE 4313 100% 4313 R BT
Qianlong Academy Tianxin District Completed
BREER OB 8527 100% 857 (R BST
Qianlong Fine Art Tianxin District Completed
BEER AOE 8,563 100% 8563 R BT
Qianlong Premier Mansion Tianxin District Completed
BREHR FiEE 64,943 100% 64943 C/R/A BT
Qian Royal Family Kaifu District Completed
BB R
Qianlong International Kaifu District
—H 12422 100% 12422 C BRT
Phase 1 Completed
—# 63,128 100% 63128  C/R/A BRI
Phase 2 Completed
= 32634 100% 32634 C 2020-2021
Phase 3
B e ROE
Xingru Jincheng Tianxin District
= 181,567 51% 92599 (R 2022
Phase 3
BRERSRT L EER 94395 100% 94395 C BRI
Fullsun International Financial Centre  Yuelu District Completed
RAEBILE ADE
Kela Meili Shanzhuang Tianxin District
-5 20,050 100% 20050  CR B®T
Phase 1 Completed
—H 193,697 100% 193697  CR BRT
Phase 2 Completed
= 90,971 100% 90971 C/R/A 2021
Phase 3
GTABERERA ROE 40,986 100% 4098  C/R/A 2021
Yatai Muyun Road Project Tianxin District
RRERE i 168997 100% 168997 C/R/A 2022

Fullsun Emerald Bay

Yuelu District

BREKEREERRAF
20205 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

AEEER" ErAZEER" HAKR
ER g (FAXK) B (FA®) (M) R ERED
Total GFA"
attributable to
Total GFA™ the shareholding  Type of project Expected
Project Location (sq. m.) Interest (sq.m.) (Note) completion year
FREEED
Ningde City, Fujian Province
EERREEE-XB ERE 117,270 34% 39872 (R 2021
Ningde Fullsun Country Garden Jiaocheng District
» Tianjiao
L
Shanghai City
A BREEER" BRATE 96,445 20% 19289 CRR B#T
Qiantan « Fusheng Qianlong Square®  Pudong Completed
New District
HIERRD
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province
EEES REER
Fuli Plaza Jiaxing Port District
—H 134330 75% 100,748 C/R/A 2021
Phase 1
—H 99,521 75% 74641 C/A 2022-2023
Phase 2
BRERWLD
Zhongshan City,
Guangdong Province
- HEER AEREE 27,099 100% 2709 CR BET
Fullsun - Qianlong Bay Torch Completed
Development
Zone
D
Hong Kong
22 il M 2527 100% 257 R BET
La Salle Residence Ho Man Tin Completed
1462,385 1,160401

(1) mEzEmE(feZEmEDRO)eRTY  (0)
Er S AR EmAE R A A ARER

o ()FERYERORRERE -

(DESALS

ARERFRBEMENBRETMER(VIFES
L E R M B A AR SEE AR VAR AN -

FSE

CHEmE
R EE=
AERB

0 RREBAAREBEARE -HAERRES
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Note:

Total GFA represents the sum of (i) gross floor area (“GFA”) available
for sale and total leasable GFA for completed properties, (ii) GFA
for properties under development, (iii) GFA for properties held for
future development and (iv) GFA of carparks, ancillary and others.

C represents commercial

R represents residential

A represents apartments
U This project is owned by the Group through a joint venture of the Group
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EF A -EIE ) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
FR2020%F12A831H » AEBHKREMEFBN Details of investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2020
T was as follows:
AESEEE? EitAREEE? HERRD
ER VA= (FHK) B (FHK) (ML) HERH
Total GFA®
attributable to
Total GFA® the shareholding  Type of project Category
Project Location (sq.m.) Interest (sq.m.) (Note) of lease
WEERDT
Changsha City, Hunan Province
BRERERDL EER 4329 100% 8329 C th
Fullsun International Financial Centre  Yuelu District Medium
REEEMT
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province
BEAE il 11 100% u ]
Qianlong Gongguan Minhou County Medium
D
Hong Kong
rRES=H ik 6763 100% 6763 C thi
Enterprise Square 3 Kowloon Bay Medium
50,296 50,296
() MREEMBR(NCBIYERHIEEAEE (2)  Total GFA represents the sum of (i) GFA available for sale and total
mREETEREeZEEBEREES « B leasable GFA for completed properties and (ii) GFA of carparks,
3016 K A 40 R SETETA M0 00 ancilary and others
e - Note:
CEEE%E C represents commercial
BREBRZEREEFRAR 9
20204 %
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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JC @@?IEFQTE%NO%(&@&EE P AR
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the Year, the total revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB1,164,653,000, decreased by 27.0% as compared to that of the
Previous Year (Previous Year: RMB1,596,181,000).

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB1,367,183,000 (Previous Year: Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company RMB136,884,000).

The basic loss per share was RMB12.03 cents (Previous Year: basic
earnings per share RMB1.21 cents). The diluted loss per share was
RMB12.03 cents (Previous Year: diluted earnings per share RMB0.66 cents).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group owned 15 projects under
development and for sale and had a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,462,385 sqg.m. with gross floor area attributable to
the Group of approximately 1,160,401 sg.m.. The Group also owned 3
investment properties with gross floor area attributable to the Group of
50,296 sg.m..

CONTRACTED SALES

During the Year, the Group had contracted sales of approximately
RMB960 million (Previous Year: approximately RMB2.82 billion).

Approximately RMB750 million is estimated to be recognised as income
in the coming 12 months upon the time of the actual transfer of the title
of the properties to customers.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, revenue from sales of properties was approximately
RMB1,157,866,000 (Previous Year: RMB1,522,963,000).

The revenue from sales of properties was mainly contributed by projects.
Qianlong International, Ningde Fullsun Country Garden - Tianjiao, Fullsun
International Financial Centre and Qianlong Royal Family in the Mainland
China and La Salle Residence in Hong Kong. The recognised sales during
the Year has significantly decreased by 24.0% as compared to that of
the Previous Year due to weakened demand during the pandemic and
delayed schedule for sale.

During the Year, competitors accelerated their speed of obtaining
certificates and sales in order to meet the tighten liquidity of the
industry due to the tightened financial policy in real estate market in the
Mainland China. The Group launched promotions and offered discounts
to its customers in order to maintain necessary return of funds for the
projects. The profit margin was harmed and the overall gross margin was
approximately -18.1% (Previous Year: 24.6%).

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental income for the Year was approximately RMB6,787,000 (Previous
Year: RMB73,218,000). Rental income was mainly contributed by the
premises Fullsun International Financial Centre in Changsha. Due to
the uncertain economy during the first half of the Year, certain tenants
moved out meanwhile, certain portion of the Fullsun International
Financial Centre has been sold to customers during the Year, as such
rental income has dropped significantly.

During the Year, the fair value loss on the Group’s investment property
portfolio was approximately RMB606,772,000 due to the adverse impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the deterioration of the overall economic
environment. For the Previous Year, the fair value loss was approximately
RMB49,889,000.

During the Previous Year, certain properties leased out were reclassified
from inventories to investment properties. The gain amount for the
Previous Year represents the difference between the fair value of the
properties leased on the date of the lease compared to the original
costs recorded in inventory of such properties was approximately
RMB155,596,000. As such, the fair value gain on investment property
of the Group for the Previous Year was approximately RMB105,707,000.
Notwithstanding the above, the change in the fair value of investment
properties is a non-cash item.

OPERATING EXPENSES

During the Year, the selling and distribution expenses was approximately
RMB88,559,000 (Previous Year: RMB97,018,000), the cost-income
ratio calculated as the relevant expenses divided by the revenue
for the Year was 7.60% (Previous Year: 6.08%). During the Year, the
administrative expenses was approximately RMB139,667,000 (Previous
Year: RMB87,936,000), the cost-income ratio calculated as the relevant
expenses divided by the revenue for the Year was 11.99% (Previous Year:
5.51%). The increase in operating expenses was due to the increase in
profession fee of the operation during the Year.

EREREZEREESRAR 1 ]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BE A

BMEKABRERITREMEERNES - ATRRES
ME  HEBBMNERGHNEBENERERF
MEENMENFIBESEE - AFEERMERALOBA
R#219,889,000 AAEFE : AR¥99,671,000
JT) °

FRGBR X

TR MEHRASHOARE?2551,0007T (BEF
€ : AR¥153,553,0007C) © AR SmAL =
DR ESEBETR °

3=\

EETRENAFERNRARE (BEF
E &) -

RBES  MHERRERS ML E

MR2020F 128318  RITEBRMRESHAARE
582,121,0007C (20194F : AR #879,478,0007T) °
HFBUARBEBTHE - AEBIRITREM
EEEBEY A ANRY3927332,0007C (20195 © A
R #4,414,448,0007T ) + M ¥ [E 7E 5% B F) K51
BEUARYE - BT REITTFHE - 120206128
31 AEBERITMNEMEEBERINEELE
B31.2%(2019%F : 31.7%) - AEBM AR ES
NETERSMEEEL A ARE11,316,0007T
(20194 : AR #023,400,0007T) ° FA2020%E 12 A
318 AIBRESENETESONEREERIAE
EAEA01%(20195F : 0.2%) ° B20205912 A31
B ZEEEB(BEURRESEEIBD LR
IRITHB RIS UARZREBITERSE)BR A
ANEBRFECHEAENFERNEGELRAE2150%
(2019%F : 122.6%) °

MR2020F12A318 » AEBRBEENAARE
11,502,663,0007C (20194 : AR #¥11,075,750,000
L) MBS aELH A AR 10818320000
7L (20194 : AR #9,379,6950007T ) ° A&
BlR20FNANHEHNFEELNAARE
1,453,146,000 7T ( 2019 F : A K ¥ 2,851,181,000
TC)  RIR A A49.0% °

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs comprised of interest on bank and other borrowings,
interest on convertible bonds, interest on lease liabilities and interest
on contract liabilities less the amount of capitalised interest relating to
properties under development. The finance costs was approximately
RMB219,889,000 for the Year (Previous Year: RMB99,671,000).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the Year, income tax expense amounted to approximately
RMB2,551,000 (Previous Year: RMB153,553,000). The decrease in income
tax expense was mainly due to the loss of operation.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year (Previous Year: Nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCE AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB582,121,000 (2019: RMB879,478,000), which were
principally denominated in RMB and HKD. The Group had total bank
and other borrowings of approximately RMB3,927,332,000 (2019:
RMB4,414,448,000) which carried interest at fixed or floating interest rates
and were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD. The Group's total bank
and other borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2020
was 31.2% (2019: 31.7%). The Group had carrying amounts of convertible
bonds and its derivative components of approximately RMB11,316,000
(2019: RMB23,400,000). The carrying amounts of convertible bonds and
its derivative components divided by total assets as at 31 December
2020 was 0.1% (2019: 0.2%). The net gearing ratio calculated as total
borrowings including the debt component of the convertible bonds and
loss of amounts of bank balances and cash and restricted bank deposits
divided by total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was 215.0%
(2019: 122.6%)).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB11,502,663,000 (2019: RMB11,075,750,000) and current liabilities
of approximately RMB10,818,320,000 (2019: RMB9,379,695,000). The
net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB1,453,146,000 (2019: RMB2,851,181,000) decreased by approximately
49.0%.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s principal business operations and investments are in
mainland China and Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2020, all outstanding
balances of its loans are denominated in RMB, USD and HKD. The Group
is exposed to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates of the RMB, USD
and HKD, but does not have any instruments to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange rates as it considers the potential exposure to foreign
exchange rate risks is limited. The Group nonetheless closely monitors the
fluctuations in exchange rates and will take appropriate actions to reduce
the exchange rate exposure.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, financial conditions or results of operations are
affected by a number of key risks and uncertainties outlined below. There
may be other risks or uncertainties, including those which are not known
to the Group or which the Group currently deems to be immaterial but
may affect the Group in future.

The majority of the Group's assets are located in the PRC, and the
majority of the Group's revenue is derived from the PRC. As a result, the
Group is subject to extensive government regulations in most aspects
of its operations and is highly susceptible to changes in the regulatory
environment in the PRC. Those regulations may have a significant impact
on the Group's business, operating results and financial condition.

The Group's business also exposes to market risk (including but not
limited interest rate and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk
which are directly related to the economic condition of the PRC and the
global economy. An analysis of the Group's financial risk management
is provided in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The pledge of assets and contingent liabilities of the Group are disclosed
in the notes 39 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The other commitments of the Group is disclosed in the note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The number of issued Shares as at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
were both 11,365,386,067 Shares.

CB PLACING ON 1 DECEMBER 2017 AND CONVERSION

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the Company
and the placing agent on 20 October 2017, convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) at
the rate of 9% per annum and conversion price at HK$0.22 per Shares
were issued to various convertible bonds holders on 1 December 2017.
The outstanding principal amount of RMB11,316,000 was matured on
1 December 2020 (the “Outstanding Bond"). There was no conversion
during the Year. On 10 February 2021, the Company repaid in full of the
Outstanding Bond.

Details of CB are set out in the note 30 to the consolidated financial
statement in this Annual Report.

LITIGATION

On 29 December 2020, the Company received a petition (the "Petition”)
from Ms. Chen Aju, the bond holder of the Outstanding Bond (the
“Bondholder”), filed with the High Court of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) under Companies (Winding-up)
Proceedings No. 444 of 2020 against the Company for its alleged failure to
repay in full the Outstanding Bond pursuant to a bond instrument dated
1 December 2017 executed by the Company, together with interest
accrued thereon until actual payment.

After the receipt of the Petition by the Company, the Company and
the Bondholder have entered into a written agreement in respect of a
repayment plan pursuant to which the Bondholder shall immediately
withdraw the Petition after the Company has performed in accordance
with the terms of such agreement.

On 2 February 2021, the Company and the Bondholder have agreed on
the total amount payable by the Company to the Bondholder in relation
to the Outstanding Bond.

On 10 February 2021, the Company has performed its obligations in
full under the repayment plan as mentioned in the announcement of
the Company dated 30 December 2020, a consent summons has been
executed by the Company and the Bondholder to withdraw the Petition
and was filed to the High Court on 11 February 2021. An order of the High
Court was granted on 1 March 2021, the Petition had been withdrawn
and the hearing of the Petition scheduled on 24 March 2021 was vacated.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 30
December 2020, 2 February 2021, 11 February 2021 and 12 March 2021.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

] 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020




ERRBERE

MR2019F 124308 » AEE2EMNBARI(ZIE
FE—ZBIALT(ZIES ]I RiEER
HiE o Bl AEEWEAENEREEER
RAR(Z [ BEAR])30%RME - MM 2019
F128300 - ZEBRRARRNZEFEER &
EREERMFEREZ  MmMEFNHARE
51,000,0007C * B {E A A R 270,000,0007T °
RGFBHNART BHA2019F12A30BH A
& o WHEEREZE2020F12A31HILFEE 2B
_IJ: °

BT RFMBR

MR2020F 128318 » ZEEHBF240ZET ' &
REF - BIHFMH2EMBEAERET - 6
FAREBRBHHHMKE BEBIERERARIRE
BB FIRICAT - NREERIBMARE AR RERR
HEF - AEERPRAMA B T AP RBEFTE
EMNBEREEERENFENNKE  r MAEBETL
EAEFMEATESFEINKE -

BRERREE

HRERRFEFBHNAF RGP HEREM T
48 o

B DT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND INVESTMENTS

On 30 December 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Group (the
“Purchaser”) entered into an equity transfer agreement with an
independent party (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the Group acquired
30% equity interest in Hunan Heda Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (the
"Target Company”) and all the interests, benefits and rights of and in the
unsecured, interest-free shareholder’s loan amounting to approximately
RMB51,000,000 owed by the Target Company to the Vendor as at 30
December 2019 at the aggregate consideration of RMB270,000,000.
Details of the transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2019. The acquisition was terminated after
the year ended 31 December 2020.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 240 employees,
including the Directors. Remuneration of employees is determined by
reference to the market terms and commensurate with the level of pay
for similar positions within the industry. Discretionary year-end bonuses
are payable to employees based on individual performance. The Group
provides benefits in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government
of the PRC, and the employees in Hong Kong are members of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the Reporting Period are set out in the note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details and
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal activities
of the Group are development and sale of properties and property
investment in the PRC and Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results and the cash flows of the Group for the Year and the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 65 of this Annual
Report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018.
The Board shall consider the following factors before recommending or
declaring dividends:

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends under the applicable laws,
the relevant regulations and the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws"); and

other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion of the business review of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

The principal properties owned by the Group as at 31 December 2020 are
set out on pages 7 to 9 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank loans and other loans of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

Details relating to the interest capitalised by the Group during the Year
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in the Company's reserves during the Year are
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the Company had distributable reserves amounting
to RMB1,047,541,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,454,041,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No donation for charitable purposes were made by the Group during the
Year (Previous Year: RMB Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 4.96% (Previous Year: 1.5%), with the largest
customer accounted for approximately 1.3% (Previous Year: 0.6%) of the
Group's total revenue. The five largest suppliers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 50.6% (Previous Year: 57.6%), with the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 16.0% (Previous Year: 27.3%)
of the Group's total purchases during the Year.

The largest supplier, Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd, is indirectly owned as
to 51% by Fusheng Group. Fusheng Group is owned as to 90% by Mr.
Pan Weiming and as to 10% by Ms. Chen Weihong (being ex-Directors
of the Company who resigned on 7 September 2019 and 3 September
2019 respectively, and being the father and mother of Mr. Pan Haoran,
an executive Director and the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company). Save as disclosed above, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, at no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the exercise of any pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws, or there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period of the Group are set out in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial periods is set out on pages 183 to 184 of this Annual
Report.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Haoran

Mr. Li Jinrong

Mr. Tang Kwok Hung

Mr. Pan Jungang (resigned on 12 March 2020)

Ms. Wu Jihong (resigned on 12 March 2020)

Mr. Wu Yang (resigned on 12 March 2020)

Mr. Tong Wentao (Chief Executive Officer) (resigned on 30 June 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Kong Tat Yee (appointed on 22 March 2021)
Mr. Wong Chun Hung
(appointed on 14 December 2020 and resigned on 30 April 2021)
Mr. Zheng Zhen (appointed on 30 April 2021)
Mr. Yau Pak Yue (appointed on 14 December 2020)
Mr. Yang Xiaoping (retired on 3 June 2020)
Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles, J.P. (resigned on 10 December 2020)
Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon (resigned on 14 December 2020)
Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl (resigned on 22 January 2021)

Pursuant to Bye-law 83, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, Mr. Kong Tat Yee, Mr. Zheng Zhen and
Mr. Yau Pak Yue shall retire from office and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years. As such, Mr. Li Jinrong will
retire from office by rotation and being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Tang Kwok Hung (“Mr. Tang”), has notified the Company that he
would like to devote more time to his other business commitments
and engagements. For this reason, he will voluntarily retire and will not
offer himself for re-election at the AGM. Mr. Tang has confirmed that
he has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter in
relation to his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 30 to 32 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND/OR
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”, no transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a supervisor or a controlling shareholder or his/her
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”,
at no time during the Year was the Company or its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report, there is
permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being
in force. The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report, save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is considered to have any
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are set out in the paragraph headed
“Hunan Fullsun Financing Arrangement” on page 22 of this Annual
Report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to requirements of the Listing Rules, the continuing connected
transactions conducted by the Group during the Year are disclosed
below.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group is principally engaged in property development in the PRC and
requires external funding for its business operations. In addition to bank
loans, the Group has obtained other financing with repurchase obligation
from lenders which are generally trust companies or other financial
institutions in the PRC. Such other financing with repurchase obligation is
an alternative source of funds for property developers in the PRC and are
available to borrowers in various forms, including equity transfers, capital
injections, equity acquisition, shareholder loans, or secured entrusted
loans.
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HUNAN FULLSUN FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Pursuant to a financing arrangement entered into between Daye
Trust Co., Ltd (“Daye Trust”) (a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level) and Hunan Fullsun Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.* ("Hunan Fullsun”) on 22 December 2016, a maximum amount of
available financing of RMB500,000,000 (the “Hunan Fullsun Financing
Arrangement”) was provided by Daye Trust to Hunan Fullsun for a term
not exceeding 48 months, comprising an initial term of 24 months and a
further term of 24 months (such further term of 24 months was confirmed
by way of a consent letter dated 20 December 2018 given by Daye Trust
to Hunan Fullsun). The interest rate was 9% per annum for the first year
and 10% per annum for each subsequent year.

To secure the performance and payment obligations of Hunan Fullsun
in respect of the Hunan Fullsun Financing Arrangement, 49% equity
interest in Hunan Fullsun was transferred by Hunan Fullsun Group Co,,
Ltd.* ("Hunan Fullsun Group”) to Daye Trust to be held as collateral to
secure the repayment obligation of Hunan Fullsun and the following has
been provided to Daye Trust as security for the repayment obligations
of Hunan Fullsun, including (i) a pledge of 51% of the equity interest in
Hunan Fullsun provided by Hunan Fullsun Group; and (ii) a mortgage
over the land use rights of four parcels of land located in Hunan Province
together with the buildings and constructions erected thereon provided
by Hunan Fullsun. Daye Trust is obliged under the terms of the Hunan
Fullsun Financing Arrangement to transfer back to the Group such
equity interests in Hunan Fullsun upon its repayment of the agreed
amounts, comprising the principal and the fixed income return. The
interest expenses to Daye Trust in relation to the Hunan Fullsun Financing
Arrangement during the Year was RMB233,000.

Following the repayment in full by Hunan Fullsun of all repayment
obligations under the Hunan Fullsun Financing Arrangement on 20
March 2020, the continuing connected transaction of the Company
constituted by the Hunan Fullsun Financing Arrangement ceased to
subsist on 9 April 2021. All collateral and security given in favour of Daye
Trust were discharged and released on 9 April 2021 in accordance with
terms of the Hunan Fullsun Financing Arrangement, including, among
others, the re-transfer of the 49% equity interest in Hunan Fullsun by Daye
Trust to Chengrun (Fujian) Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (A
(fB72) mEEE AR A F), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, at nil monetary consideration.

As Daye Trust was immediately before the re-transfer a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level, the re-transfer constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company. Given that the re-transfer is
essentially the release of the 49% equity interest in Hunan Fullsun which
was transferred to Daye Trust as collateral for the repayment of the
loan, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that the re-Transfer is fair and reasonable, are on normal
commercial terms or better but not in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group and are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Details of the transactions were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 27 October 2017 and the announcements of the Company dated 1
December 2017, 20 December 2018 and 9 April 2021.
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PROVISION OF CONSTRUCTION WORKS

On 22 October 2018, Fuzhou Fullsun Group Co., Ltd.* entered into a
master construction agreement with Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd.*
("Fujian Liujian Group”) in relation to the provision of the pile foundation
engineering, earthwork and structural supporting engineering,
construction works and other relevant services (“Construction Works") to
the Group by Fujian Liujian Group for the projects for a term commencing
from 1 September 2018 to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive) (the
“Master Construction Agreement”).

Fujian Liujian Group is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Fusheng Group Co., Ltd* (“Fusheng Group”). Fusheng Group is owned as
to 90% by Mr. Pan WM, the father of Mr. Pan Haoran (“Mr. Pan HR"), and
as to 10% by Ms. Chen Weihong, the mother of Mr. Pan HR. Mr. Pan HR
is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore, Fujian
Liujian Group is an associate of Mr. Pan HR and a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Master
Construction Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the approval obtained at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 5 December 2018, the proposed caps for the provision
of the Construction Works under the Master Construction Agreement for
the four months ended 31 December 2018 and the two years ending 31
December 2020 were RMB150 million, RMB1,500 million and RMB1,500
million respectively.

During the Year, Fujian Liujian Group provided Construction Works to the
Group amounted to approximately RMB84,158,000.

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 September 2018, 22 October 2018 and 5 December
2018 and the circular of the Company dated 19 November 2018.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms which are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The balance with Fujian Liujian Group as at 31 December 2020 and the
guarantee as provided by Mr. Pan WM, Ms. Chen Weihong, Fusheng
Group, Fujian Fusheng Group and Tongda as at 31 December 2020, as
disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, constituted
continuing connected transactions and are fully exempted under Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Save for the transactions disclosed above, all applicable percentage
ratios of other continuing connected transactions which took place
during the Year are lower than 5% and the total consideration is less
than HK$3,000,000, and are therefore fully exempted from independent
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction and the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following Directors or chief executives of
the Company or his associates had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

ERDARAERITREMN

st L RER

BatE (MT“;H (MzE2)
Approximate percentage of

Total the Company’s issued

chief executive Capacity Nature of interests (Note 1) share capital (Note 2)
BEREE WEEFEERER ARlER 6,416,140,000 (L) 56:45%
Mr. Pan Haoran Interest of controlled Corporate interest iES)

corporation (Note 3)

1. (LI, RERDERE -

2. M2020F 12 A31 BB B1TIR 1D 48 %011,365,386,067 1%
RETESABE D -

3. 6,416,140,000 & R D lRIMEDEBR AR ([HEE])
BH BERNTESELEALER2EHEE B
I o EEREAERE AR BEFRSARSE OG5
PR -

Notes:
1. (L) represents long position in Shares/underlying Shares.

2. The total number of 11,365,386,067 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 has
been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

3. 6,416,140,000 Shares are owned by Tongda Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Pan Haoran, an executive Director. As such, Mr.
Pan Haoran is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
Tongda.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
as follows:

RN
2 BITRAK
o BRNED
=L g4 (B EE) (PffE2)
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Total issued share
Name Capacity (Note 1) capital (Note 2)
E EnEBA 6,416,140,000(L) 56.45%
Tongda Beneficial owner
B (FIFE3) [iRRiEEE e 6,416,140,000(L) 56.45%
Zheng Jiaying (Note 3) Interest of spouse
i Notes:
1. LIRS, BRI AT A © 1. (L) represents long position in Shares/underlying Shares.

2. 72020512 A31 HE BT £ 2011,365,386,067 A%
BETEBINE D -

3. BREL T CEBERLENERS) BARRIEERE
ERBEMFERSE RO P EEES -

B FXHEBEESN - N2020F12 8318 - KA RN
THRBERBR O KA A RIEER DS - BELHER
BIEFELF L EEIEBIEARRATFEN
ERMM TR LB S AR -

2. The total number of 11,365,386,067 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 has
been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

3. Ms. Zheng Jiaying, being the spouse of Mr. Pan Haoran, is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by Mr. Pan Haoran and Tongda.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 December 2017, convertible bonds (“CB") with principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) at the rate of 9% per
annum were issued to the CB placees. The net proceeds from the issued
CB was approximately HK$199,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB168,506,000).

Details of the CB are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report and section headed “CB Placing on
1 December 2017 and Conversion” of the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme were set out in the paragraph
headed “H. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IX Statutory and general
information to the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 and
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

The total number of share option that could be granted was
1,123,674,979 shares at par value of HK$0.01 each, representing
approximately 9.89% of the total issued shares of the Company at the
date of this Annual Report.

No share option has been granted, exercised or cancelled by the
Company since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. And there was
no outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2020 and as at the date of this Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and
long-term goals. The management will continue to develop efficient
communication platform to enhance relationships with individual and
corporate customers and suppliers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS

Employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted on the
basis of their merit, qualifications, competence and contribution to the
Group. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme as a
long-term incentive scheme of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors’ remunerations, bonuses
and other compensation are determined by the remuneration committee
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the Group's
performance and results.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of the retirement benefits plans of the Group are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is well aware of the importance of energy conservation and
low carbon development so that it has implemented various measures
to protect environment, like focusing on some key areas’ energy
conservation, carrying out circular economy and raising employees'’
awareness of emission reduction. The Group is committed to integrating
the concept of low carbon development into every aspect of work for the
purpose of protecting environment as well as making contributions to
the society. The Company has been closely following the development
of international environmental laws for the purpose of ensuring the
successful implementation of Company’s environmental policies under
international standards as well as industrial standards.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code (as defined in the
Corporate Governance Report) and comprises three independent non-
executive Directors as at 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company and the external auditor the Group’s annual results for the
Year, and was of the opinion that the preparation of such results are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares were held by members of the public as at all times in the Year and
up to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointed as auditor of the
Company on 5 January 2018 following the resignation of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited. After taking into account many factors including
the professional risk associated with the audit, the level of audit fees
and its available internal resources in the light of current work flows,
Deloitte could not reach a consensus on the audit fee for the year ended
31 December 2020 and Deloitte has resigned as the auditors of the
Company with effect from 14 January 2021.

Following the resignation of Deloitte, PKF Hong Kong Limited (“PKF")
has been appointed as the auditors of the Company with effect from 29
January 2021 and holds office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by PKF who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

PAN Haoran
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 9 July 2021
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Mr. Pan Haoran (“Mr. Pan”), aged 29, has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company, a member of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board with effect from 3 September 2019. Mr. Pan performs the duties of the chairman
of the Board since 7 September 2019. Mr. Pan has also been appointed as an executive Director during the period from 1 December
2017 to 4 June 2018. Mr. Pan has been a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company since December 2014 and is mainly
responsible for assisting the investment and financing management. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Jinan
University (B F K£2) in the PRC in June 2013 and further obtained a master's degree in finance and accounting from the University
of Sheffield in the United Kingdom in November 2014.

Mr. Pan is the son of Mr. Pan Weiming, a former executive Director and the chairman of the Board, and Ms. Chen Weihong, a
former executive Director. Mr. Pan is also a nephew of Mr. Pan Jungang, a former executive Director, and also a nephew of Ms. Wu
Jihong, a former executive Director, respectively.
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Mr. Li Jinrong (“Mr. Li"), aged 46, has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company since 1 December 2017. He has
extensive working experience in engineering management and cost management in real estate industry. Mr. Li has joined the Group
since 2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked as an assistant to the general manager at Guangzhou Yunxing Real Estate
Development Group Company Ltd*, a real estate and property developer in the PRC, during 2001 to 2004. Mr. Li joined Fusheng
Group in 2004 and served as vice president during 2007 to 2015.

Mr. Li has been the vice executive president of Guangdong Chamber of Commerce in Fujian since 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree in finance and accounting from Renmin University in the PRC in 1999. Mr. Li also completed the real estate entrepreneurs MBA
course in Sun Yat-sen University in 2009 and completed the course for presidents of real estate development and finance from Peking
University in 2013.
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Mr. Tang Kwok Hung (“Mr. Tang”), aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience
in the strategic management, business development, corporate finance, and investment management in garment, retail, real estate
development, hotel, high-tech business, logistics, international trade and manufacturing industries. He has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company for the period from 1 February 2010 to 18 September 2013 and from 5 November 2013 to the
present. Mr. Tang was the chief executive officer of the Company for the period from 18 September 2014 to 1 December 2017.

Mr. Tang obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in June
2005 and a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1989. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of Management Accountants in the
United States of America, a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, and an ordinary member of Hong Kong

Institute of Real Estate Administrators.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Pak Yue (“Mr. Yau”), aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, chairman of
nomination committee, member of audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Board with effect from 14 December 2020.

Mr. Yau obtained his Bachelor of Commerce (majoring in Accountancy)
from the University of Wollongong in Australia. He was the chief
knowledge officer of Guangzhou Chengfa Capital Company Limited, a
state-owned fund management company, from May 2015 to January
2017. Prior to that, he was the chief executive officer of Taiyang
International Cold Chain (Group) Limited from March 2014 to July 2014,
and a partner at one of the big four international accounting firms
from 2005 to 2012. He has over 25 years of experience in mergers and
acquisitions transaction supports and financial due diligence. Mr. Yau is
currently the director of Ewin Advisory Company Limited.
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Mr. Yau is also a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a certified
practising accountant in Australia. Mr. Yau currently serves as an executive
director of Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 279), a non-executive
director of Daisho Microline Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 567) and an independent
non-executive director of Hifood Group Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
442). Mr. Yau was an independent non-executive director of KEE Holdings
Company Limited (currently renamed as China Apex Group Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2011) from July 2017 to November 2019 and Ascent International
Holdings Limited (currently renamed as China International Development
Corporation Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 264) from September 2017 to August 2018.

Mr. Kong Tat Yee (“Mr. Kong”), aged 43, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, a member of the
audit committee of the Board, a member of the nomination committee
of the Board and a member of the remuneration committee of the Board
with effect from 22 March 2021.

Mr. Kong obtained his bachelor’s degree in Biological Science from
Binghamton University, State University of New York in New York in the
United States in May 2000 and obtained his master's degree in Public
Health from Emory University in Georgia in the United States in May 2003.

Mr. Kong is currently an executive director of Yukon Alliant Inc. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Kong has served certain global enterprises,
including Aufhduser Corporation, Kohler Co. and AMC Konson & Co.
Mr. Kong has over 20 years of experiences in international business
development, mergers and acquisitions.

In addition, Mr. Kong currently serves in various global non-profit
organizations including International Federation of Gynecology and
Obstetrics (FIGO), Orthopaedic Research and Education Foundation
(OREF), The Forum Institute, and The Rosewood Foundation as a board
member or a distinguished adviser.

Mr. Zheng Zhen (“Mr. Zheng"”), aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Board with effect from 30 April 2021.

Mr. Zheng graduated from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics, majoring in accounting. He possesses over 20 years of
experiences in accounting and finance in various industries. Currently,
he is the financial controller of 44 & ¥ (B %) AR A &) (Silk Road
Logistics (Qian'an) Limited®) which is a subsidiary of Silk Road Logistics
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
988). From May 2013 to December 2020, he was also an independent
non-executive director of Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
(formerly known as Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 767).
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The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest standard
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of
its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders, and the Board
is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high standards
of corporate governance provide a framework and solid foundation for
the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high
standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below and under the section headed “Internal Control
and Risk Management”, the Group has complied with the code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Listing Rules throughout
the Year and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the CG Code.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Company does not have any officer carrying the title of “Chairman”
since the resignation of the ex-chairman of the Company on 7 September
2019. Mr. Pan Haoran, an executive Director, has assumed the duties
as chairman during the Year. Mr. Tong Wentao has been appointed
as the chief executive officer since 20 September 2018. Following
the resignation of Mr. Tong as the CEO on 30 June 2020, Mr. Pan has
been appointed as the CEO with effect from 30 June 2020. The Board
considers that vesting the roles of the chairman and the CEO in the same
person facilities the execution of the Company’s business strategies and
maximizes the effectiveness of its operations.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Board shall have at least
three independent non-executive Directors. In addition, Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules requires that the Audit Committee shall comprise non-
executive Directors only and have a minimum of three members. Further,
pursuant to paragraph 1.2 of its terms of reference, the Audit Committee
must consist of a minimum of three members, all of whom must be non-
executive Directors.

Following the each of resignation of Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charlies J.P. as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 10 December
2020 and Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 22 January 2021, the number of independent
non-executive Directors was reduced to two and the Audit Committee
had only two members.
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Therefore, the Company has failed to comply with the relevant
requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and had
not met the requirements on composition of the Audit Committee in
accordance with its terms of reference (i) from the resignation of Dr.
Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P. as an independent non-executive Director
on 10 December 2020 until the appointments of Mr. Yau Pak Yue and
Mr. Wong Chun Hung as independent non-executive Directors on 14
December 2020 and (ii) from the resignation of Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl
as an independent non-executive Director on 22 January 2021 until the
appointment of Mr. Kong Tat Yee as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiries made by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group, which
includes leadership and control of the Company and oversee the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The directors take decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company. Some functions including, inter alia, monitor and
approval of material transactions, matters involving conflict of interest
for a substantial shareholder or director(s) of the Company, the approval
of the interim and annual results, other disclosures to the public or
regulators and the internal control system are reserved by the Board and
the decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to the decision of
the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for
the daily operations of the Company are delegated to the management
under the supervision of the respective Directors.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises three executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pan Haoran (chief executive officer), Mr. Li Jinrong
and Mr. Tang Kwok Hung and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kong Tat Yee, Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. Yau Pak Yue.

Mr. Pan Jungang, Ms. Wu Jihong and Mr. Wu Yang have been executive
Directors during the Year and resigned on 12 March 2020. Mr. Yang
Xiaoping has been independent non-executive Director during the Year
and retired on 3 June 2020. Mr. Tong Wentao has been executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group during the Year and resigned
on 30 June 2020. Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P.,, Dr. Tse Hiu Tung,
Sheldon, Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl and Mr. Wong Chung Hung have been
independent non-executive Directors during the Year and resigned on 10
December 2020, 14 December 2020, 22 January 2021 and 30 April 2021,
respectively.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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The biographies of the current Directors and their relationship, if any, are
set out in“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 30 to 32 of this Annual Report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review
and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. All Directors
are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for regular Board
meetings, and have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all
Board procedures and rules and regulations are followed. Full minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection on reasonable notice. During the Year, 7 Board meetings were
held and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out
in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice where necessary at the expense of the Company. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has
been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, a director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re- election.

According to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, the shareholders of the Company may by
an ordinary resolution remove a director (but without prejudice to any
claim for damages under any such agreement) before the expiration of
his period of office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint another
person in his stead.

Save and except as disclosed in the “Biographical details of Directors
and Senior Management”, there are family relationship among Mr. Pan
Haoran, Mr. Pan Weiming, Ms. Chen Weihong, Mr. Pan Jungang and Ms.
Wu Jihong, there is no relationship among other members of the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Group
are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The chairman focuses on the business strategy and
direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning
of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The chief executive
officer is accountable to the Board for the overall implementation of
the Company's strategies and the co-ordination of overall business
operations.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer carrying the title
of “Chairman” since the resignation of Mr. Pan Weiming, the ex-chairman
of the Company, on 7 September 2019. Mr. Tong Wentao has been
appointed as the chief executive officer since 20 September 2018 and
following his resignation as the chief executive officer on 30 June 2020.
Mr. Pan Haoran, an executive Director has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Group on the same date. The Board considers that
vesting the roles of the chairman and the CEQO in the same person facilities
the execution of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes the
effectiveness of its operations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each of
independent non-executive Directors during the Year and up to the date
of this Annual Report, namely Mr. Yang Xiaoping, Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles J.P.,, Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. Wong
Chun Hung, Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. Yau Pak Yue, in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has also reviewed the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent
within the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not
aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe
that the independence of any of the independent non-executive
Directors has been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures of the
Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company encourages the Directors to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge
and skills at the expenses of the Company where applicable. The
Company has also provided reading materials to all Directors to develop
and refresh their professional knowledge.

All Directors have provided the Company their training records for
the Year. During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the duties
and/or responsibility of the directors and the business of the Group,
including reading relevant Listing Rules, the general business or
responsibilities of the directors and other relevant training materials; and/
or attended seminars and/or lectures.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify members of the Board. The
Company believes that a diversified perspective can be achieved through
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The diversity of the Board
members should be assessed on a diversity of perspectives including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria, merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) will review
the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 31 December 2018. Such policy applies to the directors of
the Company and where applicable, senior management prepared for
the Board positions under the succession planning for the Company.
The Board may delegate its authority and duties for matters relating to
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.
Details of the criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors are
disclosed in the Nomination Policy which is uploaded on the Company’s
website. The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the audit committee of the Board (the "Audit
Committee”) comprises independent non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P., Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yang
Xiaoping, Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Yau Pak
Yue. Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping retired on 3 June 2020 and he has ceased to be a
member of the Audit Committee accordingly. Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles, J.P. and Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon have ceased to be a member
of the Audit Committee, with effect from 10 December 2020 and 14
December 2020, respectively.

Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl has ceased to be the chairman of the Audit
Committee with effect from 22 January 2021. And Mr. Wong Chun
Hung has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee with
effect from 22 January 2021. Mr. Wong Chun Hung has ceased to be the
chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from 30 April 2021. And Mr.
Zheng Zhen has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
with effect from 30 April 2021.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the Group's
financial information; (i) oversight of the Group’s financial reporting
system, internal control and risk management system; (iii) make
recommendations in relation to the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor; and (iv) review and monitor the external
auditor's independence and objectivity. In addition, the Audit Committee
discusses matters raised by the external auditor and regulatory bodies to
ensure that appropriate recommendations are implemented.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has performed its duties, reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk management of
the Company and reviewed the appointment of the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed with the management of the
Company the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2020 and also with the external auditor the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, and was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results was in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, remuneration committee of the Board (the
“‘Remuneration Committee”) comprises executive Directors, namely
Mr. Pan Jungang and Ms. Wu Jihong and independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P., Dr. Tse Hiu Tung,
Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping, Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. Wong Chun
Hung and Mr. Yau Pak Yue. Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

With effect from 12 March 2020, Mr. Pan Jungang and Ms. Wu Jihong have
ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Pan
Haoran was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping retired on 3 June 2020 and he has ceased to be a
member of the Remuneration Committee accordingly. Dr. Cheung
Wai Bun, Charles, J.P. has ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 10 December 2020, and Dr. Tse Hiu Tung,
Sheldon has ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 14 December 2020. Mr. Wong Chun Hung has been
appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 14 December 2020. And Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl has ceased to
be a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 22
January 2021. Mr. Wong Chun Hung has ceased to be the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 30 April 2021. And Mr.
Zheng Zhen has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 30 April 2021.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for remuneration
policy; (ii) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors, non-executive directors and
senior management; and (iii) review and approve compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment. The Remuneration Committee is regulated by
the terms of reference which follow closely the requirements of the CG
Code and shall be modified and approved by the Board from time to time.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policies of the Company, reviewed and made
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of Board members
for approval by the Board and made recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of the newly appointed Director during the Year for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
operation model where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the
Board retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.
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REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results, individual
performance, experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics, for Board approval. Each
of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed
annually. In addition, each of the executive Directors may receive a
discretionary bonus as the Remuneration Committee may recommend.
Such amount has to be approved by the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pan Jungang and Mr. Tong Wentao, and
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles J.P., Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping, Mr. Yuen Chee
Lap, Carl, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Yau Pak Yue. Dr. Tse Hiu Tung,
Sheldon is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

With effect from 12 March 2020, Mr. Pan Jungang has ceased to be
a member of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Pan Haoran was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping retired on 3 June 2020 and he has ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee accordingly. Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles, J.P. has ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 10 December 2020, and Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon has
ceased to be the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from
14 December 2020. Mr. Yau Pak Yue has been appointed as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee with effect from 14 December 2020. And
Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl has ceased to be a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 22 January 2021. Mr. Wong Chun Hung has
ceased to be the member of the Nomination Committee with effect from
30 April 2021. And Mr. Zheng Zhen has been appointed as the member of
the Nomination Committee with effect from 30 April 2021.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors; and (v) develop and maintain a policy for nomination of
Board members. The Nomination Committee is regulated by the terms of
reference which follow closely the requirements of the CG Code and shall
be modified and approved by the Board from time to time.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, the retirement and re-election of the
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, considered the
appointment of the new Director and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the various
meetings of the Company during the Year are set out below:

BRBFAR
Annual ERZE® YHEE® REZEE
general Exg Audit Remuneration  Nomination

EEng Name of Director meeting Board  Committee Committee  Committee
HITEF Executive Directors
BERFEAE Mr. Pan Haoran

(7748%) (Chief Executive Officer) 1N 13/13 - 22 22
FliRee Mr. Li Jinrong 11 12/13 - = =
BB S A Mr. Tang Kwok Hung 1/1 1213 = = =
AL L Mr. Pan Jungang

(F2020%3 A 12 B BHE) (resigned on 12 March 2020) - 0/1 = 5 -
Rt Ms. Wu Jihong

(F2020%3 A 12 B BHE) (resigned on 12 March 2020) - 0/1 = 5 -
RFEkHE Mr. Wu Yang

(F2020%3 A 12 B BHE) (resigned on 12 March 2020) - 0/1 = 5 -
EXERAE Mr. Tong Wentao

(7B #E%) (Chief Executive Officer)

(720206 B30H BHT) (resigned on 30 June 2020) 0/1 2/2 = = =
BUIHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
HBERAE Mr. Wong Chun Hung

(F2020F 12 A 148 E4T) (appointed on 14 December 2020) = 1/1 = = =
alfishet Mr. Yau Pak Yue

(R2020F 12148 BZRAE) (appointed on 14 December 2020) = 1/1 = - -
IFRE Mr. Kong Tat Yee

(R2021F3 A2 REZEE) (appointed on 22 March 2021) = = = - -
BIELE Mr. Yang Xiaoping

(FR202056 A3EIRF) (retired on 3 June 2020) - 1 N 11 11
REWIEL A F4L Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.

(R2020F 128108 BHT) (resigned on 10 December 2020) 1/1 8/8 22 1/1 1/1
HEEEL Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon

(R2020F 12 A 148 BHT) (resigned on 14 Decerber 2020) 1/1 9/9 22 1/1 1/1
RELRAE Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl

(202151 R22 B BHE) (resigned on 22 January 2021) N 1213 22 22 22
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial
statements for the Reporting Period, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Group and which enable the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), was appointed as auditor of the
Company following the resignation of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited on
5 January 2018.

Following the resignation of Deloitte with effect from 14 January 2021,
PKF Hong Kong Limited (“PKF") has been appointed as the auditors of the
Company with effect from 29 January 2021.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor. The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services, during the Reporting
Period is set out below:

e B
FriR AR 7% Services rendered Fee paid/payable
ARMF T
RMB’000
FEIZIRTE Audit services 2,450
HiEEZRE (BRECEREBRRS - Other non-audit services (including corporate
TS EAR BRTS © B 5 1E M N BR BE 1 54 S AR 7SS financial advisory services, tax advisory
REBESRS) services, risk assessment and internal control
consulting services and due diligence services) S
2,450
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Mo BEFENBERREENEBAKEES R
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining the internal controls and risk management which covers
financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management of the
Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such
internal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going process
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.

The Board and the Audit Committee review the effectiveness of internal
control system and risk management that are significant to the Group
annually or at any time necessary. The Board and the Audit Committee
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, as well as
their training programmes and budgets.
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THE PROCESS USED TO IDENTIFY, EVALUATE AND
MANAGE SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

Considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

. Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

THE MAIN FEATURES OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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AN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY THE BOARD THAT
IT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND
REVIEWING THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

THE PROCESS USED TO REVIEW THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND TO RESOLVE
MATERIAL INTERNAL CONTROL DEFECTS

The Company has an internal audit function under the finance
department of the Group which is responsible for internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has engaged Ruizhi (Shenzhen) Consulting Co., Ltd*
EB ORI FEHAB R AR as its risk management and internal
control review adviser ( “the Adviser ") to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems
for the Year. Such review is conducted annually and cycles
reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of review was
previously determined and approved by the Board. The Adviser
has reported findings and areas for improvement to the Audit
Committee and management. The Board/Audit Committee are of
the view that there are no material internal control defeats noted.
All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

On 31 March 2020, the Company announced that publication of
the announcement in relation to the preliminary results of the
Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“2020 Annual Results”) would be delayed mainly because of,
among others, the failure of Jiaxing City Bojin Real Estate Co., Ltd*
("Jiaxing Bojin"), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to submit its financial statements in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 and relevant information requested by
the Company'’s auditors to the management of the Company and
the auditors of the Company respectively. Trading in the Shares
were suspended and one of the conditions for resumption of
trading in the Shares was to conduct an appropriate investigation
(the "Independent Investigation”), in relation to, among other
matters, the circumstances of the Company not being able to
obtain the relevant financial information of Jiaxing Bojin which
led to the delay in publication of the 2020 Annual Results. FTI
Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent third party
investigator, was engaged by the Company on 17 June 2021 to
conduct the Independent Investigation. The investigator issued
the investigation report (the “Investigation Report”) on 9 July 2021,
which set out, among other things, the main issues identified and
remedial actions recommended by the investigator in relation to
the Independent Investigation. The Board will review, consider,
adopt and implement in full the findings and remedial actions
recommended in the Investigation Report.

As at the date of this report, the Board has engaged Ruizhi
(Shenzhen) Consulting Co., Ltd* to review the Company's
implementation of the remedial actions recommended in the
Investigation Report.

For the details of the Investigation Report, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 July 2021.
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(E) THE PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
policy regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information, which includes:

Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and

Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

Save for the main issues identified and remedial actions recommended
in the Investigation Report, which has since been adopted and
implemented by the Company, the Board is satisfied that the internal
control system in place covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions for
the Year under review and up to the date of issuance of the annual report
is reasonably effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ming Kei has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 15 January 2018. He is a full time employee of
the Company and has adequate professional knowledge to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Chan supported the chairman, the
Board and the Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and
that Board policy and procedures were followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All Directors may call upon him for advice and assistance at any
time in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board
and the Board Committees. During the Year, Mr. Chan has confirmed that
he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Mr. Chan has tendered his resignation as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 21 April 2021. Following the resignation of
Mr. Chan, Ms. Xu Jing, who is delegated by an external secretarial service
provider, Excellent Enterprise Services Limited, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 21 April 2021.

EREREZEREESRAR
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING (“SGM”)

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at all times
submit a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board
or the Company Secretary to require the convening of a SGM. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene the SGM, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, themselves may convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from 21
days of the deposit.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT A GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-laws (as amended from time to time), the
shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition
convene a SGM follow the procedures as set out above.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRES AND PROPOSALS

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by email
at cs@fullsun.com.hk or by post to the principal office of the Company
at Room 2118, 21/F, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquires with the Board directly
at the general meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group's business. The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meeting and other general meetings.

The website of the Company at http://www.fullsun.com.hk has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Currently approved Bye-laws by the shareholders is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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To the Members of Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited

(REREZZMALABRAA])

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
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OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57
to 182, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that, as at 31 December 2020, the Group had total
borrowings and convertible bonds of approximately RMB3,920,954,000
and RMB11,316,000 which are classified as current liabilities and
borrowings of approximately RMB6,378,000 classified as non-current
liabilities, and had incurred a gross loss of approximately RMB210,942,000
and a net loss of approximately RMB1,393,076,000 for the year then
ended. These events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
By taking into account of the measures implemented by the Group as
disclosed in Note 2, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group would
be able to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EPREFTRNAEEBRRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EAYEHEHUA

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

HRERMEEENRABGEBR RAME
Himcms BEEEXN - KM HEEAH
RESFE -

We identified revenue recognised from sales
of properties as a key audit matter as it is
quantitatively significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BEBREZE2020F12A31BIEFE B MHEH
EHRRADNARARKE 1 18EET - h EXE
BTN 99.4% « BERERE IS MKRM T M E -
WMInGR S IS MA M AP IREE - MEHEN
WARBERIMEN GBS EE P HRE
BR - RFEREBCRIMETHER &5
3R A A R R R R (B O S 3 ©

The Group's revenue from sales of properties for
the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB1,158 million, which is disclosed
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements,
representing 99.4% of the Group's total revenue.
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when control of completed property is
transferred to the customer, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.

BMst BB R Y EHENRARRNEF 81
Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales of properties
included:

TR SEEEREXRIVEEHEEREZTFBREMNAIMEIZEL
NEFHREHE N BARRE

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s internal controls over the
process of transferring the control of completed properties to the
customers and determining the point of time at which revenue from
sales of properties is recognised;

BREGREEREEBEREMBGTATRZFESERINEN
PRI R

Inspecting, on a sample basis, the terms set out in the sale and purchase
agreements to understand the point that the customers obtain the
control of the completed properties; and

REEEETHERIMENEFESTERBEERHRNIK
FRBETIREATIZERTETERPORMBAEBERERP -
Evaluating whether the control of completed properties have been
transferred to the customers by checking, on a sample basis, to the terms
of the sale and purchase agreements, the relevant completion certificate
for construction work and the delivery notice sent to the customers.

ERERZEREESRAR 5]
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RPREFTRNAEEBRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

YWEFEHEE

Valuation of inventory of properties
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We identified the valuation of inventory of
properties, which includes properties under
development for sale (the “PUD") and completed
properties held for sale (the “PFS”) (collectively
referred to as the "Properties”) as a key audit matter
as it is quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined
with significant estimates are involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV")
of the Properties.

2020128318 © EXREURPEARK
FME([HE])REENERTOENRARK
61NEBTRFIEHENENRARK2713
BET(HNGE T BEBRERMT23MKXE) - &
i BEEEBREET0.1% HWREVBHRE
Mizxsmsr SEEEREECERTYE
BRI RFER L2 Z A& L BIRE K B e Y)
¥HRITMEUARERREEELBREME
BIBEM TR ERMTAMESRBERR - BE
BEEREHEMENTERFER2ENH
EEBBEPOGAEERMIELHENT L
ZEFTRCA o

The Group's PUD of approximately RMB6,112
million and PFS of approximately RMB2,713 million
are situated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") and in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2020 as disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements which in aggregate represent
70.1% of the Group's total assets. As set out in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group determined the NRV
of the PUD with reference to the current market
price of properties of a comparable standard and
location and construction costs to be incurred
to complete the development based on existing
asset structure and construction material price lists.
The management determined the NRV of the PFS
with reference to the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

BRI EFEHENEF 2 -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventory of properties included:

THREREN ATKRABERRDPYRMELBENEINA LT GZ
YR A BT FENE

Obtaining an understanding on the management's process of
estimating the construction costs to be incurred to complete the
development of the PUD and estimating the NRV of the Properties;

RMEEE  BRALBEENAER  HHOBERITNERIA
& BEEERBUERIVENERBENE - WBBMELLR
ERERRAMBSEIBELNRAR  TETKERTYWENMGE
ARG &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated cost to completion of
the PUD, on a sample basis, by comparing the budgeted construction
costs, to the signed contracts with subcontractors, and actual
development cost of similar completed properties of the Group and
comparing the adjustments made by the management, on a sample
basis, to current market data; and

RMEEE  BELEZEYEGLAESEEMRIER KA LERY
FHEIEBTHER  RERMAY BEEEXRBELRTELRFEFUM
ETERNTE  FEZFVRLASENENT -

Assessing the appropriateness of estimated selling price of the
Properties, on a sample basis, by comparing it to the recent market prices
achieved in the same project or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group's business and the PRC and Hong Kong real
estate industry.

5 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EPREFTRNAEEBRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REY X 1EE

Valuation of investment properties
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We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter as it is
quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
significant estimates associated with determining
the fair value. As disclosed in notes 18 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties of the Group mainly represent
commercial properties and office units located in
the PRC with carrying amount of RMB695 million
and located in Hong Kong with carrying amount
of RMB712 million (classified as assets held for sale)
as at 31 December 2020. It represents 11.2% of the
Group's total assets.

EREMAREYMEHUBIAFAEERNE
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All of the Group’s investment properties are stated
at fair value based on valuations performed by
independent qualified professional valuers (the
"Valuers”). The valuation of investment properties
are dependent on certain key inputs and
assumptions that involve the management'’s and
the Valuers’ judgments, including the capitalised
rental incomes derived from the existing tenancies
with due provision for any reversionary income
potential of the property interests and market
observable transactions of similar properties. The
key inputs in valuating the investment properties
are term yield, reversionary yield, market rent of
comparable properties and market observable
transactions of similar properties. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BMPERKREMEGHENREFERE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties included:

FHEEER B RER - e W RBFEIL - I TR EEMN TIESE
Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuers
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuers' scope of work;

EEER TREERN - WETSRE - NMEERAEAEARR
BREFEHMAEHREE &

Obtaining an understanding from Valuers about the valuation
techniques, the performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, key inputs and data used in the valuation; and

ERAIFHTHEBALRBMAUEERTBENYRITRNTE -
AHEARKREYMEGENEREGAZBBNSIENL - CTHIFHK
mx ERNEX  FIELBRYENTSES REMBREYEG
EXNTISABERS -

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs used in the valuation
of investment properties, in particular the term yield, reversionary
yield, market rent of comparable properties and market observable
transactions for valuation with other similar properties based on
available market data and our knowledge of the property industry in
Hong Kong and the PRC.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 31 March 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group’s audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wan Tak Shing (Practising Certificate Number: P04844).

PKF Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
9 July 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

Hit 2z R

2020%F 2019%F
2020 2019
B aE AR®T AREETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 6
BEAA Contracts with customers 1,157,866 1,522,963
HE Leases 6,787 73218
T ON Total revenue 1,164,653 1,596,181
SHE RN Cost of sales (1,375,595) (1,203,155)
(E8B)EF Gross (loss) profit (210,942) 393,026
E Uz A Other income 8 6,142 10,558
H{th U s M Eia Other gains and losses 8 (15,248) (2,592)
HERDHEER Selling and distribution expenses (88,559) (97,018)
THFAX Administrative expenses (139,667) (87,936)
KEWMHEN AR EEBEEE Change in fair value of investment properties
MEEFEERE and increase in fair value upon the transfer
KREMERNRN L BEE N from inventory of properties to investment
properties 18 (606,772) 105,707
BAREBEEFTABR Change in fair value of financial asset at
(AR BEEABZE DY fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
TREEAALBEEY 20 223 (315)
AR EFITERLD Change in fair value of derivative
HARBEZE components of convertible bonds 30 - 64,377
L B — s A A Impairment loss on deposit paid
2R SRR EEE for acquisition of an associate 22 (54,000) =
HithEMA Other expenses 9 (61,813) (7,958)
EiE—EEE N ERNER Share of loss of a joint venture - (740)
B E R A Finance costs 10 (219,889) (99,671)
BrAH AT (E518) FE (Loss) profit before taxation (1,390,525) 277,438
TSR Income tax expense 11 (2,551) (153,553)
FR(EE)FHE (Loss) profit for the year 12 (1,393,076) 123,885

BREBZREEGRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2020F12A31BLEFE For the ye

ar ended 31 December 2020

20204 20196
2020 2019
Bt EE ARET T ARETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Hitt2mE (B %) K Other comprehensive (expense) income
HEa[geE# DR Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BahEE : profit or loss:
HE G INETS EE A K Exchange differences arising on translating
bE 5 =58 foreign operations (4,959) 39,718
FRHEMEE(FAZ)KE Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (4,959) 39,718
FR2E(AS)WsE5E Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (1,398,035) 163,603
THEIBELFEAN(EER) (Loss) profit for the year
A attributable to:
RARIHEE A Owners of the Company (1,367,183) 136,884
FEPERR A 2 Non-controlling interests (25,893) (12,999)
(1,393,076) 123,885
UTNsEEE2E(EY) Total comprehensive (expense) income
WaskagE - attributable to:
ZiN/NCIEZ Y =N Owners of the Company (1,372,142) 176,602
I IR Non-controlling interests (25,893) (12,999)
(1,398,035) 163,603
S (ER) 2R (Loss) earnings per share
—ER(ARES) — Basic (RMB cents) 15 (12.03) 121
—#HB(ARED) - Diluted (RMB cents) 15 (12.03) 0.66
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

7R2020% 12 A31H At 31 December 2020

2020%F 2019%F
2020 2019
! ARBT T AREETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current Assets
VI~ BB RS Property, plant and equipment 16 29,092 145,340
EREEE Right-of-use assets 17 22,438 24,544
BB Investment properties 18 694,630 2,221,547
R—HEERENER Interest in a joint venture 19 - -
BARBEFABESHNERIEE Financial asset at FVTPL 20 - 8,283
EERAARBEGAEMEME  Equity instrument designated at fair value
WA T A through FVTOCI 21 500 500
Ui i — R Z A RMEIES  Deposits paid for acquisition of an associate 22 216,000 270,000
RES Guarantee deposits 24 - 82,739
RIEFIBEE Deferred tax assets 34 122,825 76,896
1,085,485 2,829,849
REBEE Current Assets
BERBPYE FEYE Properties under development/
properties for sale 23 8,824,779 9,180,644
JFE U BRFR K H Ath FE U IR Trade and other receivables and
VAR FEA FRIE prepayments 24 470,448 418,588
UL FE4E AR A% 3R SR IE Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders 25 388,999 374,056
AT ETE L Prepaid income tax 190,739 158,739
IR BRI TF Restricted bank deposits 26 232,573 64,245
IRITREBREES Bank balances and cash 26 581,927 879,478
10,689,465 11,075,750
DEAFELEZ Assets of disposal group classified
HEHRMNEE as held for sale 27 813,198 -
11,502,663 11,075,750

BREBZREEGRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

122020812 A31H At 31 December 2020

20204 20194
2020 2019
BaE ARET T ARETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEE Current Liabilities
BRI R H At BN ZIELA K. Trade and other payables and accruals
FEETE F 28 1,179,985 729,751
SHEE Contract liabilities 29 5,311,608 5,307,480
ERFTSH: Income tax payable 385,289 268,590
A[RRR B Convertible bonds 30 11,316 23,400
BE R —FAEH Borrowings — due within one year 31 3,530,820 3,049,352
HERE Lease liabilities 32 196 1,122
10,419,214 9,379,695
DEAFELEZ Liabilities of disposal group classified
HEMARNEE as held for sale 27 399,106 -
10,818,320 9,379,695
REBEEEE Net Current Assets 684,343 1,696,055
EELAERABER Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 1,769,828 4,525,904
BERK#E Capital and Reserves
A& X Share capital 33 96,031 96,031
HEE Reserves 479,643 1,851,785
RATHER AEERER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 575,674 1,947,816
JEFE AR M = Non-controlling interests 46 877,472 903,365
R Total Equity 1,453,146 2,851,181
FERBEE Non-current Liabilities
BE R —FE2H Borrowings — due after one year 31 6,378 1,365,096
HEaE Lease liabilities 32 76 459
REFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 34 310,228 309,168
316,682 1,674,723
1,769,828 4,525,904

F7 EEFINENGAMBRERAANATES The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 182 were approved

\

R2021FE7AoR Mm@ NRIEEREY  WHIATES and authorised for issue by the directors of the Company on 9 July 2021

REEE and are signed on its behalf by:
Mr. Pan Haoran Mr. Li Jinrong
BEREE AL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

AARREAERS
Attributable to owners of the Company

(RitEER)

Re  ROEE B4RE ERERE  REEE 68 HE OLERE /REAE & FERER @t
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-

Share Share Capital Revaluation Translation Other Capital ~ Statutory retained controlling

capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve contribution  reserve profits Total interests Total

ARBTL ARMTT ARETT ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARMTZ ARMTL ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR
RVBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODD  RMBOIO  RMBODD  RVBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODD  RMBODD  RMBON

(ki) (Bt i) iR
(Note il (Note i (Note iv)
R019%51 718 At 1 January 2019 95916 5579870 (518,960) 308 65,962 61,29 335821 93303 (3948486) 1,765,029 16364 1781393
AR Proftfor the year = = = = = = = SIS 1368 (29%) 138
EREMRERE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 39718 - - - - 39718 - 39718
ER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 39718 - - - 136,884 176602 (12999) 163,603
SHEEERE Appropration to Statutory reserve - - - - - - - 444 (42424) - - -
AREBE)  Shere premium reduction (Notei) - (5500000} - - - - 500000 - 5000000 - - -
EATRRER (1530)  Conversion of convertible bonds
(note 30) 115 6,070 - - - - - - - 6,185 - 6,185
REWBAMEERES  Capital contibution from
i) non-controling interests of
the subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 900,000 900,000
R019F12A31BR A3 December 2019.and
200F1 718 1 January 2020 96,031 85,940 (518,960) 308 105,680 61,295 835821 135721 1145974 1947816 903365 2851181
FAER Loss forthe year - - - - - - - - (1367,183) (1367,183)  (25893) (1,393,076)
ENEHZERR Other comprehensive expense
forthe year - - - - (4959) - - - - (4959) - (4959)
ENREERER Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (4,959) - - - (1,367,183) (1,372,142) (25,893) (1,398,035)
SRR RE Appropriation to satutory reserve - - - - - - - 4205 (4225 B, B, B
#R00E128318 At 31 December 2020 96,031 85,940  (518,960) 308 100,721 61,295 835,821 139,952  (225434) 575674 877,472 1,453,146
EREREREBERAR 6']
20204 R




GARNEDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

i

62

m

BEBRERBEE  CAQRREER - AA
AIMAR (5 = B A AR SH RET R 8 - A A ERE
REBAREBEEZER - )R2019F58 + KARRE
b8 R 17 5 (B A R ¥65,000,000,0007C A #5 R 51
E518 & AR ¥500,000,0007C AR EE AR F] °

ARFEEERWBEER(ERLARR A A2017
F10H27 B BB BT AR 7] 2 BT KA 5 (B
HEBARAR (BT )RR MER -

HihZBEREAR B2 ENBAREBRERAR
B TR 8 B O AR el 1 B 5 A (T AT S AR AR
BRDEZEFHNRAEETRABERAR  BRER
RE P RAB B Z MY B A R R T & A 1 R
BE2HEHE -

RIBRPEARKME (THE ) KZHAENER
AIMAEERAR ZEMERRASKRBZRNE
E10%B B EAERE  EERREEZIEMER
M50% 4 1E - BEEEZRHEARAERTEADIK
BB ZAIEH - AEREA A NBRBEFENE
1B WARBEEEBRERRZSH B R RN
SNEA o

Notes:

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

According to the related laws of the Bermuda, the share premium of the
Company can be used to offset accumulated losses, expand the scale of
production and business and transfer to capital upon approval from the
shareholders of the Company. In May 2019, the shareholders of the Company
approved to reduce the share premium of RMB5,000,000,000 to offset the
accumulated losses and RMB500,000,000 applied to capital contribution of the
Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the issued share capital
and share premium of the Company and the share capital of Vivalink Limited
(the accounting acquirer) immediately before the Acquisition (as defined the
Company’s circular dated 27 October 2017).

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid by
Vivalink Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the carrying
amount of registered capital of certain subsidiaries of Vivalink Limited, in respect
of the transfer of equity interests of those subsidiaries to Vivalink Limited from
the companies controlled by Mr. Pan Weiming (the “Former Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), those subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory reserve until the reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made before
distributing dividends to equity holders. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up for previous years' losses, expand the existing operation or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.



mERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020%F 2019%F
2020 2019
Bt EE ARET T AREETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
REED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BrFiRT (&) FE (Loss) profit before taxation (1,390,525) 277438
BB IENFHEE - Adjustments for:
Y - WE REETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 10,984 11,365
FREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,759 1,447
W ZE - BE M ERER Loss on written off of property, plant and
518 equipment 496 -
RIS ETE Loss on terminate of lease 130 -
BB A Finance costs 219,888 99,671
FLEWA Interest income (3,234) 4,172)
VE 1 518 - FER Exchange loss, net 15,248 2,592
DiE—EEERERNEE Share of loss of a joint venture - 740
HEMEN AR BEE Change in fair value of investment
properties 18 606,772 49,889
HEFEERE Increase in fair value upon the transfers
REMERR from inventory of properties to
RN EEEM investment properties 18 - (155,596)
BAREEFAEBEN Change in fair value of financial asset
TREEAAEBEED at FVTPL (223) 315
AN EHITEE DAY Change in fair value of derivative
NREEE components of convertible bonds - (64,377)
RFEMERREEE Impairment loss on properties for sales 191,555 10,939
Wi — RS A BRI E IS Impairment loss on deposit paid for
HBEE1E acquisition of an associate 54,000 -
SFARE Provision for litigation 54,804 _
Rt 2 EESEEAAY Operating cash flows before movements in
KEHEME working capital (237,346) 230,251
BRPYE SEWME Decrease (increase) in properties under
R (1 50) development/properties for sale 351,589 (793,287)
JE U BR ZR K o Ath fE UG IR Increase in trade and other receivables, and
LA R FEA SR IE S N prepayments (75,989) (87,411)
FEAS BR R B EoAth FE S B Increase (decrease) in trade and other
DA R FEETE AE N GRiY>) payables and accruals 317,644 (251,343)
ASHa/E0CHD ) (Decrease) increase in contract liabilities (13,205) 1,413,667
EEAMFRE Cash generated from operations 342,693 511,877
REN(B ) ATEH Income tax refunded (paid) 45,816 (164,300)
REEHREREFE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 388,509 347,577
k%ﬁﬁ}xﬂﬁiig%;gﬁ 63
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

20204 20196
2020 2019
Bt EE ARET T ARETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
REES INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEYE  WENLRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,832) (5,630)
BEIEARBEFABRN Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL
TRUEE - (8,275)
HEREMENFTSFIE Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties 18 153,460 -
UeBERT B A BRI &7 F%  Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 36 - (140,373)
EEIEE — BB A RA Deposits paid for potential acquisitions of
RENE& an associate - (270,000)
FRNE G YNy Settlement of consideration payable for
JERRE acquisition of subsidiaries - (204,735)
BREBRF)—RBE=H Repayment from (advance to) a third party 24 99,630 (174,742)
BT IR R Advance to non-controlling shareholders 25 (14,943) (374,056)
IR B ERITIF R Additions of restricted bank deposits (183,415) (48,675)
IREVZ R HERITIER Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 15,087 110,878
EUFE Interest received 3,234 4172
REFBFS(FTA)REFEEE  NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 70,221 (1,111,436)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
A& E B FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EAFE Interest paid (380,330) (529,343)
EINEE Additions of borrowings 53,088 3,235,734
EEEE Repayments of borrowings (414,107) (3,170,003)
BEHEaE Repayments of leases liabilities (2,253) (860)
[ I AR AR BRI TR Repayments to non-controlling shareholders - (93,263)
BB ES Repayment of convertible bonds (11,775) -
RENEB AT IR EZATE  Capital contributions from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries - 900,000
AEEE (T ERE T NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (755,377) 342,265
RekBELEHEER NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
WA FEE EQUIVALENTS (296,647) (421,594)
REDHEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
R&EHEER BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 879,478 1,290,224
IMEEERSBNTE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES (710) 10,848
582,121 879,478
RERNBEERIRESZMEIER © CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
ERRA TSR R 2516 representing bank balances and cash
RITHER KRS as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position 581,927 879,478
FEREL ENEERER representing bank balances and cash
RITER KRS attributable to assets held for sale 194 =
582,121 879,478
EREREREBERAR
2020%F 5} 65
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.
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REREREREEERAG(TARA] -
HEREMBARGHE [AEE ) RERE
HMKZABRAR - HRODREBES
RSGAAR AT ([BEAFT]) ERLET o &
N B FE 0 9% = B Hb ik & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° &
DEEMWE BB B REEISEETRIEE
FL211E2118E « ARARIMEZEK AR

BER - MEAMBRAARSERAETENR
EMEBREMEREER

AABMEERGREERA AR ARERE
BRAR([BE])  ZARABREBER
REES([RBARRHEE ) KIHWERA
A AAEPEERERSE - K2019F98
9H * AR AEEFEERLENE - EARIK
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1.

GENERAL

Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as a limited liability company and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business is Room 2118,
21/F., Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries and joint venture
are principally engaged in property development and property
investment business.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
is Tongda Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”), a company established
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") with limited liability and was
previously 100% owned by Mr. Pan Weiming. On 9 September
2019, the Company has been notified by Mr. Pan Weiming that he
transferred (i) all the issued shares in Tongda to Mr. Pan Haoran,
the son of Mr. Pan Weiming; and (ii) the 1,080,000 ordinary shares
of par value HK$0.01 each in the Company directly held by Mr.
Pan Weiming to Tongda, by way of a gift with no monetary
consideration as part of a family succession plan. After the transfer,
Mr. Pan Haoran became the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, indirectly holding approximately 56.45% of all the shares
in issue of the Company through Tongda Transfers.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB1,393,076,000. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group had borrowings and convertible bonds of approximately
RMB3,920,954,000 and RMB11,316,000 which are classified as
current liabilities respectively, while the Group only had cash
and cash equivalents of RMB582,121,000. As of the date of this
Report, the Group has repaid borrowings of RMB62,755,000 and
convertible bonds of RMB11,316,000. Included in the Group's
remaining borrowings are RMB2,066,208,000 that have been fell
due for repayment but remained unsettled and RMB1,797,571,000
that are repayable on demand or fall due within twelve months
from the date of this Report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Group is currently negotiating with lenders for renewal and
extension of repayment of borrowings. As of the date of this
Report, renewal and extension of borrowings for the amount
of RMB865,549,000 have been agreed with certain lenders.
The negotiation for extension of remaining borrowings of
RMB2,599,200,000 are still in progress up to the date of this Report.
However, based on the recent discussion with the lenders, the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) believed that approval
of renewal and extension on these borrowings extension are
reasonably expected. Among these borrowings is a secured
loan of RMB1,186,400,000 from a trust company which fell due
in May 2021. This loan is secured by the investment properties
and properties for sales of RMB686,510,000 and RMB765,219,000,
respectively. The Group is still negotiating with the trust company
to extend the repayment of that loan and the Directors believe
that the loan extension will be approved as the values for pledged
assets are higher than the carrying amount of the loan.

In addition, pursuant to the Company’s Announcement on 1
June 2021, the Group intend to apply the consideration as agreed
preliminarily from the disposal of Splendor Keen Limited and
its subsidiaries to an independent third party (the “Disposal”) of
HK$790,000,000 (approximately RMB664,896,000) to settle certain
outstanding borrowings of the Group. The completion of the
Disposal is subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent.
The Directors believe that the Disposal is highly probable and will
lessen the Group’s maturing indebtedness.

The Group will also continue seek other alternative financing,
including; negotiate with constructors to extend the payments
terms, reduce all non-essential costs and consider the possibility of
realisation of the Group's assets.

By taking into account of the above measures, the Directors believe
that the Group has sufficient working capital to meet the financial
obligations when they fall due and the Directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The Group's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent
upon the successful implementation of the measure mentioned
above. Should the use of the going concern basis in preparation
of the consolidated financial statements be determined to be not
appropriate, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to their realisable
values, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
Reference to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS
16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions and Amendments to HKFRS
16 Covid-19 Related Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 and 1
April 2021, respectively. Except as described below, the application
of Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide
a new definition of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis on those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Revised Accounting
Guideline 5
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Merger Accounting for common
control combinations?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except as described below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

specify the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

() the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenant, the right exists if the conditions are met at
the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does
not test the compliance until a later date.

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity's own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020 and the related terms and conditions stipulated in the
agreements between the Group and the relevant lenders, the
application of the amendments will not result in reclassification of
the Group's liabilities.



4.

AR PR R MY &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TESRTEE

REMBRRDBEETESMAEMRA
hEERGRELNRR - LERGRAH
BHEME @ WRFENSERASER
EXBREMAEFLRE  MZFERKSR
REKX - I HEMBHRREBFEEH
EXZAMARAREZ EMARA( EWR
Al D REBERRGIIRENERKEER -

FREMBEHRTIBBERELKANAMAER
R 3 R A Ao [ R B YRR
ENETERTAERIN  FBERTIXEZET
UK ©

I AR — MR R R IR & B IR 7 71
REMAR BEETE -

RABEATSH2EENAERMETH
FREUEEEREDREZE BN
MER  TH%ERESERBEMENX
KA Z—fAEXMGT - G EELRE
MAREER  AEREZEMHE2EER
SAERMAZEEREEEBEREEZE
MEEXRABERE - ERFHEAVHHREK
A E R RRBEND A EESRLEE
EE - BB HREERIE 25 CARD
RERNFO(FEHBEREEAF 25 ])
HEEANARDRBERNRZS - RIEF
BHBREENE16R(EEIEFBHH
FERNF 165 D ARNBEER S REAR
REBERUELIFAREENTE(HINE
BEHERERCER) R R FER
ARG EFEF(EERENFESR
PRI 365 1) I REE) BRI -

FEMEENAABEAEZREMSL2H
ERBURERRBER I ANERZEER
BZEELET A —HEUKRERREX
AAEAZEENTISSEEMELNL

ERIZEHEES -

REAAEEEENERTARREME
ARRERBETEQABERERTA
BB ABEBNKEREMNS @ HETE
STURABUAEBESTZERERZ FHENR

==
= °

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” ("HKFRS 2"),
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases” ("HKFRS 16"), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” ("HKAS 36").

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

ERERZEREESRAR 7]
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

has the power over the investee;

is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The concentration test is
met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price to the identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchases.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes" and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits" respectively;

ERERZEREESRAR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
16 ("Leases”)) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or
at fair value.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
("HKFRS 9”) would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously held
equity interest.



AR PR R MY &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESTHER®)

WEXBELNEEIRNIE X% B H
(R EXCEFBER) FiEE KRR
EBR(IA)IIE -

AETRERNR  SEEokEERPen
EHNHRAMETRaNAEESREE
ABM(FBREEEEMAER) - BIBLAEE
EEMEERAENREEE R TARE

B -

EoimEnNReELBM(IREELE
fARR) @B FETRERNR - AEEAHR
SRR B2 7] BE B AR (B 5 5B SR S A 1T OB
Ao MRNRE—REHEAEKBRELD
FEME  BOEAENREELEM(HL
ReEABMMAR) R &SR RR#ET
MEAR - WREELBM(KBEELS
fr#8 7)) K AT E S B AR EARE(E - AR
EBEEELRAERETMNIEEZEMD
BEMNEREE  ERANRZELASEE
ERAENLHIDEEZEMNEMEE -

REEHRERSELBURBCELEN
AR ERREELSEN - FREE
ENBERSBBTARERAETRE - HA
SEHERCELABEN(HReELEMMA
MAMREELBM)WEER - FTHER
BNeRIREBEMHENKE (HREESE
BA)EMRENBREELBU(RESE
HEMAR) MBS WRHEERE -

AEEBREAEES S
REFIIT ©

EEMEEBENR

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group's policy for the goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
joint venture is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group'’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group'’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group'’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant joint
venture.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when on
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for investment properties
and financial asset at FVTPL which continue to be measured in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in respective
sections.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For sale of properties, revenue is recognised when control of
completed property is transferred to the customer, being at the
point that the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the transfer
of the associated goods and services in which the Group adjusts for
the promised amount of consideration for a significant financing
component, the Group applies a discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The relevant interest
expenses during the period between the advance payments were
received and the transfer of the associated goods and services are
accounted for on the same as other borrowing costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commission) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a leasee

Allocation of consideration to component of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of office premises that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as a leasee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property and
inventory are presented within “investment properties” and
“"properties under development”/"properties for sale” respectively.

Leasehold land and building

For payments of a property interest which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is presented as
property, plant and equipment of the Group when the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as a leasee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as a leasee (Continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability less any lease
incentive receivable, based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected to
apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change is a
lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

the change in lease payments result in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change;

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as a leasee (Continued)

Covid-19-related concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course
of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15”) to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
from lessees.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. For the purposes
of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group i.e. RMB, using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation), or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowing. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes" requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administration purposes, are stated at cost
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS 16,
properties for/under development/properties for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to properties
for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the inception
of an operating lease to another party. Any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and other non-financial assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and other non-financial assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets
of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income and interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis for financial assets and financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income line item in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, lease receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, restricted bank deposits and bank balances) and
financial guarantee contracts which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and lease
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since recognition of
financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that
are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent
that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, lease
liabilities, borrowings and debt component of convertible bonds
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their
fair values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible bonds is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
components are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative components are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included
in the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern when preparing the consolidated
financial statements. In assessing whether the going concern
assumption is appropriate, management takes into account all
available information about the future, which is at least, but is not
limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The Group is dependent upon future projections of the Group's
cash inflows from the operations and the ability of the Group
to obtain continued bank and other financing to finance its
continuing operations. Management believes the Group is able
to continue as a going concern after taking into account future
projections of the Group's cash inflows from operations and the
ability of the Group to obtain continued bank and other financing
to finance its continuing operation. Accordingly, Management has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

ERERZEREESRAR
20204 3R]

103



iR e MRS R MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. EASRHERMATRABEE
HNEERIR#)

MEBRIZDEEBRGENERRRAR

REBRKE D L3 R BERAARD B EFIE
FERBERTYE -dBHNAKEETYE
ZRBEOHERNRT - BEBRBOHTE
BERRRABRNBERNMGESAR - 1R
BEREBRLAAZKERABNE  EEE
ARFEFHZHEEERBRATBAEN
et RRER - ERMFEREREBATS R
BMERE HRBERERTEEINHE
RBERRNEEEHE - BEt RRRER
MERZESHHAEERKFEFENLER
RERTE -

BEEMEFENTE2RFEE

HEFEERTMENAERFES K
(e S EBAELBIRERMENR
EVMENE T EMERE DU RBIE
REEERABREVEBEMTTKERE
EEEMEEKA - WHEBSTEERTY
ENERAEEFERATRES R, KB
BRRKATBREAEHME R RERE
Hi - BIA]Be B BUREAS B D k3R ES
BEH R B - R2020F12A8318 @ 8%
BARMEREERARG6,112,121,0007T
(20194 : AR#£7,379,305,0007T) °

o BEEGFELHEERTYES
ERER  2ZEAIMBERE  BEFE
HERBRMENGT A SEFE IR
BEEBBRETNGHAEERMAIHEE
FTE M BEFTARA - MY {aTa] &8
FERREETE MBS ELEERRT
MIEIRETERE - W EHEERTY
ENERUERFERMTRES MENTE
Hi o BIRTAEE R GUR BB RS - B
20206F12A31H - HELEE R TYED
BRTEE A AR 2,712,658,0007T (20194 :
AR #1,801,339,0007T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

104

5.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Development costs directly attributable to property
development activities

The Group allocates portions of land and development costs to
properties held and under development for sale. As certain of
the Group's property development projects are developed and
completed by phases, the budgeted development costs of the
whole project are dependent on the estimate on the outcome of
total development. Based on the experience and the nature of the
development undertaken, the management makes estimates and
assumptions, concerning the future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Given the uncertainties
involved in the property development activities, the related actual
results may be higher or lower than the amount estimated at
the end of the reporting period. Any change in estimates and
assumptions would affect the Group’s operating performance in
future years.

Determination of net realisable value of inventory of
properties

The assessment of the net realisable value of the properties under
development for sale involves, inter-alia, considerable analysis of
current market price of properties of a comparable standard and
location and construction costs to be incurred to complete the
development based on existing asset structure and construction
material price lists. If the actual net realisable value of the
underlying properties under development for sale are more or less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development cost, reversal of
or provision for impairment losses may result. The carrying amount
of properties under development for sale at 31 December 2020 is
RMB6,112,121,000 (2019: RMB7,379,305,000).

In addition, management estimates the allowance for inventory
of completed properties held for sale with reference to the
existing market environment, the sales performance in previous
years and estimated net realisable value of the properties, i.e. the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A specific allowance
for completed properties held for sale is made if the estimated net
realisable value of the properties is lower than its carrying amount.
If the actual net realisable value of the completed properties held
for sale are less than expected as a result of change in market
condition, provision for impairment losses may result. The carrying
amount of the completed properties held for sale at 31 December
2020 is RMB2,712,658,000 (2019: RMB1,801,339,000).
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Directors assigned the Group's
financial controller to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The Group's
financial controller works closely with the independent qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and key inputs to the model. The Group's financial controller
reports the findings to the Directors to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of investment properties.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include key inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value.
Further details about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value are set out
in note 18.

Investment properties of RMB1,406,657,000 of which
RMB712,027,000 was transferred to assets held for sale at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB2,221,547,000) are stated at fair value
based on the valuation performed by independent qualified
external valuers. In determining the fair value, the independent
qualified external valuers have based on valuation methods which
involve certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the
valuation report, the Directors have exercised their judgments on
the key inputs, i.e. term yield, market yield, market rent and market
comparable transactions, and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Whilst the Group considers valuations of the Group'’s investment
properties are the best estimates, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic
has resulted in greater market volatility depending on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, which led to higher
degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current
year. Changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss would be
recognised in profit or loss.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain
projects of the Group have not finalised their land appreciation
tax calculations and payments with the local tax authorities in the
PRC. Accordingly, significant estimate is required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related income tax
provisions. The Group recognised the LAT based on management'’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences
will impact the income tax expense and the related income tax
provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.

Impairment of deposit paid for acquisition of an
associate

The impairment loss on deposit paid for acquisition of an associate
was based on the assessment of the recoverable amount of such
deposit, which requires an estimation of the fair value of net assets
of the associate to be acquired at the date of the acquisition. The
assumption includes management’s best estimate of the set of
economic condition in the future.

Impairment loss is recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that such deposit is higher than the
estimated fair value of the net assets and adjusts for future cash
flow projections of the associate to be acquired. Where the actual
outcome is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of deposit paid for acquisition of
an associate and impairment loss in the period which the actual
outcome is known or such estimate has been changed.

Provision for litigation

The management estimates the outcome of the claims
and legal proceedings, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the legal cases. Provisions which are
the management’s best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the obligation, after consultation with the legal counsel
on the possible outcomes and liabilities of the Group would
then be recognised. As at 31 December 2020, an amount of
approximately RMB54,804,000 has been provided for a number of
legal proceedings in the PRC.
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6. WA 6. REVENUE
) BEFEHNWADIF () DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
YRS Property development segment
EmESR Types of goods
HED R TME Sales of completed properties 1,157,866 1,522,963
3B T35 Geographical market
= the PRC 1,018,753 1,522,963
B Hong Kong 139,113 =
PN AT Timing of revenue recognition
K — BRI B A pointin time 1,157,866 1,522,963

AT REEFEKHKARD BERPT

BESBERER -

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information.

20204
2020
MERR MERE mAEst
Property Property Consolidated
development  investment total

ARBTRT AR®TR AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HEDRTYE Sales of completed properties 1,157,866 - 1,157,866
EFEHBA Revenue from contracts

with customers 1,157,866 - 1,157,866
HE Leases - 6,787 6,787
LNt Total revenue 1,157,866 6,787 1,164,653
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6. l-l&k({?é) 6. REVENUE (Continued)
20195
2019
MR MERE fRA AT
Property Property  Consolidated
development investment total
AREFIT ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEDKTIME Sales of completed properties 1,522,963 = 1,522,963
EEEHWA Revenue from contracts with customers 1,522,963 = 1,522,963
HE Leases - 73,218 73,218
ON L] Total revenue 1,522,963 73,218 1,596,181
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For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are based on customer’s specifications with no
alternative use. Based on the relevant contract terms, the
legal environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group
concluded that the Group does not have an enforceable
right to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties
to customers. Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property
is transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains the control of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

The Group receives 5%-100% of the contract value from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement.
For the customers who use mortgage loans provided by the
banks, the remaining portion of the total contract value will
be paid to the Group from the banks once the customers
meet the requirements of the banks. Such advance payment
schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period for the full
amount of the contract price while construction work of
properties is still ongoing.
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REVENUE (continued)

(1

(1

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

The Group considers the advance payment schemes
contain significant financing component and accordingly
the amount of consideration is adjusted for the effects
of the time value of money taking into consideration the
credit characteristics of the Group. As this accrual increases
the amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is transferred to the
customer. The Group has applied the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15 and has not considered the financing component
of contracts which are expected to be completed within one
year from the date of payment made by customers.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

TRANSACTION PRICE ALLOCATED TO THE
REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION
FOR CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, and the expected timing
of recognising revenue related to sales of properties are as
follows:

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FNR Within one year 4,057,957 3,279,141
il —F More than one year 513,332 2,326,378
4,571,289 5,606,019
HE (IV) LEASES
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BLERE - For operating leases:
B E S IRTBIN BB AR ) Lease payments that are fixed or depend on
HENF an index or a rate 6,787 73,218

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5




R B B ISR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

7.

2 EER

RAREREFEDBERAEMAES (B1E

RLERRE([ETREERRE )RR

BRERRARMSEES M RGN

e AEME - REFEMHREERFS

5 AEERRIREDELT

PUE3353 ERBEREBRAER
HE®E  RBR
(E2St/E S

MERE EREERBHERE
FUES

P L ONISE 3

AN iR ml s 0 B & 0 A5 B H WA K

KB -
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision makers ("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group's
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Property development Developing and selling of commercial,
apartments and residential
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong

Property investment Leasing of investment properties in
the PRC and Hong Kong

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

MERR MERE oG

Property Property Segment

development  investment total

AR%TR AR®BTR AR®Tx

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

D EUA(GPR) Segment revenue (external) 1,157,866 6,787 1,164,653

DEPEIE Segment loss (232,138) (791,304)  (1,023,442)
BARBEFABRNEH Change in fair value of financial asset

BEQABEES at FVTPL 223

s — g E A RNENIESH Impairment loss on deposit paid for

REEE acquisition of an associate (54,000)

BB R A Finance costs (219,623)

RITH S WA Bank interest income 3,234

b 5 E518 Exchange loss (15,248)

AOFEFRZ Unallocated expenses (81,669)

PR RIS 1E Loss before taxation (1,390,525)

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Con
For the year ended 31 December 2019

MEER ES'6 D Ep ARG
Property Property Segment
development investment total
ARBETIT ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
D EUA (GPR) Segment revenue (external) 1,522,963 73,218 1,596,181
D EBAI Segment profit 338,071 6,105 344,176
BAREBEFABENSH Change in fair value of financial asset
BEAAEEZD at FVTPL (315)
ABRESITEL DR Change in fair value of derivative
BEEZH components of convertible bonds 64,377
B8RS Share of loss of a joint venture (740)
BEKAR Finance costs (99,671)
RITAEHA Bank interest income 4172
b 5 &8 Exchange loss 2,592)
AAEHAY Unallocated expenses (31,969)
B 50 Al A1 Profit before taxation 277,438

RED B RREM T4MAAEEE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

ATERAER - 2B (ER) MR R D R+
RITBRA - BEEWE - RAAEBEFA
BEMEREEAAEERZY - ATRKE
SUEBIN LA BERZS  BE—HA
LhERER - RITMNEEA  EXERE -
YiE — M2 R BN E R E /R E R
KA T RE AR S 2 88 P RER (518 ) A
B WA RERMFERRAMEIRE
BRRERBHTE -

the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment (loss)
profit represents the (loss) profit earned arising from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, change in fair value of financial asset at FVTPL,
change in fair value of derivative components of convertible bonds,
share of loss of a joint venture, bank interest income, exchange loss,
impairment loss on deposit paid of acquisition of an associate and
certain finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

BREKZEREEERAF ] 1 ]
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7. ZEER @ 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
DHEEHEAE SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AT AZAHREsHBEDAREBNEE K The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
BEIT reportable segment:
PWEE Segment assets
R2020F12H31H At 31 December 2020
YIRER MERE o EpEE
Property Property Segment
development  investment total
AR¥TR AR®BTR AR®Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment assets 9,219,005 1,407,629 10,626,634
RO Unallocated 1,961,514
RAEEEREAE Consolidated total assets 12,588,148
R2019F12H31H At 31 December 2019
MEER MERE o Ep st
Property Property Segment
development investment total
ARBTT AREFTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DEEE Segment assets 9,629,977 2223124 11,853,101
AL Unallocated 2,052,498
BEBEELE Consolidated total assets 13,905,599
—I —I 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

AEEE Segment liabilities
2020124318 At 31 December 2020
ES MERE 2 EB A
Property Property Segment
development  investment total
AR®BTR AR®BTRT AR®BTx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment liabilities 6,052,949 71,867 6,124,816
A Unallocated 5,010,186
REaERR Consolidated total liabilities 11,135,002
20199124318 At 31 December 2019
MEER MERE Nt ot
Property Property Segment
development investment total
ARETT AR®TT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DEaE Segment liabilities 5910,726 57,245 5,967,971
RO Unallocated 5,086,447
RAEBERE Consolidated total liabilities 11,054,418

RERDMRALRDBEDEERME :

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

FBEEDEZKENE - T
ETYUE BELRE ERARE
E - XBEHRITER  R—Eaedk
EmfEs  RAABEFABRRENE
BMEE  EERAAEEFAEME
EWSEORATA  RES - WHE—
Bt RBNE MRS - BURGEHER
BRERFIE - |RITERERE - BIEH
HEERBNAEHNALRD BB
RAEE °

FIBRABEIEEZEENE - ETEHE
ERFRISHL - B8 -~ ATRRES (R
EEBEITERY)  HERE R
ERBRBEARKRDERBLARA

& o

DER/FELREZ L EERNEER
BEIEEMEEREDH

all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than, certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, restricted bank deposits, interest in a joint venture,
financial asset at FVTPL, equity instrument designated at
FVTOCI, guaranteed deposits, deposit paid for acquisition
of an associate, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets
and prepaid income tax and unallocated corporate assets of
headquarter.

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than income tax payable, borrowings, convertible bonds
including debt and derivative components, lease liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities of
headquarter.

Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for
sale are allocated to the property investment segment.

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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7. 7HER &) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
H b L& R OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
BZ2020F12831HILLFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

NEZE NERE it ROE
Property Property Segment
development  investment total Unallocated Total
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

e
s 3
ok

N

HADEEEHHPE  Amounts included in the measure of

EFTERHE | segment profit or loss or segment assets:
B A ER Additions to non-current assets 2,832 - 2,832 8,095 10,927

ME -« WiE RRMEIAR  Depreciation of property, plant and

FREEENE equipment and right-of-use assets 10,930 - 10,930 2,813 13,743
HZE2019F 128318 L EE For the year ended 31 December 2019
NEER NERE 7 EbkeEt KA st
Property Property Segment
development investment total  Unallocated Total
AEETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

S ADEIEZEHAZE  Amounts included in the measure of

EFrEFUE - segment profit or loss or segment assets:
FREEELM Additions to non-current assets 4159 = 4159 2231 6,390
FBIRENBARIKZE Additions of non-current assets through

BB EE N acquisition of subsidiaries 3 - 3 - 3

4162 - 4,162 2,231 6,393

ME - BEMEREAL  Depreciation of property, plant, and

FREEERE equipment and right-of-use assets 10,336 = 10,336 2476 12812
REBR A R RIE 2 B YA 2 4 870 Bt The analysis of the Group's revenue by different types is set out in
76 ° note 6.

'I 'I 4 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ(@%) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ih & & R GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
AEEEBURTRHABNES - SEN The Group's operations are located in the mainland China and
EEEBINAEEHWAE BHE XK FTE Hong Kong. Information about the Group's revenue from external
NEZY - EEAEBE ERBEENER customers is presented based on location of the operations.
REEMEMBUEZY - Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented

based on the geographical location of the assets.

REIREF A FREEE
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
20205 20194 2020 20194
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARETRT ARETR AR®BTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
eyEifapsi Mainland China 1,025,540 1,586,872 723,722 1,264,795
& Hong Kong 139,113 9,309 - 1,102,092
1,164,653 1,596,181 723,722 2,366,887
NANEE  HEXZPEAEFBI A S There was no customer who accounted for over 10% of the total
10% © revenue of the Group for the current year.
HalA - WEREE 8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
20204 20196
2020 2019
AR%T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
E YA - Other income:
BEHEHEHERRIME Rental income from temporary leases of
FisEEBA completed properties held for sales 1,426 5,746
RITF A B HA Interest income on bank deposits 3,234 4172
HAmh Others 1,482 640
6,142 10,558
Hfhas e ¢ Other gains and losses:
TE 5 E518 - F5a Exchange loss, net (15,248) (2,592)
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#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

9. HMthEH 9. OTHER EXPENSES
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
EIEN Penalty 6,161 =
B Donation 48 6,207
AR Provision for litigation 54,804 -
HAmh Others 800 1,751
61,813 7,958
10. @& KA 10. FINANCE COSTS
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
LA & IBA9 A 2 Interests on
—RITEEREMER — bank borrowings and other loans 414,317 541,777
— A AR &5 — convertible bonds 762 2,841
HEAENE Interest on lease liabilities 266 161
BB ENE Interest on contract liabilities 17,447 6,624
432,792 551,403
B MR YR E AR FRIE Less: amount capitalised in properties under
development (212,903) (451,732)
219,889 99,671
MM SE3 IR E - BMERE RS EYED Borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development for
EERAN T REBEENSOFNEREBE - sale were determined by the contracted interest rates of respective
borrowings as disclosed in note 31.
1. FiIBHAX 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
20204 20195
2020 2019
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEARR IR - Current tax;
FRE¥EMER([1¥EMBHR])  PRCEnterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) 14,771 57,022
+ IR (E LAT 24,112 49,287
38,883 106,309
BRI IR (P 5E34) Deferred tax (note 34) (36,332) 47,244
2,551 153,553

'I 'I 6 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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HREAFERBEFEREMNBRRE
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FAMBHAXAEFEIREREMEE
Was R FTRBR BB (B 1R ) AR SRRIA T ¢

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Hong Kong subsidiaries
incurred tax losses during current and prior year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT") tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirement
set forth in the relevant PRC tax law and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rate of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

20204 2019%F
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
KA AT (&) FE (Loss) profit before taxation (1,390,525) 277438
IR B ERSHR25%TE R  Taxat PRCEIT rate of 25% (note 1)
A (MEE1) (347,631) 69,360
T IR ER LAT 24,112 49,287
i+ s R E R R TR RS 2 Tax effect on LAT (6,028) (12,322)
JER—REIA SN EXEENTIFTE Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture - 185
TRINF S R S 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 206,668 21,792
REETEFE R AR N Al sR A UL A Tax effect of income that are not taxable in
SOE determining taxable profit (38,415) (16,094)
RERTHEERNHRETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 113,064 33,052
A BERERTIERBEMNTTE  Taxeffect of utilisation of tax losses previously
Te not recognised (829) (2,265)
AERANHRERZBORETE Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognised 51,610 3,574
PR B A AR R AE A FEFRE Withholding tax on undistributed profits of the
PRC subsidiaries - 6,984
FREHAS Income tax expense for the year 2,551 153,553
ek - Note:

1. RAEPBEAERERANAEBAI DB 1.

FrEE AR E SR BT -

operation of the Group is substantially based.

BRERZRES

BRAF
20204 3R]

The PRC statutory tax rate used as the PRC is the jurisdiction where the
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#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. £R(E5E)FB 12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2020 2019%F
2020 2019
ARBTR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FER(EEE)FB &R (GTA) (Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after
THIRIARER - charging (crediting):
ZERT B & Auditors’ remuneration 2,450 2,538
sFAHER AR FE Y ER AR Cost of properties for sale included in cost of sales 1,140,550 1,062,566
STAEERARNFEDERE Impairment loss on properties for sales
g included in cost of sales 191,555 10,939
Wi —REE AR B IE SR Impairment loss on deposit paid for acquisition of
REEE an associate 54,000 =
WEsTE - BEMRENER Loss on written off of property, plant and equipment 496 =
wIFTHERNEE Loss on termination of lease 130 =
FAEE Provision for litigation 54,804 =
ME - WENGRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,984 11,365
EHAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,759 1,447
FERRE Total depreciation 13,743 12,812
KEMEMSHS WAL Gross rental income from investment properties 6,787 73,218
W ETARFRELERSWAR Less: direct operating expenses included for
REMENERLERY investment properties that generated
rental income during the year (14,538) (15,145)
(7,751) 58,073
BIRA Staff costs
B T#H¢ M=ERL Staff salaries and allowances 40,329 40,054
RIKEHIfEER Retirement benefit contributions 786 1,350
BT AABETERESHE) Total staff costs, excluding directors’' remuneration 41,115 41,404
B REFEERTYEBETEAN Less: amount capitalised to properties under
FFNE] development for sale (8,366) (9,750)
32,749 31,654

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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2 Z2020F128318LEE

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HRRHY
EEne FeRER WA BIRGHEIER @t
Performance Retirement
Directors’  Salaries and related scheme
fees  allowances bonus contributions Total
Bzt ARETRr AR¥ETR ARETR AR¥®Tx AR¥T:R
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BTEE Executive Directors
EREREE Mr. Pan Haoran 380 - - - 380
EXREAE Mr. Tong Wentao 1 190 - - - 190
AR LS Mr. Pan Jungang 2 76 123 - - 199
MERERITE Mr. Li Jinrong 380 - - . 380
HEL & Mr. Tang Kwok Hung 380 - - 16 396
Rt Ms. Wu Jihong 2 76 - - - 76
REFE Mr. Wu Yang 2 76 - - - 76
Nt Sub-total 1,558 123 - 16 1,697
BYEHTES Independent Non-
executive Directors
HERET Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon 3 99 - - - 99
RBI%E Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl 4 104 - - - 104
BINERE Mr. Yang Xiaoping 5 44 - - - 44
REWET - Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,

ATt Charles. JP 6 98 - - - 98
EHRERE Mr. Wong Chun Hung 7 5 - - - 5
i[5y Mr. Yau Pak Yue 8 5 - - - 5
Nt Sub-total 355 - - - 355

1,913 123 - 16 2,052

WMERERE  IFEEREHEEED T
MR2021F3 8228 R2021F4 308 EEE
BRANGBBYIFRITES -

B 5L

1. EEM2020%F6 A30H BHE -
2. EEN2020F3 A 12B BHE -
3, EEMN20205F12 A 14 B BHE ©
4. EEMN2021F1 A22 B BHE -
5. EFEN2020F6 A3RRE -
6. EEM20205F12 A 108 BHE ©

7. FBER2020F 128148 ERT - WHR20215F4
A30BBHE °

8. BER2020F 128 14BEER(T -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, Mr. Kong Tat
Yee and Mr. Zheng Zhen were appointed as Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company on 22 March 2021 and 30 Apiril
2021, respectively.

Notes:

1.

2.

The director resigned on 30 June 2020.

The directors resigned on 12 March 2020.
The director resigned on 14 December 2020.
The director resigned on 22 January 2021.
The director retired on 3 June 2020.

The director resigned on 10 December 2020.

The director was appointed on 14 December 2020 and resigned on
30 April 2021.

The director was appointed on 14 December 2020.

EE@EW%?@%;% 1 —I 9
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#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. EE - EERTETHAEHR 13. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF

%ﬁ@ﬂ(éﬁ) EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
B ZE2019F128318ILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
BRI A
BEHRE HekE RITEAL  RIRET BN Bar
Performance Retirement
Directors' Salaries and related scheme
fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
Bzt ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITES Executive Directors
EIERFAE Mr. Pan Haoran 1 129 = = = 129
ARALE Mr. Pan Weiming 2 269 s - - 260
BYELE Mr. Tong Wentao 392 = = - 392
s bk Mr. Pan Jungang 392 776 - - 1,168
BRELLT Ms. Chen Weihong 3 264 = - - 264
FlsRE A Mr. Li Jinrong 392 = = = 392
BB & Mr. Tang Kwok Hung 392 = = 16 408
Rt Ms. Wu Jihong 392 - = - 392
REFERE Mr. Wu Yang 392 - = - 392
et Sub-total 3014 776 - 16 3,806
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
WEREL Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon 107 - - _ 107
REM kA Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl 107 - - - 107
BINEEE Mr. Yang Xiaoping 107 = - - 107
SREMWIEL - A4 Dr.Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles. J.P 107 - - - 107
et Sub-total 428 = - - )8
3442 776 - 16 4234
BdsE - Notes:
1. FENR2019F9A3HERE - 1. The director was appointed on 3 September 2019.
2. BEN2019F9/7HEHE - 2. The director resigned on 7 September 2019.
3. FEN2019F9A3HBHE - 3. The director resigned on 3 September 2019.

'I 2 O FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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HZE2020F12831HILEE - AEEES
HZRAATESEEM019F : —F)
BE  HFMFBINRLEX - AEZHZREFA
T TRA(2019%F : WZ)MEFBT :

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Tong Wentao's emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included none of director for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: one). Details of the emolument is set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining five (2019: four) of the five highest
paid individuals are as follows:

20204 20194

2020 2019

AR® T AREETF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

e MOERL Salaries and allowances 5,619 2,573
A RIFEM R TEAT Performance related bonus 158 39
RORETEIH R Retirement scheme contributions 34 50
5,811 2,662

R AERFERIT

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals

20204 20194

2020 2019

&= A K#1,000,0007T Nil to RMB1,000,000 3 4
AR#1,000001TE RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000

AR #2,000,0007T 1 _
AFR#2,000,0017TE RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000

AR#2,500,0007C 1 _

5 4

HE2020F K2019F 12 A31HIEFE - K
EEVERTNES  AEBREAESH
AT ERFH - FRESEMAREE
FRMARE B S REARERME -

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments was paid by the Group to any of the Directors, five
highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EEW}@E%?%@% —I 2r|
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#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. IR E 14.
B E2020F 201912 A31HIEFE -
ERARABRELFHEZREMEE - B
WEBRARIEZ R EMARE ©

15. B (EE)ZER 15.
HE AN FHEA ARSI R
18) B TYA TS S ARk

BMBFAEWT

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid to or proposed for shareholders of the
Company during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR EREFM =AY (Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic
(BR)BFRREHEE A earnings per share (loss) profit for the year
ERER(EE)FHE attributable to owners of the Company (1,367,183) 136,384
BIEEE L BRI E Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
BHEEELEREBERND Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
FERFE interest on debt component 762 2,841
BT RERE A ERS Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
PE R (W) BT E exchange (gain) loss on debt component (1,071) 597
BB B AR AT AR (E Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
FOTES T AR BENTE fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds - (64,377)
TSR EE (E18) BT (Loss) earnings for the purpose of
= [ (EE) & F| diluted (loss) earnings per share (1,367,492) 75,945
122 ZEII:JLUSAT:!;E5:$2I§2.[)IONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

. BREE) &R 2 15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
gk 4= NUMBER OF SHARES
20205 20194
2020 2019

HERER(EER)BFMS B Weighted average number of

BRI T8 ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic (loss) earnings per share 11,365,386,067 11,356,681,269
BT S AR AT AR Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
EAEH R Z convertible bonds 112,667,660 131,432,070

HEREE(BE) BN EH Weighted average number of

T AR N T 2R ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted (loss) earnings per share 11,478,053,727 11,488,113,339
STEH E2020F K2019F 12831 HIEFE The weighted average number of shares used for the purpose
BRER(ERE) BT ATARG METHE of calculating basic (loss) earnings per share for the years ended
TB2EEBRTEERBEERE 31 December 2020 and 2019 are determined by reference to the
number of ordinary shares issued.

BE2020F 12 A3 HILFE « st ETRE For the year ended 31 December 2020, the computation of diluted
SEEBY NMRERAD A 2 E RSB R loss per share does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
BEHCEESR  FRARZEETHERHSE outstanding convertible bonds since their assumed exercise would
BEREERD - result in a decrease in loss per share.
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#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

16. W% - WMERRE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B RE
BF HEHE AE &L @t
Furniture,
Leasehold Motor  fixture and
Buildings improvement vehicles  equipment Total
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BA COST
#2019F1 A18 At 1 January 2019 137,985 11,921 6476 6,879 163,261
NE Additions - 727 - 4903 5,630
URBE R B A R (Fif5E36)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) - - _ e 3
Ik Exchange adjustments 2,344 - - - 2,344
2019128318 At 31 December 2019 140,329 12,648 6,476 11,785 171,238
NE Additions 986 - 425 1,421 2,832
] Written off (983) (1,708) - (1,295) (3,986)
BREEHENE Transfer to properties for sale
(F¥7E23) (note 23) (10,458) - - - (10,458)
EESEEHEMEBE Transfer to assets held for sale
(K¥zE27) (note 27) (100,732) - - - (100,732)
[E 51 A% Exchange adjustments (6,763) - - - (6,763)
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 22,379 10,940 6,901 11,911 52,131
REHE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
#2019 1 A1H At 1 January 2019 4176 3,183 2,745 4308 14412
AEELH Charge for the year 4531 2,943 889 3,002 11,365
ERIEEES Exchange adjustments 121 - - - 121
2019128318 At 31 December 2019 8,828 6,126 3,634 7,310 25,898
AEEZH Charge for the year 4,032 4,045 853 2,054 10,984
s Written-off (837) (1,642) - (1,011) (3,490)
ERSEEYE Transfer to properties for sale
(FtsE23) (note 23) (349) - - - (349)
BETHERENEE Transfer to assets held for sale
(WizE27) (note 27) (9,234) - - - (9,234)
Rz Rk Exchange adjustments (770) - - - (770)
#2020 128318 At 31 December 2020 1,670 8,529 4,487 8,353 23,039
REE CARRYING VALUE
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 20,709 2,41 2,414 3,558 29,092
R2019F12831H At 31 December 2019 131,501 6,522 2,842 4475 145,340

'I 24 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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¥ BERSREZ)
LY BERBEELECHREGE
RIS EEENE SRR TERHEINE -

BgF 3%ZE5%

HEEE HEFHs =4
(B E BZE)

RE 20% % 25%

R REREHE  10%250%

R2020F12A31H - AEBEEEREARELD
B AREE 498000 T B EEFHIEHENE
B (B5E27) (20195 + AR¥100,957,0007T)
RETF - EAAEEERBITRE IR -

EHEEE

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
using the straight-line method after taking into account of their
estimated residual values at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 3%-5%

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the term
of lease, or 3 years

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Furniture, fixture and equipment  10%-50%

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged the buildings with
carrying value of approximately RMB91,498,000 which transferred
to assets held for sale (note 27) (2019: RMB100,957,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

HELH WAEWE et
Leasehold Office
land premises Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7120205128318 As at 31 December 2020
REE Carrying amount 22,190 248 22,438
120196128318 As at 31 December 2019
BREE Carrying amount 22,870 1,674 24,544
BZ2020F12A31HLLEE For the year ended 31 December 2020
ELH Depreciation charge 680 2,079 2,759
HKIEHRE Termination of lease = 7434 7,434
BZE2019F12A31HLLEE For the year ended 31 December 2019
TEMX Depreciation charge 680 767 1,447
20205 2019%F
2020 2019
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EISHITRE NS M2 A% Expense relating to short-term leases
ROEMBEEFBENRS and other leases with lease terms end
within 12 months 489 100
IS RAEEE Additions to right-of-use assets 8,095 760
MEERNIR e R AR Total cash outflow for leases 3,008 1,121
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17.

18.

126

FEHEESE 2
REEERBEEE  AEBALLER
MERASYE - BEANNERE=4F
HOE R ERET ST - M ATBE A T SRR a9
BRI IERIBHE - TS 8 R A R B RE
o A0 45 T A TR (R R A4 o
EET SR G AT A
B O ERANMES I8 AR 0T
B KM o

AN REBEHEE - ER/BT 0 AKH
RpYEE(BEREREE L) WERL
XX —RUENFUARSZEDHEES -
ERIRENATESENBRLT - B2
FIFTBEEMENEE LD -

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For the current and prior year, the Group leases office premises
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 2 to 3 years, but may have extension and termination options
as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office buildings, the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest, including the underlying
leasehold land. Lump sum payment was made upfront to acquire
these property interest. The leasehold land component of the
owned property is presented separately only if the payment made

BREWF

can be allocated reliably.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ERTIREWE
Completed
investment
properties
AREET T
RMB'000
BRI  ZAREETYK Completed properties, at fair value
R2019%1 18 At 1 January 2019 1,935,921
EERAHEEDR TYWE(MTEE23)  Transfer from completed properties held for sale (note 23) 156,704
EMEFTEERTIREMERA  Increase in fair value upon the transfer from inventory of
N EEEM properties to investment properties 155,596
WEMEN AR EBEES) Change in fair value of investment properties (49,889)
PE H SR Exchange adjustments 23,215
20198128318 &2020%1 818 At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2,221,547
HERE S Disposal of investment properties (153,460)
EREEEHENEE(Mf3E27)  Transfer to assets held for sale (note 27) (712,027)
BEMENRREEE Change in fair value of investment properties (606,772)
D 5 FE Exchange adjustments (54,658)
2020124318 At 31 Decernber 2020 694,630

FTAEETIEE L GEERK
HEmrmEkmikmEEmE
HARER AR EEEZE) :
—2020%F12A31H
—2019%F12A31H

Unrealised change in fair value of investment properties included in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended:

— 31 December 2020
— 31 December 2019

(606,772)
105,707
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18. BEWZE ()

AEBEMAERBEEHERFURRES
gErElR HBE RIS EE AEERR
WERSRAAREBEENGE @ I H
R ABRS| BT E Y o

BREMEUNPBEEEE(2019F « FE K
FE)

F2019F12 8318 UK BV EF S8 #
EH AEBERIREVWENAAER
DERBAEEYEZHAEDLBEFEREER
FAEEBRLENREMEETHENIH
KEMB YA BN EEGHEMTETHE

MmEE °

72020128318 » AABEINAE=
& DERAEELESERKAE(2019F ¢
BHELEEARBAE)ET - EELEBETD
K2EAEHBRMBRHEH  WEEA
RIEMS EMHBR ZEEUYEELE
B A BERERTE -  WAKNEERE
EERYERIT(MEEERRAG R
ENRBRYOMEEETEANAS WA
misH o

COVID-19Z IBERBEMMIHREEXN » 18
FCOVID-19Z B ER R ER - BEAF
BAERATHETYE B GEMRZR
R B S ARE1,398,537,000T A% A W)
FEBEREANESTHEEMEEK

M MEIABER  MENKERKE
F&TIE BRI ©

R2020F 12 A31H » A"EBEREEAA
R ¥ 1,381,704,000 7t (2019 F : AR ¥
1,857,793,00070 ) M IE E W = 2 E # T iR
17 {ERARSEEERBITRE R IR -

TRFINEBUMNETLSEHENEDN
AABELEZMAGERTRE AR
®)  WRBEAABEFEMREABE
MABREESAABEFESBRENE
DNREEERNER -

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or intended to earn rentals in future or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties are situated in the PRC and Hong Kong
(2019: the PRC and Hong Kong).

As at 31 December 2019, and the date of transfer from inventory
of properties the fair value of the Group’s completed investment
properties was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
by independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, which have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value was grouped under level 3
and was determined based on the direct comparison approach and
income approach (2019: direct comparison approach and income
approach). Direct comparison approach is arrived at by reference
to comparable market transactions and suppose that evidence of
relevant transactions in the market place can be extrapolated to
similar properties, subject to allowance for variable factors. Income
approach method is arrived at the capitalised rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for any
reversionary income potential of the property interests.

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market
volatility depending on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve, which has led to higher degree of uncertainties in
respect of the valuations in the current year, and independent
valuers included uncertainty clauses in the valuation reports in
respect of investment properties that are located in the PRC and in
Hong Kong amounted to RMB1,398,537,000.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties with
carrying amount of RMB1,381,704,000 (2019: RMB1,857,793,000)
were pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
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18. BEWZE () 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

128

RonFRANE MAEE  BERER
AEBFRRENR NAREE B4 ELPN ¢ EXTTEERARE  €E FUBEBAHBRAAEE BNEE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant Relationship of
held by the Group 2020 Hierarchy  and keyinputs unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs to fair value
ARETL
RMBI000
frERRES 810 £=H KAk 1 EfhER 400% RGN e SR BEXR
e Level3 —TEHAHEATELE 1. Termyield T RZIA «
Commercial properties in NENFHNGER £ Aslight increase in term yield would not result
Fujian Province, the PRC SUaERmERS - in significant decrease in fair value, and vice
- Income approach Versa.
- key inputs are term yield,
reversonaryyieldand 2 fEE MR 450% REREEEH AP EBANL BEAR
market rent of comparable 2. Reversionary yield T8 R
properties. Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
result in significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
3mEde 186 TEREAE LR/ THESHALERE
(AE®/FAHR/R) KEL/ Tk o
3 Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
FRPERDHRAR 686510 F=h WA 1 EEEE 0yli ERREREN A S SRR BERR
Office units in Changsha, level3  —FEBAHBATELR 1.Temyield N/A T R
the PRC MENFRNGE ¢ Aslightly increase in term yield would not result
ShRERmERS - in significant decrease in fair value, and vice
- Income approach Versa.
- Key inputs are term yield,
reversonaryyieldand 2 EE MR 35%-6.00% RENEEEH AP EBANL BEAR
market rent of comparable 2. Reversionary yield T8 R
properties. Aslightly increase in reversionary yield would
not result in significant decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.
3mEde AREME  TEREMLA/ THEEEALERE
(AE®/TAR/R) 1657 L/ T
3 Market rent RMB74-165 Aslightly increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in slightly increase/decrease in
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18. BEWZE () 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

RN0F12A31E RARE  HERER
AREFRRENR NALEE B4 TERARE EXFUEZAARE  €E AIBEG ) HBRAREE ENRE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant Relationship of
held by the Group 2020 Hierarchy  andkeyinputs unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs to fair value
AEETT
RMBO00
FRERNBATER 66262 B=H  —EEMTANENEUD STHRER DERADE 12002 §TrkERRE  ArBERR
Office units in Hong Kong* Level 3 HOTENERRS . ERTEMEER ¥E 12100 The higher the price per square meter, the
THLRMEENE  BUEREMERRR:  (ARE/ higher the fair value.
HILE Rt « fimeE BRRMXE  THX)
-Directcomparisonmethod 8% 112,000-121,000
based on market Price per square meter,using ~ (RMB/sq.m)
observable transactions market direct comparables
of similar propertiesand ~ and taking into account of
adjusted to reflect the location and other individual
locations and conditions of factors such as floor of evel,
the subject property. timing and size of property
etc
NEENESE 1683 B=&h  -KA% I BEhEE 10% EEYEEEN e SR BEXR
Signboards in Hong Kong* level3  —FEHAZBAGENE 1. Reversionary ield T R27
ELERENRE A slight increase in reversionary yield would not
- Income approach restlt in significant decrease in fair value, and
- Keyinputs are reversionary vice versa.
yield and rateable value
) EREHEE AREI000  EREHBEAE LA/ THEEAMLE
2. Rateablevalue TEARE  EARLH/Th-
4540007 Asignificant increase/decrease in rateable value
RMB120,000- would result in significant increase/decrease
454000 in fair value.
BEf 28 F=R  —ERURADERNENY GRTEERTALBE SEUARE R5BRER DABEDS-
CarParking? Level 3 EMMEIBERS . B UZEMEREME 16830000 Thehigher tansaction price,the higher
TRENRREENE  BRE DINEE ERE O RVBIGB00  thefairvalue
WA ERAKR - REmES perunit
- Direct comparison method  Using market direct
based on market comparables and taking
observable transactions into account of location and
of similar propertiesand ~ other individual factors such
adjusted toreflect the asfloor of level, timing and
locations and conditions of size of property etc
the subject property
it 1406657
Total
2 DEBER2020F 12831 BN EAZELEE 2 e Reclassified to assets of disposal group classified as held for sale as at 31

HEMARINEE - December 2020.
EREREREBERAR
20204 R
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18. BEWZE ()

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

RO9ERA3IE AARE  RERHR
AEEfERENR NAREE B4 ELPN ¢ EXTTEERARE  €E FUBEBAHBRAAEE BNEE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant Relationship of
held by the Group 2019  Hierarchy  and keyinputs unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs to fair value
ARETR
RMB000
RRERNBATERR 103308 F=H  -EERAREDEREUD STORER DERTS  ARKssr STARERAS AABEDS.
{2 Level3 ENMBAEERS  EEUAHEER ¥E  ZARE The higher the price per square meter, the
Office units and car parking URENREAEE  BUEREGERNRR - 19000m higher the far value.
spaces in Hong Kong MERARA « e KERNEE  (ARE/
-Direct comparisonmethod 1% THx)
based on market Price per square meter, using ~168,000-179,000
observable transactions market direct comparables  (RMB/sqm,)
of similar properties and and taking into account of
adjusted to reflect the location and other individual
locations and conditions of factors such as floor of evel,
the subject property. timing and size of property
el
INERNRER 795 £=8 kA% fitlees 10% EEUEEEN L EEEALBE
Signboards in Hong Kong level3  —FEHAHBRTELE 1.Reversionaryyield AETH RZTE -
MENERNEERT Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
Bfs - resultin significant decrease in far value, and
- Income approach vice versa.
- Key inputs are reversionary
yieldand marketrentof  27EAES AREs7000r  mEREABLA/ THEEHALER
comparable properties, (AEE/E/R) RVB57,000 KRBT/ TH -

130
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2. Market rent (RMB/pc/month)

Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
would result in significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

RO9ERA3IE RARE  HERER
AREFRRENR NALEE B4 IEBAHE EXFUEZAARE  €E AIBEG ) HBRAREE ENRE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant Relationship of
held by the Group 2019 Hierarchy  and keyinputs unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs to fair value
AEETT
RMBO00
N B AN 8530 B=&  HA% 1 FRREE 400% bR e g AL BEXR
BENE Level3 —TEGARBATELR 1. Termyield T R
Commercial properties in MENFRNRE 7 Aslight increase in term yield would not result
Fujan Province, the PRC FhRERmERS « in significant decrease in fair value, and vice
- Income approach Versa.
- key inputs are term yield,
reversionaryyieldand 2. ERMEE 450% ERURREN AT eERA BEAR
market rent of comparable 2. Reversionary yield T R
properties. Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
restlt in significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
3 miEe AR TEESAR LA/ THESHAAEE
(AR®/THR/R)  RMB1s KBLF/ T
3. Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sg.m./month) would resultin significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
R ARDORAZ 1609 =k WA 1 ERhER 550% FRREREN AT EEHRA BEAR
Office units in Changsha, level3  —FEHATBATELER 1.Termyield T R27
the PRC NENFRNEE | A slight increase in term yield would not result
FhmERmEds - in significant decrease in air value, and vice
- Income approach VIsa.
- key inputs are term yield,
reversonaryyieldand 2 ERMEER 6,00% ERURREN AP eBRAR BEAR
market rent of comparable 2. Reversionary yield T R
properties. Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
restlt in significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
3 mEe ARBIIRE  TEESAR LA/ THEEHAAEE
(AR®/Er%/R)  ARBism  ABLA/Th-
3. Market rent RMB121-175 Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/s.m./month) would resultin significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
it 201547
Tota
FR - EEASEEE = - There were no transfer into or out of level 3 during the year.
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19. R—BEELENER 19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

20204 20196

2020 2019

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR  JEETH Cost of investment, unlisted 2,500 2,500
TE(LURE18 248 Share of post-acquisition result (2,500) (2,500)
R2018F4 8 - NEBE R —FHREERPLE In April 2018, the Group entered into a capital increase and
THIMEEARG LIEERRBEHZ - B subscription agreement with related companies controlled by
It AREERBEREEREERIEEBR AR Mr. Pan Weiming pursuant to which the Group provided capital
(TTEEERE |))T 8 AR¥2,500,0007T ° A% contribution of RMB2,500,000 to {EiE &R G R/ E R A A
B 7B R iR 0% 1 - BEEEERF (“Fujian Qianlong”). The Group has 20% equity interest in Fujian
HRMEFEREEYHEERIEE - ~5E Qianlong which is engaged in a commercial and residential
BEREEERBRRANZ20%RAE - NEF property development project in Pudong, the PRC. The Group has
REELENESSE=o2— R M 20% voting power in the shareholders’ meeting of Fujian Qianlong
FENBREEBRTERES —NAEM and has 1 board seat out of 3 and the approval of the major
A o financial and operating policies requires unanimous consent of all

the directors of the joint venture.

'I 3 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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20. BAREETFABRNESHMEE  20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL
20204 2019%F
2020 2019
Bt EE ARET T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
MERA AREET ABIBEEN  Financial asset mandatorily
SREE : measured at FVTPL:
AEREETE] Life insurance plan @) - 8,283
HmEMS A Analysed for reporting purposes as
B EE Non-current asset - 8283
Bt Notes:

R2019F 128318 * AEEBE B HBRB A A
RN UAETAHENAZSRE - AEA
RIFESREALLTRR - BEBEZRE -
ARABAZmARREFBA  RREBE
% 4,600,000 3% 7T (48 & R A R % 31,624,000
TC) c AEBERNRERYKRZIFE—RE
1,233,000% 7t (A& A A R #8,275,0007T) °
AEETERRIFIRRBESBNRERSER
([REEEDREIRS  2ERBEIHH
BIREINE BREA REHRFFE - BRIRE
REMGER KNG EE B E R B EE - i
RE—ZEZF+/\REFEHHERDIES - A
AREFEENRIETSENRRFES -
ZIRBR AR R E FAANEE S HRREE
FIER425% ERIFIE - A RAMRE G A%
THEESE S —E 0% 0 HK(FRRETF
RA200%) ° 20205128318 @ 1HEE R
BEARE7963000T WD EAIFELHEN
EE(fisE27) -

20205 2019512318 - EFR A Lt
RRENEFEENENDASRENERE
HEAAEERLD EFRE - ZSEE
TEEEREHRET T —EARRER - B
It - R2019F 128318 - ZHBEH B EER
@jo

ERREMAABEMAEFBHRARKMZE
38(C) ©

(@)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a USS$ denominated life
insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Ms. Wu Jihong, a
former director of the Company. Under this policy, the Company is the
beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum is USD4,600,000
(equivalent to RMB31,624,000). The Group was required to pay a single
premium of USD1,233,000 (equivalent to RMB8,275,000) at inception.
The Group can, at any time, withdraw cash based on the account value
of the policy (“Account Value”) at the date of withdrawal, which is
determined by the gross premium paid plus accumulated guaranteed
interest earned and minus any charges made in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the policy. If withdrawal is made between the
Tst to 18th policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender charge
deducted from the Account Value. The insurance company will pay the
Group a guaranteed interest rate of 4.25% per annum for the first year
and a variable return per annum afterwards (with minimum guaranteed
interest rate of 2.00% per annum) during the effective period of the
policy. As at 31 December 2020, such financial asset of RMB7,963,000 was
classified to assets held for sale (note 27).

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the above mentioned
life insurance policy which was measured at the Account Value of the
policy approximates its fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. In the
opinion of the Directors, the amount was not expected to be withdrawn
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the balance was classified as non-current as at 31 December 2019.

Details of the fair value measurement of the investments are set out in
note 38(C).

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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22.

134

EERAABHESAHMZ2EY 21. EQUITY INSTRUMENT DESIGNATED AT
HmHRATA FVTOCI
20205 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RAEFLTRATE : Unlisted equity investment in the PRC:
BERAREBEA Equity instrument designated at FVTOC|
EmrmbamrRATA 500 500
500 500

RN BN ERE AR QAR S%AHE
KRE - ZAFR2018FHERMKIBER L
WIEMERR - AEERILHELAZTET
BEBEAEEEFEM - ARBETHRNIHH
ERE - ARBEERERBAABEA
Hit2HW R ENRATA  EF2R5
ZEFANAABELELS

WiE—EBEQTNENRE

R2019F 12308 - "EEHE—FBU
F=AEI M REEEGE ([ HENER
) B AEEBERKEARK
270,000,000 W EE IR A E R E LS BB R
A E([HARAE |) B30 HE AR FlEE
THEFBARENEMERR - WIESE
MR20205 12 A31 B ARTERK © BRFHEBH
7 LR TEE IR ER P HE A A R A 1T A
MBEERAETN - BEEARZHOFBH
RARAT HHA2019F12 A30BHAE °
HZE200F12A3BLEFE EREEE
R - W — L QRNE MRS R
B A R#54,000,0007T ° #MEMERZED R
HE2020F12A31BIEFEZ BRI »
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The balance represented the 5% equity investment in &M & ¥l
FEIE B R A R, which acquired two pieces of land in Fuzhou
in the early 2018 for property development. The Group had no
board seat in this PRC private entity. The Group does not intend to
dispose the investment in the near future. The Group designated
the investment as equity instrument measured at FVTOCI, in the
opinion of the Directors, there is no change in fair value during
both of the years.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement (“Hunan Heda Agreement”) with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group will acquire 30% equity
interest in MR AMEREZELBEFR A A (‘Hunan Heda”) at the
consideration of RMB270,000,000. Hunan Heda is principally
engaged in property development in Hunan, the PRC. The
acquisition has not been completed at 31 December 2020, subject
to the approval of relevant local administration of industry and
commerce for the registration of the shares transfer of Hunan
Heda. Details of transaction are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated on 30 December 2019. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the deposits paid for acquisition of an associate
was impaired of RMB54,000,000 based on the management'’s
assessment. Hunan Heda Agreement was terminated after the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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23. BRIWE SEYE 23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/
PROPERTIES FOR SALE
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BREARYE Properties under development 6,112,121 7,379,305
FEME Properties for sale 2,712,658 1,801,339
8,824,779 9,180,644
HE A DT Analysis of leasehold lands:
M1A1H As at 1 January
AREE Carrying amount 2,229,134 2,542,002
M12A31H As at 31 December
BRmEE Carrying amount 2,260,945 2,229,134
H2019F1 A1H#E  BELHHEREER Effective from 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of leasehold
BB IR E YR 551657 AR AR 2= 17 lands is measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
2 TERFARESEE - FIHREE depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual values are
TDIRAE LTI ETHEBEETE - determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold land
EE R 20204 2019812 A31 B M &t component. No depreciation charge on the leasehold lands has
FlerEE - METERX - been taken into account the estimated residual values as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.
MEGEMNTERES - 22 BOEF The inventory of properties are located in the PRC and Hong Kong.
EERPYEARK3809,041,0007T (2019 Included in the amount are properties under development for sale
£ AR#1,097,767,0007T) © T8 HA# R R of RMB3,809,041,000 (2019: RMB1,097,767,000) which are expected
HHIREF AT A% T REIE o to be completed and realised more than twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.
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23.

24,
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BRTPUESEUE®

HE2020F12A31HIEFE - EFHRAE
AR #10,109,0007C (M sE16) B E B = 1F
EWME - AEEBRAGFEMERAEEIE
B AR 19155500070 (20194 © AR E
10,939,0007T) ©

HE019F12A3BLLEE  RELES
AR #156,704000 TR EE R T XE
BEZREHEZRRASREHRER
EREMEME18) ©

FE W AR AR e HL At R WK LA TR
(e
FEMEREERARTEANEHE - D&
)2 ) 118 T 18 540 A B R 450 0 AR —
B B B0 A XA o BT E
EXBAATEAESEERHNFYAL
ERAHMEHRIHRE - EPETHH
(3%Z5%) REBRNEESERERAMA
BERBEFEAESEEREN -

23.

24,

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/
PROPERTIES FOR SALE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
building of RMB10,109,000 (note 16) was transferred to properties
for sale. The Group recognised impairment loss on properties for
sales of RMB191,555,000 (2019: RMB10,939,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, completed properties
for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB156,704,000
were transferred to investment properties (note 18) upon change
in use as evidenced by signing of relevant tenancy agreements.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties in the PRC.
Consideration in respect of properties sold is paid in accordance
with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements,
normally within 90 days from the date of agreement. Certain
property buyers used their housing fund contributions to pay
for the consideration through the application to the Housing
Provident Fund Bureau and certain portion of consideration (3% to
5%) will be settled by the Housing Provident Fund Bureau upon the
release of building ownership certificate to the property buyers.

20204F 2019%F
2020 2019
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

Y555 E P S U AR RN (B 5Ea) Trade receivables from sales of properties
(note a) 18,401 1,550
FEU AR & 28 (i sEb) Lease receivables (note b) 23,457 23,566
H I s ~ 1248 RFBENFIE  Other receivables, deposits, and prepayments 146,438 80,758
BN EERS Refundable deposits paid - 15,067
RED (FF5EC) Guarantee deposits (note c) 77,738 82,739
m) 4k 8 P A TR AN FROB Prepayments to suppliers 17,082 15,766
A E L IE Prepaid other taxes 112,219 107,139
m—%& % =5 2R (FisEd) Advance to a third party (note d) 75,113 174,742
470,448 501,327
B REVRE S (M FE) Less: Long-term guarantee deposits (note c) - (82,739)
TMENEEE NS R Amount shown under current assets 470,448 418,588

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

NFRIE () PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
BiRE - Notes:
a. M2020F 128318 * REAZF A DM EIK a. As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables from contracts with customers

BR XA AR #18401,0007T (20194 : AR
1,550,0007T) °

b. HEKEEFEMS  AKEERAEEH
RS R F ok M (L0 AR AR T B TR
ERIERFERKEE - REBIZEREUK
R EEERREERR - BKREEFR

amounted to RMB18,401,000 (2019: RMB1,550,000).

b. For lease receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the expected credit losses on individual trade debtors
balances. The credit loss on lease receivables is considered as

BEEBAWE /W TERX ° insignificant.
c ZeBERE TEIARNIMNHRES - C. The amounts represent the guarantee deposits paid to certain trust

ERARSEEREERNER - ARK
35,106,000 7T & A R ¥ 42,632,000 7T 1R & &
(2019 % © AR ¥ 37,364,000 T & A R ¥
45,375,0007C ) FBEAMR 2021 81 A 202149 A
fEER o IRBEFTAR2019512 31 BH3ER

d  ZEJFAEEMRBHER —FAKE -
BREZEEANEERENERE °

UTRRERERARRATL XS EDN
B2 5 e U AR SR AR B D AT

companies, as the security for loans provided to the Group. Guarantee
deposits of RMB35,106,000 and RMB42,632,000 (2019: RMB37,364,000
and RMB45,375,000) are expected to be released in January 2021 and
September 2021. The guarantee deposits were included in non-current
assets at 31 December 2019.

d. The advance is unsecured and expected to be recovered within one year.
The advance comprises mainly earnest money for potential projects.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on the
date of delivery of the properties to the customers at the end of
each reporting period.

20204 20194

2020 2019

ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

0&30H 0 to 30 days - 450
31%290H 31 to 90 days 2,491 =
91£180H 91 to 180 days 14,641 =
181%365H 181 to 365 days 204 =
HRIm—F Over 1 year 365 1,100
18,401 1,550

NEREHRANEURERETEEHZEHH
WEEAESEHATNRENERER
MABRERBLIBREREREEARE
BEEN - KEEBEREA R BN R
LEREBRER @ REARPEBREANM
1% U R R R - AL E 20204F X 20194F
12A31BIEFE - I &5 EUER TR R
B8 o

B R820204F 22019412 A31 B &9 FE I BR 3%
K A W 5k TE R (B BT (5 A 1 B BT A
38(B) °

The trade receivables at the end of each reporting period mainly
related to those buyers who applied for the Housing Provident
Fund contributions to pay for the consideration and the final
portion will be settled upon the release of building ownership
certificate to the buyers. No impairment loss on trade receivables
was provided during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
taking into account the past low default rate and the concentration
risk is limited because the customer base is large and unrelated.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 38(B).
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25. BURFEERRRAIE 25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS
TR20204F K 20194 12 A 31 B #Y FE I IE 5= ik Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders as at 31
BREZBEEIEZSME - BT - 28K December 2020 and 2019 were non-trade in nature, unsecured,
RIREREE - interest-free and repayable on demand.
26. SRHBITER BITHEEBK  26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
B4 BALANCES AND CASH
20204F 2019%F
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wk In relation to:
R BB E R (Msra) Mortgage loans applied by customers (note a) 231,103 51,012
FEBEBB TN Security deposit for workers of property
RiEE (HI5Eb) projects (note b) 1,470 13,233
232,573 64,245
FiEE - Notes:
a. RRBREIRITIFRDERBR A BIRIBER a. The restricted bank deposits are secured for the mortgage loans applied

MR - YERRTEEPIEEEMEE
B RIIBE RIS -

b. WERBHREIAB ARAREETERIIRE -
& TRITFRFRRZRARITES - A
M RMAERE QRN AREEA N RE
BIHSNBRTAEREZSHT X8
RYIIA B TR ARRR o

A 90 B R 648 17 A T B R
B o

RITRBRRIRE

RITRBIRERMTIZMEGE -

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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by the customers and will be released upon the banks obtained the
building ownership certificate from the customers as a pledge for the
mortgage loans.

b. The property development project companies are required by the
relevant PRC regulations to place certain bank deposits in restricted bank
accounts and they will be utilised to compensate for the construction
workers in case the contractors of the project companies failed to pay for
the salaries of those workers. They will be released upon the completion
of the property projects.

The Group's restricted bank deposits carry interest at prevailing
market rates.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates.



AR PR R MY &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. 7EARFFEHEZHEASR

BZE20200F12A31HIEFE - ARRES
AREHERESHEDEREEENAR
AIfE#E 2 &t B A FlSplendor Keen Limited
([ Splendor Keen ] - & [& H If{ B 2 7] 1 78
[ Splendor Group J) M) &2 E 21T A o &
ARAEHEETHEBS HETER - £5
Tt ESEEEERBERAIEBE
+_EARHE r BEEBHESEAFEL
EZHEMRR - WA BRI R P E
B2 -

20206 12 A31H1% » AEBEH—FZB T
F=REMNEXNBREBEERZ UWEE
Splendor KeenfI ik #E ([ L EEIE]) - B
HEBBEMFBERNARRR20215F4814
HX&2021F6 A1BMRE °

R Splendor Group A B AFHEL EMEE X
BEXBHEANAT

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

27. A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors of the
Company resolved to dispose of the entire issued share capital
in Splendor Keen Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Splendor Keen”, together with its subsidiaries,
“Splendor Group”) which carried out of property investment
business in Hong Kong. Negotiations with several interested parties
have taken place. The Directors expect it is highly probable that the
assets and liabilities attributable to the business will be sold within
twelve months and classified them as a disposal group held for
sale and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group entered into a formal
conditional sale and purchase agreements with an independent
third party to dispose the equity interest in Splendor Keen (“the
Disposal”). Details of the Disposal are set forth in the Company’s
Announcements on 14 April 2021 and 1 June 2021.

The major classes of assets and liabilities in Splendor Group
classified as held for sale are as follows:

20204
2020
AR®F
RMB’000
FEME(HEa) Investment properties (note a) 712,027
M - B &R (EEa) Property, plant and equipment (note a) 91,498
BRARBEEFABZNEREE Financial asset at FVTPL 7,963
H b eI RIE Other receivables 1,516
RITEB RS Bank balances and cash 194
PEAEFELENEERE Total assets classified as held for sale 813,198
Hh fER 5B Other payables 952
RITEFR (M 5ED) Bank loans (note b) 390,134
BELERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 8,020
DA EHENBERE Total liabilities classified as held for sale 399,106
BI5E Notes:
a. WEYEREBFEERTRITIEARNEFRE a. The investment properties and building were pledged to a bank to
RIRTTREE RO IR - secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.
b. REAEEA  REABRITREREFX b. The amounts were secured, interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank

([BHBETREREFE]) BIMEFKR19%E Offered Rates (“HIBOR”) plus 1% to 1.5% and repayable within one year.

15%5T 8 WEAR—FREE -

EEW}EE%’;E%Q;E ] 39



iR e MRS R MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

28. BYGRMREEMENRBEURE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

8 A ACCRUALS

20204 2019%F
2020 2019
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FESBRFR Trade payables 287,558 58,905
ERREE Retention payables 992 1,399
&R B Interest payable 57,722 39,997
H b e~ 508 M ERTE A Other payables and accruals 357,459 46,366
Hh pE S 718 Other tax payables 118,147 56,029

WiE— B AR ENRE Consideration payables for acquisition of
a subsidiary 83,308 158,765
BETS Deposit received - 21,781
eSS AN Accrued construction costs 219,995 346,509
SFEAREE Provision for litigation 54,804 _
1,179,985 729,751

UTRRBERRZEZAR2INNAE

I A~ BR R BR e 9 AT

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables

presented based on invoice date at the end of reporting period.

2020F 2019%F

2020 2019

ARBTF T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0Z60H 0 to 60 days 34,835 32,003
612=180H 61 to 180 days 120,052 10,016
1812365H 181 to 365 days 109,104 6,144
HaE—F Over 1 year 23,567 10,742
287,558 58,905

'I 40 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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BHERE 29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MIEEHE Sales of properties 5,311,608 5,307,480

REZE 2020128318 IEFE - 5t AFE
MEHNBBEEHRMEEERADI A
A R 756,162,000 7 (2019 F : A R &
1,166,215,0007T) ©

FEOHRANABSENE R RGN
L

AEEREFPRIEEHEMMERZET
RADEEITHE - AFPWEE HEED
5%ZE100% ° FIRTTHBRBEFTNEFL K
BEREFPRNARITELRABTENEED
BTIRE - Z2MFEBHRNEFRBE
RIMENEHIER  TERNEBERMER
EHEAERENERE -

AEERSBNFEESEARERD -
B EERREENTEHKESHEL
HE - BRI ERAEEEERE - BRI
FBFANEEBRASANBEESRNELENA
AEN  HEFERRBASERERT
MENEFEEEETPREN -

AEEEERBEEMBREELFE 155N
ATRERE  BYEZEEHRAENER
R EHES —FATKNEORERD

Revenue from sale of properties during the year ended 31
December 2020 that were included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year were RMB756,162,000 (2019:
RMB1,166,215,000).

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 5% to 100% of the contract value from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement while
construction work of properties is still ongoing. The customers
who apply mortgage loans provided by the banks will settle the
remaining consideration of the total contract value once the
customers meet the requirements of the banks. Such advance
payment schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period until the customers
obtain control of the completed properties.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain
significant financing component and accordingly the amount of
consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics of the Group.
As this accrued interest increases the amount of the contract
liability during the period of construction, it increases the amount
of revenue recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and
has not considered the financing component of contracts which
are expected to be completed within one year from the date of
payments made by customers.
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30. TR ES
BEAAFHEEERE((RERE )T
A& sk - AN A RIRR20179F12 81 B A&
it A 35177284 58200,000,00078 7T (FEE R A
R #169,353,0007T ) #) A AR (& 5 ([ AT 3R A%
&) o I RBREFZREFNRIEL B
B¥ELF—k o BH B AZETEERE3
F o TR ESR T AR AENIZERE
BRR022B TS IR R ESFEBRK AR A
L@k (TEBmRpD ) - SR E%TEE
REZZHAI=@EEEA 1 (TEHRE]) -
ABMREFETEAIBRRESASEN
100% * 37T AR E S TS B F 58 (40
B4 1) £199,000,000/8 7T (HHE R AR
#168,506,0007T ) ©

VAT 23 TR IR AR 25 1) 3 5K

AREASEBAERNBRAATANRHES2
Ao AT ESERKEBRRD - H
AR E S A E R B AR R 2=
BEEREHARFIREERTHE LMARA
HATRDGKELARFRERTE - WAL

EORTEE A -

BRESNEBELEETEHFIRELAE
BRSEHEBRARARMNETEIME K
D BEBRFBREEERTEANT A
BATEATIESR B  RARRAE L ER
BAD KR T IR E A A 7]k E K 8B
RERSEENEN  HERRHABE
AR B BRI T B 0% B - LAHRR A
AABCREZHBROMBOHE TRER
R TR A SR A RE « &
TTAR ¥ 5L PP 14 5K 7T 83 460 B X 48R Y 8 6 BT
REBEHBEOOEARESFARREHRRE
RIEER R MHERBETHRREPNERT
B 90% K B 18 1T A A fn AR ER 2 BOR
% o
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into by the Company
with the placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), the Company issued
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) with principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) to the placees on
1 December 2017. The Convertible Bonds borne interest at the rate
of 9% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears and the maturity
date was 3 years from issue date. The Convertible Bonds entitled
the placees to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Conversion Shares”) at a conversion price of HK$0.22 per
share. The conversion period was from the date of issue until the
third business day prior to maturity (the “Conversion Period”). The
issue price of the Convertible Bonds was at 100% of the principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds and the net proceeds from the
issue of the Convertible Bonds, after deducting commission, was
HK$199,000,000 (equivalent to RMB168,506,000).

Below are the principal terms of the Convertible Bonds:

Each placee shall have the right to convert the Convertible Bonds
at any time during the Conversion Period, in whole or in part,
into Conversion Shares provided that they may not exercise the
conversion rights as to such number of Convertible Bonds the
conversion of which would trigger a mandatory offer obligation or
cause the Company to be unable to meet the minimum public float
requirement under relevant Listing Rules.

The conversion price shall from time to time be subject to
adjustment upon occurrence of certain events including any
consolidation or sub-division of the shares of the Company, issue
of any shares credited as fully paid by way of capitalisation of profit
or reserves, making any capital distribution to the shareholders or
granting the shareholders rights to acquire for cash assets of the
Company or its subsidiaries, offer of new shares to shareholders for
conversion by way of rights, or grant to shareholders any options
or warrants to subscribe for new shares, at a price which is less than
90% of the market price at the date of the announcement of such
offer or grant, issue of any securities wholly for cash which by their
terms are convertible into or exchangeable for or carry rights of
conversion for new shares; or issue of any shares wholly for cash
at price per share which is less than 90% of the market price at the
date of the announcement of the terms of such issue.
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

REDEMPTION

The Company may, at any time during the period commencing
from the first anniversary of the issue date up to the fifth business
day prior to maturity, having given not less than 30 days’ notice
to the holders of the Convertible Bonds, redeem in whole or in
part of the Convertible Bonds then outstanding unless previously
redeemed, converted and cancelled, each Convertible Bond will
be redeemed upon its maturity at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with the accrued and unpaid interest at
maturity. The holders of the Convertible Bonds do not have the
right to demand early redemption before maturity.

The movement of the debt component and the derivative
components (including conversion option derivative and the
Company'’s early redemption option derivative) of the Convertible
Bonds for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out
below:

BxEBD PTERD et
Debt Derivative

component components Total

ARETIT ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

720191 1R At 1 January 2019 25,120 67,969 93,089
DRERBRF & Effective interest recognised 2,841 = 2,841
FRER SRR Converted to equity during the year (2,593) (3,592) (6,185)
B Repayment (2,565) = (2,565)
R BEES Change in fair value — (64,377) (64,377)
BE 3, /B 18 Exchange loss 597 = 597

7201912 A31B K At 31 December 2019

202051 A 18 and 1 January 2020 23,400 - 23,400
ERERERNE Effective interest recognised 762 - 762
B Repayment (11,775) - (11,775)
ET Gy Exchange gain (1,071) - (1,071)
72020F 12 A31H At 31 December 2020 11,316 - 11,316

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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30. AR ES ()
RETEE  EHEBOOARBEDIER
RATETERSREENANETRKRS
TRERENE  FRTREE N2 BINE
EIE TS AR E S BT AN S E TR
REZFHAILNESEEET -

R20184F5 848 ~ 201845 A7 H K& 2018
F5H30B  ATABRBRELFFEAR
AARIZEHERBAN  NITFEASEHE
170,000,000 7T (#8 & 72 A R # 139,114,000
Jo) WA ARE S IE T EBRE - 02018
Fs5H7H ~ 2018F5 A8H K& 2018%F6 A1
H - HERRRESFEE ABRKE RET
272,727,272 0% ~ 45,454,545 % 2 454,545,454
AR AR E) AR o

R2019F8 A22H - BEF AR ESFFEE A
MARREHETEM  UITEAESEH
3,000,000/ 7T (#8 & 7 A R #2,697,0007T )
B AT IRARE 5 IE TN iR o 70201998 H22
B HEARRESITE ABRE KRBT
13,636,271 B& A Bl & @ AR ©

HZE200F 12831BILEFE » FTAE MK
EMABRRESFDHEH  ERARK
11,316,000 7T &) 7K #5 1< © 7 20204F 12 A 29
H BE5FEAREARRRLBEEER
([Z2FE]) - RIEHRRRBEERESEH
Fig o ZE2HCR2021F3 81 BREE -
BRAFBHN AR AINR2020512H308 -
20212828 20212811 H Kk202143
A12BRRE °

EERAE ARFNREERETETA
R2019F 12 A3 HW AR BELETERX -
MR EEREE R A B ESD HE
&R e

R AR ESH BRI D ROTES
AEBHNAREBEER2019F12H31HA
BREFTESONARBEEIIHESS
EBUEEGEMBERITERQRME
THEET - fTEBINHERE BN
HEEEER - ZEXMAEEH ASE
WEWT ©
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

At the date of issuance, the fair value of debt component was
calculated based on the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the required
yield, which was determined with reference to the credit rating
of the issuer of the convertible bonds upon completion of the
Acquisition and remaining time to maturity.

On 4 May 2018, 7 May 2018 and 30 May 2018, certain convertible
bondholders have given written notice to the Company to
exercise the conversion right under the convertible bonds with
an aggregated principal amount of HK$170,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB139,114,000). On 7 May 2018, 8 May 2018 and 1 June
2018,272,727,272, 45,454,545 and 454,545,454 ordinary shares
of the Company were allotted and issued to the respective
convertible bondholders, respectively.

On 22 August 2019, certain convertible bondholders had given
written notice to the Company to exercise the conversion right
under the convertible bonds with an aggregated principal amount
of HK$3,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,697,000). On 22 August 2019,
13,636,271 ordinary shares of the Company were allotted and
issued to the respective convertible bondholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all of the outstanding
convertible bonds were matured, of which RMB11,316,000 were
unsettled. On 29 December 2020, the Bondholder filed a Winding
Up Petition against the Company (the “Petition”). Following the
repayment of the outstanding balances subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the Petition was withdrawn on 1 March
2021. Details are set out in the Company’s Announcement on 30
December 2020, 2 February 2021, 11 February 2021 and 12 March
2021.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the Company's
early redemption option derivative at 31 December 2019 were
insignificant, and such rights to early redemption option has been
expired following the maturity of the convertible bonds.

The fair value of each of the debt and derivative components of
the convertible bonds on initial recognition and the fair value
of the derivative components of the convertible bonds as at 31
December 2019 were determined by the Directors with reference
to the valuation performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an
independent professional valuer. Binomial Option Pricing model
was used for valuation of the derivative components. The key
inputs used in the model are disclosed in below.
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30. AR ES (&) 30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
R2019F12H31H AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
20194
12H318  2AnfEE (CHEESE P
AnfBE EB#& F 2 AR BAN AR A SR
Fair value Valuation
At 31 December  Fair value techniques and Significant
2019  hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
ARETTT
RMB'000
SRAs
Financial liabilities
AR ES - E=R ZIEAXAREEERR T8 B 1866.25% -
—PTEERS Level 3 BE(E : 014878 T EZRAELER LT
Convertible bonds 1If(8 : 02287T RNEIBA R E (B EE)
— derivative components BEEIHEFH - 092%F
TEHAR I8 : 66.25% = RS A K AR B BUT
R FIZE - 1.84% BEH W AEZE o

B &
Bz E AR RIE

Binomial option pricing FIREIEWR
model

Stock price: HK$0.148 Expected volatility of

Exercise price: HK$0.22 66.25% taking into

Life to maturity: 0.92 years account the historical
Expected volatility: 66.25% volatility of the
Risk-free rate: 1.84% comparable listed
Dividend yield: nil companies (note)

Risk-free rate was
based on Hong Kong
sovereign yield.

Dividend yield taking into
account the historical
dividend payment of
the Company.

FMisE - Y8715 A 8 TE AR 1B s AT sE B BT R R 1R Note: A slight increase in the expected volatility used in isolation would result
FOTEBI O AR BETERNBEN - K2 in a significant increase in the fair value measurement of the derivative
TRAR ° components of convertible bonds, and vice versa.

EE%}EM%?E%Q% ] 45



R B B ISR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. BE&

31. BORROWINGS

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITER(MI5Ea) Bank loans (note a) 1,028,912 1,271,391
REFE=HHER(FizED) Loans from third parties (note b) 2,898,420 3,143,057
3,927,332 4,414,448
B A EARELEZ Less: bank loan included in liabilities of

HEHARNEENRITER disposal group classified as held for
(BF5E27) sale (note 27) (390,134) -
3,537,198 4,414,448

G

146

B 281,024680000 8 T (HHE R AR
862,412,0007T) (20194F : 1,134,108,000/8 JT *
HERAR1,016891,0007T) KR 1T E F H
REBEREEBR - AEEERBERES
BREERD BN - BITERDBIRE BRI
[EEE 37 B AR 3 A0 FI 2R 1.00% 2 1.509%(2019
F - FHRITRZERSFE S INEFE1.80%
EERBBITRERBFESMNFFE3.00%)
TR - AREENAEBIRE WEFRS -
WHEREBLEE(RARRBEALRARA
AIEEE - HER2019F9 78 EE) RES
SEERAR[EREERDER -BREE
B % (2 BE 58 A 5 90% N R IZ 4T &2+ (AR A &
AEEE - HER2019F9A3BFT)HES
10% ©

B A R¥166,500,0007C (20195 : AR
254,500,0007T ) KIIRITE KB AN EEEH B
B o f§ & 1%6.40%H) [E & 4 F = (20194 : 7
F6.50%%6.55%) 58, WHANEBE T it
RERE P YR o

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes:

Bank loans amounting to HK$1,024,680,000 (equivalent to
RMB862,412,000) (2019: HK$1,134,108,000 equivalent to
RMB1,016,891,000) were borrowed by the Group in Hong Kong. The
Group is required to make instalment settlements according to the loan
repayment schedule. The bank loans are interest bearing at HIBOR plus
1.00% to 1.50% (2019: HIBOR plus 1.80% to HIBOR plus 3.00%) per annum.
The borrowings are secured by investment properties of the Group, and
are guaranteed by Mr. Pan Weiming, a connected person of the Company
being a former director of the Company who resigned on 7 September
2019, and @R EEABR AR (“Fusheng Group”). Fusheng Group is
owned as to 90% by Mr Pan Weiming and 10% by Ms Chen Weihong, a
former director of the Company who resigned on 3 September 2019.

Bank loans with total amount of RMB166,500,000 (2019: RMB254,500,000)
were borrowed by the Group in the PRC. The borrowings are at fixed rates
of 6.40% (2019: ranging from 6.50% to 6.55%) per annum and secured by
certain land and properties under development of the Group.
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31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:
REE=ZFERNEABERFBEHR T ° b. The carrying amounts and details of the loans from third parties are set
out below.
H &> BEEA EIRFI=E 20204 20194F
Effective
Other loans Pledge of assets interest rate 2020 2019
ARBT T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEBEOEENEMER MERAEZES THERA 20196 : 14.0%
Other loans with repurchase AR REE AT G 2019: 14.0%
obligations Equity interests of certain
subsidiaries transferred to
lenders as collateral - 10,000
TABREDEERNEMER TEH NTF6.0%ZE15.4%
Other loans without repurchase N/A (2019 :
obligations 6.0%Z13.0%)
Range from 6.0% to 15.4%
(2019: 6.0% to 13.0%) 2,898,420 3,133,057
2,898,420 3,143,057
sk - Notes:
1. R20205E 12 31 Bt A E R84 1. Included in other loans balance as at 31 December 2020,

BEH AR 2,892,000,0007CHIFIE
2021 FEIHY - RERFEAG I 2022F
F)Hg -

R2019F 12 A31 Bt AR B A&
BEH ARE2,032,000,0007CHIFIE
SR AEBR2020F 2 BB & - &
FEHE 2021 B H -

72019512 A31 B AEA R ¥10,000,000
TTREMBRIEHE TEEAR RS
B E A RRENETER - (ERER
BE BB KB A RIE R E A
—H5  WEBARKNET A LRED
EET(EEAR c AEERKNETEER
FERRBRAETSBERNEEETE
FEARMRE - RAFERBEFE
NE B R E T S B A AR Il -
[N ENGIE G Y= =)
BAR - BE2020512A318LEEE -
CREC BB - B A TR AR
AR E R ERBR ©

KREE=ZFAHEREHEARE
2,842,349,000 7T ( 2019 F : A R ¥
2,930,1450007C) HEER & E - BER
REE - BE - ERERLE  BREL
7+ REER T E(HBAD R
T IREIER o

approximately RMB2,892 million will mature in 2021 and the
remaining balances will mature in 2022.

Included in other loans balance as at 31 December 2019,
approximately RMB2,032 million will be settled by the Group
at their maturity dates in 2020 and the remaining balances will
mature in 2021.

2. Other loans amounting to RMB10 million as at 31 December
2019 represented trust loans provided by certain trust companies
to subsidiaries of the Group. As part of the securities for the
repayment obligations of the subsidiaries under the loan
financing arrangements, certain percentage of the equity
interests of the subsidiaries have been transferred to the trust
companies. The Group will repurchase the equity interests which
have been transferred to the trust companies at a pre-determined
amount at the date of maturity of the trust loans. The Group
maintained the control over those subsidiaries and they are
considered as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group during
the current and prior year. The amount was fully settled during
the year ended 31 December 2020 but the charges on equity
interests of the subsidiaries have not yet been released.

3. Loans from third parties amounting to an aggregate of
RMB2,842,349,000 (2019: RMB2,930,145,000) are guarantee by
Fusheng Group, Fujian Fullsun Group, Tongda, Mr. Pan Weiming,
Ms Chen Weihong and Mr. Pan Haoran, all being related parties of
the Company.

EE%}EM%?E%Q% ] 47
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31. BE %)

31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

20204 20196
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
PNEREREERINEED The carrying amounts of the borrowings that
FREEZRN T HIHEEE do not contain a repayment on demand
clause are repayable:
—E R Within one year 3,058,542 2,032,461
ZN—F - BETBERF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 6,378 1,365,096
3,064,920 3,397,557
BEREREBIERNEITEE  The carrying amounts of bank loans that
EEAE(RBEEE R contain a repayment on demand clause
AR TS EAR(EE (shown under current liabilities) but
repayable:
—FA Within one year 862,412 =
—F R A Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years - 1,008,278
4 = F A AR Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years - 8,613
3,927,332 4,414,448
B EFADEARIELREZ Less: bank loan included in liabilities of
HEARK A ERR disposal group classified as held
TER(MEE27) for sale (note 27) (390,134) =
B B ARBAGEN—ERRE  Less: amounts due within one year/repayable on
S RESGE TR 2 FA demand shown under current liabilities (3,530,820) (3,049,352)
R—F1& R HFE Amounts due after one year 6,378 1,365,096

'I 48 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

20205 20194

2020 2019

AR® T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EEREE Secured borrowings 3,844,694 3,349,910
HEIRIREE Unsecured borrowings 82,638 1,064,538
3,927,332 4,414,448

20204 20194

2020 2019

ARETT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEREER Variable rate borrowings 862,412 1,382,216
EREE Fixed rate borrowings 3,064,920 3,032,232
3,927,332 4,414,448

REBEMREENERNREEDNT :

The range of effective interest rates of borrowings at the end of
each reporting period were as follows:

20205 20194F
2020 2019

BERMNE(ZF) -
EEEE
ﬁ/%\{%%

Effective interest rate (per annum):
Variable-rate borrowings
Fixed-rate borrowings

1.2%-2.8%
6.0%-15.4%

4.2%-10.4%
6.0%-14.0%

BRAAKEEMEE LR T PriE fiER

B RFB D BB M E39 Je44 -

Details of Group’s pledge of the assets and the guarantee provided
by the related parties are set out in notes 39 and 44, respectively.

EE@@H%?@%@% 1 49
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32.

33.

HEAE 32. LEASE LIABILITIES
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREEAE Lease liabilities payable:
—E R Within one year 196 1,122
—E R EHIR Within one year but not more than two years 76 459
272 1,581
B oREBERRIEAR Less: amount due from settlement with
FEREN SR 12 months shown under
current liabilities (196) (1,122)
IEmBI A ERTR 218 A Amount due from settlement after 12 months
BEHEENTRE shown under non-current liabilities 76 459
fig A 33. SHARE CAPITAL
BHEE k| ZEEEH
Number
of shares Amount Equivalent to
TExT ARETTT
HKS$'000 RMB'000
FRE{E.01 S T B Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
VERE Authorised:
R2019F1 /18 ~ At 1 January 2019,
2019F12H318 - 31 December 2019,
2020F1 A1 H & 1 January 2020 and
2020%F12H31H 31 December 2020 50,000,000,000 500,000 423,381
BEITRAT : Issued and fully paid:
20191 H1H At 1 January 2019 11,351,749,796 113,517 95,916
sEIR AT AR E 25 (M 5E30) Conversion of Convertible Bonds
(note 30) 13,636,271 136 115
20198128318 - At 31 December 2019,
20201 H1H K 1 January 2020 and
2020%12H31H 31 December 2020 11,365,386,067 113,653 96,031

'I 5 O FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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34, EERIE 34. DEFERRED TAXATION

AT AEZE2020F12A31BIEFEDHER
MERNELEHREEE(BE) RES

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements during the year ended 31 December
2020:

THEEHR
REMEN BRENER GENEN TENEAR
HEBR AAEBEREH SHAEEANE ER HEFE  WEIR @zt
Fair value Temporary Impairment
change of Interest differences losson Withholding
investment  on contract onLAT  properties  taxof PRC
Taxlosses  properties liabilities  provision forsales subsidiaries Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
201951 A1A At1 January 2019 17679 (222876) 7499 27,737 - (15067 (185028)
STAGR) ER Credit (charge) to profit or loss 8953 (38861) 1656 (9273) (2,735) (6,984) (47.244)
12019F 124318 % At31 December 2019 and
2000%1R1R 1 January 2020 26632 (261,737) 9,155 18,464 (2,735)  (22,051)  (232,272)
STAUNRR ) B Credit (charge) to profit or loss (26,632) 80,635 5,121 (25,527) 2,735 - 36,332
ERT DI ARELE Transfer to liabilities classified as
HaR(IEEY) held for sale (note 27) - 8,020 - - - , 8,020
[ 5 % Exchange adjustments (-) 517 () - (-) (-) 517
12020%128318 At 31 December 2020 - (172,565) 14,276 (7,063) - (22,051) (187,403)

RENGEFBMAERME - & TREH
HEENBBECEE - AT RAHBEER
B RIRERRAESH T -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
taxation balances for financial reporting purposes:

20204 20194

2020 2019

ARET T AREETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EEFRIBEE Deferred tax assets 122,825 76,896
IEEFEH B & Deferred tax liabilities (310,228) (309,168)
(187,403) (232,272)

REFRBETCEMSRHE - B2008F1H1H
#B o R BB B A B AT R ER A B = R A R
BASMNIENE - AR AEEATE 5D
R FE A BE RS B E RS TA ] B SRR
AAJ BR[O - M AR ARA B TERR AP
B B B A &1 202045 12 A 31 B BT B B
4 A B #908,804,000 7T (20194F : AR #
849,421,0007C ) $H B8 MY B B = RERTHIR IR E 7R
7 o

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB908,804,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB849,421,000),
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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34, IRERIE (&) 34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

R2020F 128318 - AEBERBBELE
KRB AT IAEE L A R%101,469,0007T
(20194 (&£ &5 ) « AR ®46,502,0007T )
AIMERBAEREEEEFERARNR
A o 2020512 A31 8 © AN&EE R
ERHPREENADATEEEARE
489,146,0007T (20194 : A R # 203,330,000
JT) B AT IEEE A A R 8 R 2R A E
MmME&ERZAFEB o BR2020F12 A 31
B BEREBEHEEEQ019F : AR
106,528,0007C ) ERELETHIBEZE o P BIFL
TE 518 A R #4,949,0007T (20194 © AR
11,165,0007C ) B 72020512 31 H L &
fE R o HEoh © FR2020F12A31 B IEFE -
AEEFED BT EBARELEHBEEENF
Bl E A 2 FIEE 1B AR #106,528,0007T °
FR A 4 V2 TR RI FE A BT /B 2 &) A R R FI B AR
B MU ERENESEENREBEAR
#101,469,0007C (20194 : (K& ) AR
#546,502,0007T ) R EH AR R B E £ MR IE
B8 A R #5489,146,0007T (20194F : AR
96,802,00070 ) FERRIEIEFH T E £ ©

RIBTBEMEBEN R - FEHRERRR
FREELNRERRBEEENUATFE
JEm

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of approximately RMB101,469,000 (2019 (restated):
RMB46,502,000) available indefinitely for offsetting against future
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. As at 31
December 2020, the Group also had unused tax losses arising in
the PRC of RMB489,146,000 (2019: RMB203,330,000) and such tax
losses can be carried forward for a maximum period of five years
which are available for offsetting future profits. As at 31 December
2020, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
tax losses (2019: RMB106,528,000). PRC tax losses of RMB4,949,000
(2019: RMB11,165,000) has been expired during the year ended 31
December 2020. In addition, tax losses of RMB106,528,000 arising
in the PRC for which the Group recognised for deferred tax asset
previously had been reversed during the year ended 31 December
2020. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of RMB101,469,000 (2019 (restated): RMB46,502,000) arising
in Hong Kong and remaining tax losses of RMB489,146,000 (2019:
RMB96,802,000) arising in the PRC due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams of the related subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the end of each
reporting period will expire in the following years:

20204 20194

2020 2019

AR®T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

20204F 2020 - 4,949
20214F 2021 4,864 1,432
20226F 2022 7,260 3,124
20234 2023 102,204 39,056
202445 2024 84,053 48,241
20254F 2025 290,765 =
489,146 96,802

1 5 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

20205 HERH FARE  FRMEE BHEZENEAR R2020F
1A1A (RLEEER) ReRE BERE BEHENAER ERZR 12A318
Transfer to
Financing  Finance cost liabilities

At Inception cash flows incurred classified At

1January (derecognition) during during as held Exchange  31December

2020 of lease the year the year for sales difference 2020

ARBT T ARBT TR ARBT TR ARBT T ARBT TR ARBT TR ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

JERTTIE, Interest payable 39,997 - (380,330) 398,055 - - 57,722

E Borrowings 4,414,448 - (361,019) 16,262 (390,134) (142,359) 3,537,198

ARES Convertible bonds 23,400 - (11,775) 762 - (1,071) 11,316

HEAE Lease liabilities 1,581 791 (2,253) 266 - (113) 272

4,479,426 791 (755,377) 415,345 (390,134) (143,543) 3,606,508

20195 ERRE  FAMEE En  BRIAR 0195

AR HERR  RORE  REMA DABEERD f%  EXZEE 12A38

Financing  Finance cost Changein

At cash flows incurred fairvalue  Conversion At

1 January Inception during during during o convertible Exchange 31 December

2019 of lease the year the year the year bonds difference 2019

ARBTT  ARBTE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

(Ht3t30)
(note 30)
FERHI 8 Interest payable 24837 - (526617) 541,777 - - - 39,997
& Borrowings 4306419 - 65,731 - - - 22,98 4414448
EMFEER  Amountsdueto
REHE non-controlling

shareholders 93,263 - (93,263) - - - - -

ERES  Convertible bonds 25,120 - (2565) 2841 - (2593) 597 23400
W#RES  Derivative components

1TSS of convertible bonds 67,969 o o = (64377) (3,592) - -

HEBE Lease liabilities 1,681 760 (1,021) 161 - - - 1,581

4539289 760 (557,735) 544779 (64377) (6,185) 22,895 4479426

KEEE  BANE - B IEERRRN
B ABREESLEEABNRESRESR
EEARERERTEENEMIERS
B ONNMEREEEERE -

The cash flows from borrowings, interest payable, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders, convertible bonds and lease
liabilities include, the net amount of additions and repayment of
borrowings, interest paid and repayment of lease liabilities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5

153
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36. BB A A 36.
gguﬁzﬂ%—ﬁewﬁ%@ﬁu&ﬁ%iéf;%&
HIE
HZE2019F12A31HILLEE
R2019F 9208 @+ AEBRI R EE
Wk B AEBEE - ZBEE A EM
EBREXERAR(TENER]) KEH
LWMmESEFREARAR(IFILMIE
512 IR R P L IES &R EIMN
BRIAXHBRENER  HeREAAR
¥ 150,000,0007C ° EMERAEREEN
MEBAR - AT ESERPRES—H+
o MATEENEEKXATIMTIEE - F
BRI SIEREEWBAR -

EAXZZYRERBEEFEFBEHAL
e

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

On 20 September 2019, the Group entered into equity transfer
agreement pursuant to which the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in RIUTEREFRIBZBERAA (“Zhongshan
Zhengpei”) from a related party BEMEREXBR DA
("Guangzhou Fusheng”) and the shareholder’s loan owed
by Zhongshan Zhengpei to Guangzhou Fusheng, at a cash
consideration of RMB150,000,000. Guangzhou Fusheng is a
subsidiary of Fusheng Group. Zhongshan Zhengpei holds a piece
of land in the PRC with minimal construction costs incurred. The
transaction was accounted for as acquisition of asset.

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the above
transaction are summarised below:

HEt
Total
ARKETTT
RMB'000
EWEEEFE Net assets acquired
W BB MR Property, plant and equipment 3
BERPYIZE Properties under development 279,657
JRE LT B 0 R A R LSRR T DA K Trade and other receivables and prepayments
TR RIE 66,011
IRITHEMRIRS Bank balances and cash 9,627
JFE 1 BR 3 I ELAth B A5 FRIB A M2 Trade and other payables and accruals
fEsTE R (1,340)
JESFTISHE Income tax payable (549)
JE{ST RS SR FRIE Amount due to shareholders (109,534)
AHAE Contract liabilities (93,875)
AT A R ER R BAERE Total consideration satisfied by:
BENBEESRE Cash consideration paid 150,000
WRE S TETEAINSMHIFE ¢ Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions:
BIRERE Cash consideration paid (150,000)
BUWIBIRITEHRNIRS Bank balances and cash acquired 9,627
(140,373)

'I 5 4 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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AEBERES ARREER T HEATH
B2E ANEBRLEGRESEHS
BERERABR -

AEBEBNEAEBRER(2IEME30 - 27
DRI BEN AR ESRREE) RAR
BIHEE AELh R (B RERA R RERE) AR

AEEEEETHRTENGEE - FR/Z
ERAER -3 BEEEEH IR L
EXWFEZEER - LA RESEEBE
NERRFERER - EEBERSNE
FERER  UEREARARZTEARR
RFTR A O ELER o AR B E R E IR RE B
BOTHEHIBELEREEGN S AR
EREEAERE -

£RTH
(A) £t T EZER

37.

38.

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
convertible bonds and borrowings, as disclosed in notes 30, 27 and
31, respectively and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the management reviews
the planned construction projects proposed by engineering
department and prepares the annual budget taking into account
of the provision of funding. The management of the Group then
assesses the annual budget and consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The management of the
Company also balance its overall capital structure through issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2020%F 2019%F
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERMEE Financial assets
B AT EMNERIEE  Financial assets at amortised cost 1,521,189 1,672,635
BAREBEFTAERN Financial asset at FVTPL
BRENEE - 8,283
EEEAREBERTA Equity instrument designated at FVTOC|
Hih2Ea=miR A~ T A 500 500
cRAE Financial liabilities
b N Amortised cost 4,390,357 4,760,369

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's and the Company’s major financial instruments
include guarantee deposits, certain trade and other
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling shareholders,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, financial
assets at FVTPL, equity instrument designated at FVTOCI,
trade and certain other payables, convertible bonds and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risk assessment which analyses exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. The risks included market risk (including
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk management

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rate. There
has been no significant change to the Group's exposure
to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances, restricted bank deposits and variable rate
borrowings which carry at interest rates quoted by HIBOR.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to the fixed-rate borrowings, convertible
bonds and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances and restricted bank
deposits is not presented as the management of the Group
considers that the exposure to interest rate fluctuation is
insignificant.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk management (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the above-mentioned
variable-rate borrowings at the end of each reporting period
which was assumed to be outstanding for the whole year
and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout the
year in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50 basis
points and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss (2019: profit) for the year, after taking into
account the capitalisation of the finance costs in properties
under development, would have increased/decreased by
RMB1,972,000 (2019: decreased/increased by RMB6,572,000).

Foreign currency risk management

The Group's sales of properties and rental income are
denominated in the group entity’s respective functional
currency. However, certain bank balances, amounts due
from subsidiaries, borrowings and convertible bonds
denominated in HKS were held by the entities with the
functional currency of RMB, which expose the Group to the
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
respective reporting periods are as follow:

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets

BT HKS 103,718 22,596

=F Liabilities
BT HKS (2,796,046) (3,608,013)

AEBEHE ﬁlﬁjﬁﬁu]—i{frﬂﬂi‘t S HIA
=EREEERR - ERER
nBEZH gﬁ—r%?%ﬂ?iﬁ 5 KR f o

The Group currently does not enter into any derivative
contracts to minimise the currency risk exposure. However,
the management will consider hedging significant currency
risk should the need arise.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to the effects of fluctuation in HKS
against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in the RMB against HKS. 10% is the
sensitivity rate used in the current year when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year-end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes bank balances, amounts
due from subsidiaries, borrowings and convertible bonds.
A positive number indicates a decrease in loss for the
year (2019: increase in profit for the year) where the RMB
strengthens 10% against HKS. For a 10% weakening of the
RMB against HKS, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit or loss.

20204F 2019%F
2020 2019
AR®EF T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT HKS
FREER A (20195 ¢ Decrease in loss for the year
FERFEE ) (2019: increase in profit for the year) 269,233 358,542

FERBEEREEN

AEENEREERRRES  B5
Ko B A FEMGRIR ~ FE M SEHR AR AR R K
R~ RRHRITFERLIRITAERR MR
T AHFRERSHCERTRE
ERTHECMERAKENZS(E
ERBAZEEERVHRRNKES
HRREE © UbSN - AR EE43FT I ER -
6% B A AR SR B R A B A PR AR
XHRBBEEENEERR

HE2020F K 2019128318 » K"&
B EEE T EE RS E e
BEMAREESREERBEER

G o
AA
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Credit risk management and impairment
assessment

The Group's financial assets include guarantee deposit, trade
and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in
the statement of financial position. In addition, the Group
also exposure to credit risk from the contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantees provided by the Group as
disclosed in note 43.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group only
passed the control of property to the customer when the
consideration has been substantially received by the Group
and the Group has delegated a team to monitor the progress
for the approval of mortgage loans of customers by banks
or Housing Provident Fund Bureau. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
purchasers and the trade debts will be recovered from the
Housing Provident Fund Bureau.

Lease receivables and other receivables balances

The credit risk of lease receivables and other receivables is
managed through an internal process. The credit quality
of each counterparty is investigated before an advance is
made. The Group also actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and identifies any credit risks
in a timely manner in order to reduce the risk of a credit
related loss. Further, the Group closely monitors the financial
performance of the subsidiaries of the Company with these
relevant non-controlling shareholders. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on the outstanding balances
individually. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from related parties, advances to third parties
and amounts due from non-controlling shareholders

The Directors review the recoverable amount at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses under ECL model are made for recoverable amounts.
The Group maintains good relationship with the counter
parties and continuously monitors the financial conditions. In
view of no historical default record and the directors expect
that the general economic conditions will not significantly
changed for the 12 months after the reporting date.
Therefore, the credit rating is considered to be low credit risk
and the impairment loss under ECL model is measured on
12m ECL basis. Accordingly, no allowance for credit loss is
provided.

Restricted bank deposits and bank balances

The Group's credit risk on bank balances and restricted bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings and good reputation established in the
PRC.

Financial guarantees

For properties that are still under construction, the Group
typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with
the purchasers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance their
purchase of the properties for an amount up to 60% to 70%
of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term
of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and
any accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances,
the Group is able to retain the customer's sales deposit and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In addition, the Directors reviewed and assessed the Group's
existing financial assets and financial guarantee contracts for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 9. The amount of the loss
allowance at each reporting period were insignificant to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk management and impairment

\’H\

FERREERBERMNL(E)

MR (E)

A S B S B R RGT R E HE LA TR

assessment (Continued)
Financial guarantees (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

Al - comprises the following categories:

HithS@EE
AEEEFR  Hlk FEURBR X Hihig g
Internal Other financial assets/

credit rating

Description

Trade receivables

other items

KRB RpEFRORRBE - WEEM FEBESEERR RAEAARBEERX
BHEIRIE —IHEERE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due not credit-impaired
amounts
B AR BEEASREREIH B RER - FEMESEERR R2AEARRBEERX
BBEGEBERIA —IEERE
Watch risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
c2+ KIBAFBR NGB IR PTISE R FEHRMERR.S HFEUBREEREX
FERRIABRAE & [ B A B 42 A0 —IFEERE —FEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
S ARBRTEELREERE FEPEREERL GFEPRBEERX
—EERE —EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
A BERBERTEBALEREVRRE i $HTRIE MEHRIA
N B A] e AU @ IR
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and

the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

BREBZREEGRAF
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) BIREMEEEZEREK &) (B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
EERBREERRETL(Z) Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)
TRFMANER S E E LM IGER The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
AHNNEERKE - BERRBEITTE Group's financial assets and financial guarantee contracts,
H{E BB K ¢ which are subject to ECL assessment:
N nE EASEES 2020 20196
EETR EEFR  BHEEEX AREE BEAEE
2020 2019
External Internal  12-month or Gross carrying  Gross carrying
creditrating  creditrating  life-time ECL amount amount
i3 ARETR  ARETR
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REERATEN Financial assets at
SHEE amortised cost
E A Other receivables 2% Taf M AARSEERX 299,289 322072
N/A Note T 12-month ECL
TRHRTES Restricted bank balances % TEH TER  1EABRHEERL 232,573 64,245
N/A N/A~ 12-month ECL
RS Bank balances 2% TEH TER  NEARSEERX 581,927 879478
N/A N/A~ 12-month ECL
FEYRS Trade receivables 2% TaR W) GESEBEERX 18,401 1,550
N/A Note 2 (HEERME)
Life-time ECL (not credit
impaired)
FEUGERIRARRZE  Amounts due from 25 TNEA Mz nEARSEERX 388,999 37405
non-controlling N/A Note1  12-month ECL
shareholders
HiEH Other Items
EWHERE Lease receivables % TNER Wi GESRSHEERX 23,457 23566
N/A Note 2 (¥E5RME)
Life-time ECL (not credit
impaired)
BEREN Financial quarantee e T Wiz  EAESEERL 2,551,421 2,346,667
contracts N/A Note3  12-month ECL
M5t Notes:

162
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For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
based on their past credit worthiness, repayment history
and subsequent settlement to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. In the opinion of
the Directors, the risk of default by these counterparties is not
significant and the Group assessed that the ECL on these balances
are insignificant.

For trade and lease receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on
individual trade debtors balances.

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
its cash position resulting from its operations and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings and convertible bonds as
significant sources of liquidity.

The following table details the Group's contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

mBEL XK Liquidity table
mERS  RERY AMR
BRAZ  Re0HR  61Z1808  181E365A 1526 REREAE RAE
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective or within 61-180 181-365 1-2 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years cash flow amount
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR  ARWTR ARBTR ARETR
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
120205125318 As at 31 December 2020
ERERR Trade and other payables
A ENTE - 589290 252553 - - 841,843 841,843
-1 Borrowings
-E8 - fixed rate 6.0-15.4 1,785,117 734,017 614,965 7,188 3,141,287 3,064,920
78 - variable rate 1.8-2.1 1,459 382,230 92,365 - 476,054 472,278
W#RES—  Convertible bonds-debt
B%HHA component - 11,316 - - - 11,316 11,316
HERE Lease liabiltes 100 4 75 9 78 290 m
BRER Financial guarantees - 2,551,421 - - - 2,551,421 -
4,938,647 1,368,875 707,423 7,266 7,022,211 4,390,629
PEBBENER Borowings that are reclassified as
BEZEE liabilites held for sale
%8 - variable rate 1.2-2.8 9,676 3,168 384,499 - 397,343 390,134

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

RS EEEREE &) (B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
RBESREREEE) Liquidity risk management (Continued)
BB FK(E) Liquidity table (Continued)
Mg REKS REB
ERFIZ  We0BA 611808  181E365H 1225 BenssE R
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective or within 61-180 181-365 1-2  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years cash flow amount
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
0195128318 As at 31 December 2019
FERERTREMERNZUE  Trade and other payables - 225,764 96,757 - - 322521 32521
A& Borrowings
-E8 - fixed rate 6.0-140 60,433 1,346,147 199811 1755273 3,361,604 3032232
—%8 - variable rate 42-104 1,094,682 367,361 = - 1,462,043 1382216
AHRES—EHBA  Convertible bonds-debt component 25 1,000 28261 - 29486 2400
HERR Lease liabilties 53-100 195 390 586 462 1633 1,581
BISER Financial quarantees 2,346,667 - = - 2346667 =
3,727,966 1,811,655 228658 1,755,735 7524014 4761,950

18577 B 2 5 By 1 RUPA 5 35 45 B K
FRBSTE R fhat + BIEF A Ei3EpT
S REENIHFE T AKETT
25 -

==}

FEERBREITF  REEEK
HOBRTEREEE [KRERIR
60 W] HARR A ° 720204 12 H 31
B ZERTEFNEERAEAA
R #862412,0007T (20194 « AR
1,016,891,0007T) ° =& & E| A& B /) 8f
R - EBRABITTIARREITE
HEZEEERTEMEE - EEHE
ZERTERBRBREHREEER
BEHNETERAHERE—F=
F o FBRINTE :
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 60 days” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2020, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted
to RMB862,412,000 (2019: RMB1,016,891,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid
one to three years after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the table
below:
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RBESRBRERE(E)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

KRR
PME 122%F 225 REREBAH RHE
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
1year years years cash flow amount
ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR ARMTRT ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#2020%12831H As at 31 December 2020 873,397 - - 873,397 862,412
R2019%12H31H As at 31 December 2019 51,530 1,027,552 8734 1,087,816 1,016,891

FFALBBMBRARSONSERAE
ERERRZUFHRE AR A LA
REZHAERSBRHFLAENRS S
o RENSREHRROER - A&
B R AR BE B ARE 2B S EA
TR - R WLAMGF A TES -
FRPEFIRBIERIEHPRAYATEE
HmE - MUtA et RIR FhR 5%
FRENEERVBERIKFTAGER
RERBELME

AEBZREEMHEENQABES
%E’Jﬁﬁﬂﬁé&ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ:ﬁ
TR EBUMAEERAEECL
H 2 P A A BB K s A B0 ) AR
B BEEMBEABEN A
ERESAABEFESHEMBER

A EEER(E—E =) REKR -

F-—RARBEFEANER
BEEXBERART S RE
(REHAB)FL -

FE_RorBEAENEE
AP BREBEAIEZ (BIE
%) S E (BUR B B1%) AT B R
BEXAEBABIESL -

FE=RrrBEFAEHARR
WIRERABEMBEIENE
ELBERABE(TABRE
ABR) M EERMSFE -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the
fair values are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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38. T H (&) 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) =M T EMAREBEFGEE) (C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
AEERKSEMEELAREES Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
ENLREERSREBNAAE financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
B(E) on a recurring basis (Continued)
RUTBENAREE AREE fE{ER M &
Fair value as at & FEHABE
20204 2019%  Fair value Valuation techniques
2020 2019  hierarchy and key inputs
AR%T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRARBEFABRRDY 7,963 8283 HE=# EREENE - RRE
SRLEE (MIEE) Level 3 A REEARKRRE
Financial asset at FVTPL (note 1) FA (P 5E2)

Based on credit interest
rate, surrender charge,
policy charge and
insurance charge (note 2)

EBERAABEFAHMEER 500 500 F=4 BRRIRE M —ARKRBE S
WK AT A Level 3 e TR TR B S 2R &2
Equity instrument designated at BHRRERALE
FVTOCI Wiz R R E L E TR
EEplEl e Ss)
(BF&E3) -

Discounted Cash flow-
future cash flows are
estimated based on
expected return, and the
contracted investment
costs, discounted at a rate
that reflects the internal
rate of return of various
property projects (note 3).

FfaE - Notes:

1. DEEMR2020F 12 A3 B EARE 1. Reclassifies to assets of disposal group classifies as held for sale as
HEZHEARINEE - at 31 December 2020.

2. EATABRRRAABBRAFEER X - 2. The significant unobservable input is credit interest rate and if the
s BRI RN - Bl R R EEEHE credit interest rate increases, the fair value would increase and
me RZIA - vice versa.

3. EATAIBRE AR AR E - 4 3. The significant unobservable input is discount rate and if the
BRIR I - BIARBERERDS - R discount rate increases, the fair value would decrease and vice
IR © versa.

'I 66 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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() ERMIAENAREBENEE)

FEBREEMHEEUQNABER
ENTREERSHAGENAIAE
B(#&)

BRTIRAABEEI  EFRRANERA
MBHREERNEREERSRAR
REEEEQAABERS -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)
Except as disclosed in the following table, the Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

202012A31H 2019512A31H

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
AAEBEER DAREE REE RAEE FREE
Fair value Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
hierarchy value amount value amount
ARBTRE AR%TRT ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR ES—E%EHS  Convertible bonds - debt F=/ - 11,316 22,465 23,400

components

Level 3

AEEEEERAURBSRESN
ERHRBER A ENEMSREE
EE@MBENDAEE-

39. EEEH
THAENSREARLRE AT EBE
B THRIT REMMBE W ER -

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of
other financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised costs using the discounted cash flows analysis.

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and
other facilities granted to the Group at the end of each reporting

period.
2020%F 2019%F
2020 2019
ARET R AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FERREPYE Properties under development for sale 2,972,819 2,986,543
FIEHED R T YE Completed properties held for sale 2,162,074 1,427,046
M - BE N ERE Property, plant and equipment 91,498 100,957
"B Investment properties 1,381,704 1,857,793
6,608,095 6,372,339
ETHBARNEERE Net assets of certain subsidiaries 1,842,440 1,818,821




iR e MRS R MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZE2020%F12831HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

40. BREHEHRE
AEBEALEA

40.

RBBEHREHR  AEEEEYEHFRL

TR REREMKETA

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

At the end of respective reporting periods, the Group had
contracted with tenants of its properties for the following future
minimum lease payments:

20204F 2019%F

2020 2019

AR®T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—ER Within one year 20,040 65,613
F—F In the second year 991 53,288
F=F In the third year 913 1,080
FEPE In the fourth year 906 1,032
ERF In the fifth year 886 999
AFE After five years 4,700 3,527
28,436 125,539

20209 K 2019F12831H » REBR AWK
BESMFENRENENHEEAZLHN
T—Z+RHF - HEREMERFHRAR
SR DEEETRREEEETED
LEEETE - AREIAR S EHF R AR R
A MW RERABRAES - e

RPES & E AR -

41. HEE

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the investment properties held
by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants one
to fifteen years. Lease of an investment property has clauses of
contingent rentals determined by a certain percentage of turnover
earned by the tenant. As the future revenue of the tenant could not
be reliably determined, the relevant contingent rentals have not
been included above and only the minimum lease commitments
have been included in the table above.

41. OTHER COMMITMENTS
2020 20194
2020 2019
AR®T T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REFEIBIRR D ETLEARBEMER Commitments for property development
Y52 R IE contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 2,763,706 2,197,960

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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42. BBRESTE

ARABRR2017F12 81 BIRB AR RIRER
20174611 A 20 B #L /89 45 Bl R & R AR R
IREETEI([5H8]]) - s8I EERBE AR
SEEHERNZESE  TEHB2EEA
KA REBREEES D  BORAAR
AINERGERE -

AEZ2EEBEAEENTES  FNT
EX BUFNTESKREEUNESS
ERPBERRE /G /AKEELER
MEAER - EXRER - DHEB - AR
mofEE - KB KFP EBRBH A
EREXBEBA - BEAIAKETM
X8 AR R RIS R -

STEIRARE K&, SATA M B A & /9 E (7]
HEiERETZE T TRENAEER
REEITER A TEITHRMDBE - 55T
SEBARANH B BT EEATER10%
([10%fR%E |) » 5TE10% [R5 - T &
BT EI R AR T K&,/ SN B A E K
b IR AT B M G E & R
FERRHE < 10%RE A EAD R IRRBLfERE
o stEETHAEEREBHEATENR
TEEREERAR AR SEMMBA
AIMEM EMERETSETAEE R
B ARITEMRITEBREETERA T
BITHROBH LR - TEBBTRE R
TR D 2L E #30% ©

BrIEAC IR AL E - B AR EM 1218 B
o B RARQR R RAERKTE AR
FREMBREFSBETS2EEDER
M ERHD M EBRE(BEETE B
SH R M ARITE R BB BT R E BT R
BETHRMDESE  TERBERZEREAB
HEZEITRME B /1% °

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 1
December 2017 pursuant to a special resolution approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 20 November 2017. The purpose
of the Scheme is to reward participants who have contributed
to the Group and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors and
employees of the Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who the board of directors considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiary shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% (the “10% Limit") in nominal amount of
the aggregate of the shares in issue on the adoption date. Options
lapsed or cancelled in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and such other share option schemes of the Company and/or any
subsidiary shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
10% Limit. The 10% Limit may be refreshed with the approval of
the shareholders of the Company. The limit on the total number of
the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme,
together with all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other share option schemes of the Company
and/or any subsidiary, must not exceed 30% of the number of
issued shares from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to each participant under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company and/
or any subsidiary (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the proposed grant date unless the
same is approved by the shareholders.
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42, IBRAETEl(2) 42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
REMBTERENS  EFSNIREE In respect of any particular option, the period to be determined
LGS T R A AR A HR A SR and notified by the board to the grantee at the time of making an
L REBBF T FRER - S2EENET offer shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of grant. Each
BRREHBHZ2sEMERBRES SR participant must pay HK$1 as consideration for the grant of options
BB - not later than 28 days after the grant date.
THEEERESSET BT T The exercise price shall be determined by the board of directors,
FHEMNTEE (RO RERL A BER AT being not less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares
AsRERFATRKTE  OBROREER as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the grant
CEHHAELEEBEBIMBEBRER date; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
I RFEHWTE 0 RORMDEE - Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately

preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.
FTEIB R EH BE(BI20179F12818) FA The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
+EHIM AR AR - commencing on the adoption date, i.e. 1 December 2017.
BERANET I LA - AN B I R 5 A e B No share options have been granted by the Company since the
i o adoption of the Scheme.
43. FARAE 43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
20204 20196
2020 2019
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A TN R IERBITIEH AUER - Guarantees given in favour of banks for:
BRI AEBEMEERD Mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of
IRIEEE (M) the Group's properties (note) 2,551,421 2,346,667

sk - A EpE TRITREAIRIBRERMIE
R ZERBERESRBAAEENEERM
RIS EIRIBE R © REEREK  WRFE
KRB/ AR - AEBEAEEMRITEE
RABRERNKAERIRIBEFEREE
MEREMERK - BF - AEBEHEEES
BRYIRRVAERT A o EREIR A ERLE
EFERE B AR - YRNRTERPIEE
EMBEEERIZBERNERRER - &
ERB - AR EERREERTBEREL
MARBEBRTRE  BERERSOE
B

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Note: The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by purchasers of the Group's properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage loans together with accrued interests thereon and
any penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group
is then entitled to take over the legal title of the related properties. The
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and released upon the banks obtained the building
ownership certificate from the customers as a pledge for the mortgage
loans. In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the guarantee
contracts is made as the credit risk is low and the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts is insignificant.
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(a)

B Z 20205 K& 2019F12 A31 B IEF
& THIE 7R AR EE A g
7 BEZENBEERSINAT

RBLNE £8

Name of related party

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

44, RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

(a

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
following parties are identified as related parties to the Group
and the respective relationships are set out below:

BA&

Relationship

AR E

Mr. Pan Haoran

BEAKE
Mr. Pan Weiming

PRIZAI L2+
Ms. Chen Weihong

BEANZEEAERAR([EENZE]D
Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Liujian”)

BREE
Fusheng Group

EOBEMEBRAT(TERDEE])
Changsha Fusheng Property Co., Ltd
(“Changsha Fusheng”)

rEEREEERAR([REERER])
Fujian Fullsun Group Co., Ltd.
(“Fujian Fullsun Group”)

BEINER

Guangzhou Fusheng

RERERR - NEE LB S B A
NEERR

RISEEBRAR - ITER RITHRAR
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

AT BARIEIRAR SR k20199 A7 ABHEME S
Former Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and the director
resigned on 7 September 2019

RIS AR RS
Spouse of Mr. Pan Weiming

BEREERERAR

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

BRALERERBR

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder
AIEIR SRR R

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

AR RIERER

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder
RS RIEIRAR R
Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

The Group had the following balances with related parties at
the end of each reporting period:

20204 2019%F
2020 2019
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARG M EESIERISH  Trade payables in respect of construction
FETER SR services and property management service
BRI E Fujian Liujian 18,331 5,766

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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44, B HEBRR R B (&)

44. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() EZE2020F K2019%12 8318 IE5F
B AEEBEEFEFETIUNTR

(@)

The Group entered into the following transactions with its
related parties during the years ended 31 December 2020

2 and 2019:
)iy St REME 20205 20194F
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RN BREEARYS 96,630 308,809
Fujian Liujian Construction service
EAOEE VI E TR R - 2,600

Changsha Fusheng

Property management service

(d) EHZ2019F12831HILFE - X&EE (d) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
H RN AR R AT R R - DA entered into an equity transfer agreement with Guangzhou
BEAR LT IERZ100 % A% HE - 1B RAHY Fusheng to acquire 100% equity interest in Zhongshan
FF36HEE o Zhengpei, the details are disclosed in note 36.
) ARERAESFEENTEZEREE (e)  Remuneration of key management personnel, who are the
ABRMESET : top five highest paid employees of the Group, is as follows:
2020 20194F
2020 2019
ARMTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hre K&ERL Salaries and allowances 5,740 3,715
B 5% IR B R A TEAL Performance related bonus 158 59
RURRE AR Retirement benefit contributions 34 50
5,932 3,824

H \BREE EFREREE- - BEE
FRRGLAE REAZEMEEALE
(BAEAABNEE S )E (LR A
)BT AEENSEERRE
MAEBBERNET AZHEANE
R o R20205E12 8318 © ZEERE
=+ AR #3,871,261,0007T (20194 = A
R #4,201,536,0007C) ©

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Fusheng Group, Fujian Fullsun Group, Tongda, Mr. Pan
Weiming, Ms. Chen Weihong and Mr. Pan Haoran, all being
related parties of the Company, have (jointly or severally)
provided guarantees to the Group in favour of lenders in
respect of various loan facilities granted to the Group. Such
guarantees amounted to an aggregate of RMB3,871,261,000
(2019: RMB4,201,536,000) as at 31 December 2020.
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B EREE
K%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬁﬂﬁé&Iﬁﬂ
MAMSHE - REHANEERALE
MQF YRR MEEATENERLE
SRTEEE o AR AIRAAMH A S%A
Mﬁﬂfm SEEEEA LRAI150%
HRERER

o - AREEFEKBARMESHRHE
PR T & R B R B B R REFETE -

ZEWBRARBEFEKAEN T2%215%
MERRBHE IR - EAEAZH - &
EEHRAREFTENE —EEAELTE

TEHEFK o

HZE20200F128318IEEE - REZER
B 458 S AR #802,0007T (20194 © AR#E
770,0007T ) 38 AN 62 B 5T B4R B T AR SE kb
BRERE G

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

45. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Company contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the scheme with a cap of HK$1,500 per employee per month, in
which contribution is matched by employees.

In addition, the employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute range from 2% to 15% of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB802,000 (2019:
RMB770,000) represent the contribution payable to these plans by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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46. RIE D TR
B BARBEI - RARR2020F12H31H
HESEENTZEMBARGEBOT :

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise
stated, by the Company as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

AEERUATEH
BERRRE

Effective equity interest

AR RRREL A

Proportion of voting power

attributable to the Groupat  held by the Company
Al
WEARAR B2 BHax 20206 20195 2020 W9E  EEEH
Place of/
incorporation
Name of subsidiary establishment  Paid-up capital 2020 2019 2020 2019 Principal activities
% % % %
EEEE L) i 50000000% 7 100 100 100 100 REER
Fuzhou Fullsun Group (i) PRC 15$50,000,000 Investment holding
HERREE) q: AR H4450000007C 100 100 100 100 KERR
Hunan Fullsun Group (i) PRC RMB445,000,000 Investment holding
HEBERDERZERRAA) P AR 4000000007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
PRC RMB400,000,000 Property development
HETREHERRARAR) AR1588200007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
PRC RMB158,820,000 Property development
HERRFLERZERAR A AR 4008065007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
(THERR)0 PRC RMB400,806,500 Property development
Hunan Fullsun Real Estate
Development Co, Ltd
("Hunan Fullsun”) (i)
HEERERERZERRA) P AR 590000007 100 100 100 100 YEER
PRC RMB59,000,000 Property development
HERERLERZERAA) P ARE303000007 100 100 100 100 YEER
PRC RMB30,300,000 Property development
HEEIEHEREERAR AR 5500000007 51 51 51 51 WEEE
(FAEEz))0 PRC RMB550,000,000 Property development
HREEHEREERLR
(‘Hunan Xingru') (i)
EEZR() q: ARH100000007 34 £l 67 67 NEEE
Ningde Bisheng (ii) PRC RMB10,000,000 Property development
R h ARE100000007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
Fuzhou Kangan (i) PRC RMB10,000,000 Property development
ERAL0) q: ARH120926,75070 75 75 75 5 NEEE
Jiaxing Bojin (i) PRC RMB120,926,750 Property development

174

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED



46. RIEB A TR (#)

B B ISR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AETRUT A
EEERRE EARFRRERLA
Effective equity interest  Proportion of voting power
attributable tothe Groupat held by the Company
L/
WEAREH R RaEx 2020 0195 2020 W9F  TEED
Place of/
incorporation
Name of subsidiary establishment  Paid-up capital 2020 2019 2020 2019 Principal activities
% % % %
EEYN() f AR 250000007 100 100 100 0 NEEE
Hunan Yatai (i) PRC RMB25,000,000 Property development
HEER() h ABR300000007C 100 100 100 0 NEEE
Hunan Zhenghao (i) PRC RMB30,000,000 Property development
£E &k BT 100 100 100 100 YEEE
Gold Asset Hong Kong HKS1 Property development
Wise Think ARAAREE 168 100 100 100 100 WEEE
BVI HKS16 Property development
ENmEESARAT G AR#1380100007T n 71 7 N REER
(TEM®ED PRC RMB138,010,000 Investment holding
EMmieB5ARAT
(‘Guangzhou Pinli") (i)
E(RRERER G AR#104299007 100 100 100 0 HNERE
BIRAH) PRC RMB10429,900 Property investment
ATREBRAT Bt 1T 100 100 100 100 HERE
All Brilliant Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
EHREBRAR Bt 1T 100 100 100 100 WERE
Candidwell Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
LRREBRAR Bt 1T 100 100 100 100 WERE
Gainer Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
RERERRAT Bt 1T 100 100 100 100 YERE
Leadfirst Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
Enterprise Carpark Limited BE AT 100 100 100 100 WERE
Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
Wisdom Bloom Investments BB 1T 100 100 100 100 HERE
Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
Splendor Keen Limited EBEARME 100005 100 100 100 100 YLRE
BvI U5$10,000 Property investment

BREBZREEGRAF
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46. AMIEB L TIRER (#)
B3 -
0) REKEA R ARETRBRERKIAERA

Ejo

(i) B BB A B AR IR AR BA R A S AN B A 1
%o

BEREEERFEEERM%ERE - KNE
B8 55 SN AR ER BTS2 A8+ ez F R
EEARTHFEBOERE  F=FRRAHL
HAERER/VERE  BRARRAEME
HERERBRASREFEEIAZRL
RERSE  ARENERAREE &ER
AR - REBERERNBABEIZRNMR
ERANE it - AEEARISHEE
ERAAEGHIZEE - T ERE RS
ARARBEREMBRA] °

(iii)

BEEEAFLFIEENIEZERBRATN
F15 o TRIIRAR TR 20204 K& 20194
1RANBABEREEHIEEMNIEZEN
BRRIRES -

Notes:

0}

(ii)

(iii)

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The PRC subsidiaries are of limited liability established under the PRC
Law.

The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established under
the PRC Law.

Although the Group only has 34% equity interest in Ningde Bisheng,
the Group has entered into an agreement with two other shareholders
who in total have 33% shareholding in Ningde Bisheng such that three
shareholders altogether holds 67% equity interest in Ningde Bisheng
agree that should there be any differences in view on the resolutions
in shareholders’ meeting and board meeting of Ningde Bisheng, the
Group's opinions are overriding, final and conclusive. According to the
memorandum and articles of association of Ningde Bisheng and the
abovementioned agreement, the Group can obtain control over the
relevant activities of Ningde Bisheng, which is considered as a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests. The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 that have material non-controlling interests.

M12A31 A EERER BZ12831BLLEE
FrsfAERERR PTREFERER R12A31H
FrafELL A RREELL I HIFE (&) R EERES

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting rights
held by non-controlling
interests at 31 December

Proportion of ownership

Accumulated
non-controlling interests
at 31 December

Profit (loss) allocated to
non-controlling interests for
the year end 31 December

KEARER X2 2020F 2019 2020F 2019%F 2020F 20194
Name of subsidiary Place of business 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
AR¥TR ARETT AR¥Tn ARETR
% % RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i H 49 49 5,837 2,638 508,475 502,638
Hunan xingru the PRC
BN R HE 29 29 (15,663) (11) 384,327 399,989
Guangzhou Pinli the PRC
EHpe HE 25 25 (14,263) (6,886) 3,435 17,699
Jiaxing Bojin the PRC
BRI ERRER (1,804) (8,740) (18,765) (16,961)
TEAKBRR
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests
(25,893) (12,999) 877,472 903,365

BRARBAEBEANFEFEENHEL
BN ERR AT - A THHEE
Rt 15 5= B A R SH AT A S5
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Summarised financial information in respect of Company’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represented
amounts before intra-group eliminations.
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#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP (Continued)

T R Hunan Xingru
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets 14,989 11,556
MENEE Current assets 512,513 1,084,193
mEAE Current liabilities 49,804 69,957
RNAREE AE(L RS Equity attributable to owners of the Company (30,777) 523,154
VTR 2 Non-controlling interests 508,475 502,638
WA Revenue 30,410 33,302
53 Expense (18,497) (2,669)
FRF)E Profit for the year 11,913 5,383
RABIHEE AEGTE Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company 6,076 2,745
FEFE AR R o FEAG N Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests 5,837 2,638
K EBNIR B FEE Net cash outflow from
operating activities (3,101) (50)
BEEERSORLE), /M AEZE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
investing activities (4,141) 107,669
FEEBIRESARACRE)FEE  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities 1,666 (56,174)
WeCRt), HRAFEE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (5,576) 51,445

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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46. AMBATINRES &)
FE LU ()

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP (Continued)

EMRE Guangzhou Pinli
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERHEE Non-current assets 216,000 270,000
BB E Current assets 1,197,106 2,018,013
mEARE Current liabilities 1,067,262 908,741
RARIEE AL Equity attributable to owners of the Company (38,483) 979,283
FEIE IR = Non-controlling interests 384,327 399,989
Fs Expense (54,027) (38)
FREE Loss for the year (54,027) (38)
RARIGE AEGER Loss attributable to the owners of the Company (38,364) 27)
JEFEAR RS R (G e 1R Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests (15,663) a1
KEEFHIESORE),/ mASESE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities (61,218) 9,966
REESIR R FE Net cash outflow from investing activities - (1,385,882)
BEEFHR SR AERE Net cash inflow from financing activities 61,271 1,375,900
WEmA Crd)F5 Net cash inflow/(outflow) 53 (16)

'I 7 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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46. AMIB DRI (&) 46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued
FrERELL Bl (&) PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP (Continued)
EEHAS Jiaxing Bojin
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets 2,797 5411
M EE Current assets 1,149,727 959,455
mEIAE Current liabilities 1,137,584 774,070
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 1,196 120,000
NAEHE ARG Equity attributable to owners of the Company 10,308 53,097
PRI 2 Non-controlling interests 3,436 17,699
WA Revenue 870 207
5 Expense (57,922) (27,544)
FREE Loss for the year (57,052) (27,337)
KAaHEB AE(LEE Loss attributable to the owners of the Company (42,789) (20,451)
JEFERS R s PR (G B 18 Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests (14,263) (6,886)
RESEFNIRETA (RHE)FE  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities 4,032 (234,843)
BEFERSRA R )EEZ  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities 2,615 (155,115)
MEEHIRESCRE), R AFEE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities (44,590) 420,000
HeORE), (mAEE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (37,943) 30,042

ERINFEEMRREERE

AEEFR
XESIBRARBEEFEEANRD

S IFN

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the year

REIMBRE - EERRFHFIEMMELR
ANENEEYREBNILE °

or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RER » FHIE A AW E & ES None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of the
year.

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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47. BERAAR AR BARRRNE R 47. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
BRAREHRANNBHERARAOER S Information about the statement of financial position of the
& Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2020 20194
2020 2019
AR®T T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
RHTEB AR RIEE Investments in subsidiaries 68 68
N EPNEI B Amounts due from subsidiaries 916,099 1,364,625
916,167 1,364,693
RBEE Current assets
Hoh pE R IE Other receivables 1,439 1,944
FEUHI B A R R TE Amounts due from subsidiaries 361,666 345,330
RITHEBRNIRS Bank balances and cash 685 1,267
363,790 348,541
REBEE Current liabilities
H h fE S 5108 Other payables 3,844 296
AR (E S Convertible bonds 11,316 -
Bk ——F AL Borrowings — due within one year 26,261 29,435
41,421 29,731
REBEEFE Net Current Assets 322,369 318,810
EELAERRBAR Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 1,238,536 1,683,503
AAREE ABELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
PR (B45E33) Share capital (note 33) 96,031 96,031
fE Reserves 1,136,127 1,542,627
1,232,158 1,638,658
FnBEE Non-current liabilities
AR E S Convertible bonds - 23,400
B ——F AR H Borrowings — due after one year 6,378 21,445
6,378 44,845
1,238,536 1,683,503

'I 8 O FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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47. EBAD AR BHRREOEH

#H %2020 12831 HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

47. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

(4&) FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
RABIEEEE T ¢ The movements of the reserves of the Company are as follows:
(REtER),/
s E PN Hitrf REFE @5t
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contributed Other retained
premium surplus reserve profit Total
ARETT AR®ETT AR®TT ARE®ETT AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i)
(note i)
»2019%1 18 At 1 January 2019 5,579,870 35,355 2,646 (3,707,781) 1,910,090
PR AP ERIME (Fff3Eii)  Share premium reduction (note i) (5,500,000) 500,000 = 5,000,000 -
FERERE Loss for the year - - - (373,533) (373,533)
BB ES Conversion of convertible bonds (note 30)
(F37£30) 6,070 - - - 6,070
720195124318 At 31 December 2019
%0201 A1H and 1 January 2020 85,940 535,355 2,646 918,686 1,542,627
FRERE Loss for the year - - - (406,500) (406,500)
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 85,940 535,355 2,646 512,186 1,136,127
BI5E Notes:

(@)

(ii)

BMABKRIERERERFBARR AIIRGHH 20005
10A16 B R EBRAT EmmETHNERSE
HFKENB AR ERNA I FEEBEA
ARAFBBETEARENRAIEENDS -
REARZEIGIERARE  AARINBAR
BREETHERTAERRBES KK REWSD
K °

WIEARENEBERE  KARARIRER
B ARENBRGOEEN AR B®IE
B BREENEBREARERER - R
201958 + AR BIREAER DR BEA
R #5,000,000,000TC A $5 25T BB R AR
500,000,0007CFAR AR FHEE ©

0]

(ii)

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the then combined net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange completed on 16 October 2000 over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor. In accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed
surplus is available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie in
certain circumstances.

According to the related laws of the Bermuda, the share premium of the
Company can be used to offset accumulated losses, expand the scale
of production and business and transfer to capital upon approval from
the shareholders of the Company. In May 2019, the shareholders of the
Company approved to reduce the share premium of RMB5,000,000,000
to offset the accumulated losses and RMB500,000,000 applied to capital
contribution of the Company.

BREKZEREEERAF
20204 5
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48. EHIREEIE 48. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

HZE2020F 128318 LLEFE © FTA M a.  During the year ended 31 December 2020, all of the
RERIBRRESSHEHREZRE(A outstanding convertible bonds were matured and repaid
R #11,316,0007CBR51) o 722020512 except for RMB11,316,000. On 29 December 2020, the
A298 - BHFEARARRFIREE Bondholder filed a Winding Up Petition against the Company
BEF(ZEH] RIEHREE (the “Petition”). Following the repayment of the outstanding
BAREERER  ZEHER2021F balances subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
3ATEERED - BEFBHNART] Petition was withdrawn on 1 March 2021. Details are set out
72020128308 ~ 2021F2H28 - in the Company’s Announcements on 30 December 2020,
20212 A1 B R2021F3 A 1B A 2 February 2021, 11 February 2021 and 12 March 2021.
’—"é‘: o
T FE21 TR EE - R AE R R A A b.  As disclosed in note 21, Hunan Heda Agreement was
FE2020F 12 A3 A IEFE 2 BRIE - terminated after the year ended 31 December 2020. The
REEZERERIEE  REARK deposit of RMB270,000,000, will be refunded to the Group
270,000,000 TR B 4G AN H o following the termination of the equity transfer agreement.
2016128228 « ARG BAF] c.  On 22 December 2016, Hunan Fullsun, a subsidiary the
HEERERNEETEREEA T Company and X ¥ {5 5t B IR & £ 2 7 (“Daye Trust’)
(TREEFTDFILMELH: - Bt entered into a financing arrangement pursuant to which 49%
WFRRB40%REDEET RERE of the equity interest in Hunan Fullsun had been transferred
=5 B4R A A9 PO 0E b 358 /Y £ 4 to Daye Trust and a mortgage over the land use rights of
ERAEERAE ENEFREEYR IR four parcels of land located in Hunan Province together
BEEE T RECTIELAEER - & with the buildings and constructions erected thereon
F020F12A31BItFERHEESR were pledged to Daye Trust as collateral. Following the full
ik BEEER A KRESITREDN repayment of the loan during the year ended 31 December
FTE A M REREN20216F4H9H 2020, all collateral and security given in favour of Daye Trust
B KRB o S5 E AR R EY49% IR A HE in relation to the loan were discharged and released on 9
EHEETAQAKNEBARSEE April 2021. The 49% equity interest in Hunan Fullsun was re-
BIBFXEEBRAA - AHEEH transferred to BOE (TR 2) X EIE AR A A, a subsidiary
RARDNBR2021F4HIBHRE o of the Company. Details are set out in the Company's
Announcement on 9 April 2021.
M202143H28H8 + NAF—HREE d.  On 28 March 2021, Vivalink Limited, an indirect wholly-

2EWNBRAREBBRAREAE
F)EARRF(ERERAN) R—EE
NE=ZFERER )L BIRTYE
BEERZ([VLEEHHE]) - A
& Splendor Keen®) 2 FBE B /TR AN &
Splendor Keen#& REBER A RINE
F(AEBEBEBEMRBARITER) -
#24K (8 75 790,000,000 Tt (#8 & 1 4
A R # 664,896,000 7C ) I L Splendor
Group B IR B R AT R M & = F B
(EEFE] (WZEEFEARIL
&) 3k )8 & Splendor Group 78 X Bk B
FRIANEEFE(MZEEFES
B8 - R A R2021F5H27HE]
VEBRGEREERZE( FXEER
#) ZHEEREDKRVZEER
& o BEFFBERNARRNR20215F4
A14B X2021%F6 A1 BRIAE -

owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor, entered into
a conditional preliminary sale and purchase agreement
(the “PSPA") with the Company, as guarantor, and an
independent third party, as purchaser, to dispose of the
entire issued share capital of Splendor Keen and the
loans owed by Splendor Keen to Vivalink Limited with
the requirement on the Group to discharge bank loans
at a total consideration of HK$790,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB664,896,000) plus the net asset value
(“NAV") as shown in the Completion Accounts of Splendor
Group (if such NAV is a positive number) or minus the NAV
as shown in the Completion Accounts of Splendor Group
(if such NAV is a negative number). A conditional formal
sale and purchase agreement (the “FSPA”) was entered into
between the same parties on 27 May 2021 which superseded
and replaced the PSPA. Details are set out in the Company’s
Announcements on 14 April 2021 and 1 June 2021.

BRERBEEN  AERERBEHRRRE
EAREAPSBEMNEAMELER -

Saved as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any
material subsequent events after the reporting period and up to
the date of this report.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TR W B AR F RIS EZ I B RK A The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

—&5 o statements included in this Annual Report.
E RESULTS
HZ2018F
HZ20205 HE2019% 12A318
12A318 12A318 LEAEA
ILEE HEE For the HBE3ABILEE
For the Forthe nine months For the year ended
year ended year ended ended 31 March
31 December 31 December 31 December 2018%F 20174
2020 2019 2018 2018 2017
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®EFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(FizEa, b) (Fi¥a b) (FzEa) (FizED) (FizEb)
(Notes a, b) (Notes a, b) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b)
WA Revenue 1,164,653 1,596,181 1,255,548 553,549 602,607
BT A (518 AR (Loss) profit before taxation (1,390,525) 277438 765,867 (4,546904) 112,137
Fr{5Ri s Income tax expense (2,551) (153,553) (263,409) (79,024) (58,024)
REREREEBNFR (Loss) profit for the year from
(B8 HH continuing operations (1,393,076) 123,885 502,458 (4625,928) 54113
REBREEEEBEHEA Loss for the year from
B8 discontinued operation - = = (426) -
ERN(ER)FIE (Loss) profit for the year (1,393,076) 123,885 502,458 (4626,354) 54,113
5T - Notes:
(@) HBEFTREEEGREUBHRE - (@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements.
(b) BRSNS REER 2@ EERE - (b) The above financial figures were prepared in a 12-month basis for each of the

financial year.




hFHMHRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EENEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R20205 20195 20185
12A31H 12A318 12A318 MW3A318
Asat As at As at At 31 March
31 December 31 December 31 December 20184 20174
2020 2019 2018 2018 2017
ARBTR ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(FffzEa) GiED) GED)
(Note a) (Note a) (Note a)
BRE Total assets 12,588,148 13,905,599 11,676,137 5,860,960 2,833,920
BEE Total liabilities 11,135,002 11,054,418 9,894,744 5,572,395 2,506,213
ARAHE NEGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 575,674 1,947,816 1,765,029 288,565 327,707
BaE Note:
(a) Bt A G I EERE - (a) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements.
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